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MESSAGE FROM THE CHAIRMAN
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Tai Fung Bank Limited Annual Report 2023

On behalf of the Board of Directors of Tai Fung
Bank Limited, | am delighted to share our
achievements and insights with our shareholders for
the fiscal year ending 31 December 2023.

In 2023, the global economy has experienced
elevated inflation rates, high interest rates,
dramatic pressure on the financial industry, and
geopolitical conflicts continuing to influence global
production chains negatively. Overall, China
economic recovery was boosted, but demand
was insufficient and the real estate sector did
not recover as expected. The Macao’'s economy
resurged rapidly, but its unbalanced nature caused
many SMEs to face operational difficulties and the
local banking industry witnessed a decline in both
scale and quality of its total assets. Despite these
market fluctuations of the domestic and foreign
environment, the dedicated team of Tai Fung Bank
showcased resilience and adaptability, enabling us
to achieve growth in both revenue and pre-tax pre-
provision profit. We have also managed to maintain
our operations with stability and retained our credit
rating of BBB+ with a stable outlook. However, the
banking industry was dramatically affected by the
external economic environment, and navigated
unique challenges. The cash-flow problems for
many real estate companies in Mainland China were
serious, putting pressure on bank asset quality. We
significantly boosted provisions, causing a relatively
large decline in post-tax profit.

In the face of adversity, Tai Fung Bank embraced
the challenges as opportunities for growth and
innovation. We actively engaged with the national
strategy, refined our customer portfolio, provided
outstanding financial services for national key
areas and supported key clients in the green and
energy sectors. In the post-pandemic era, we
have responded to the local government’s call
of supporting infrastructural projects as it has
continually launched measures and initiated major
projects to help the real economy. Our Guangdong-
Macao In-Depth Cooperation Zone in Hengqin
Sub-Branch successfully commenced operations,
allowing our Cross-boundary Wealth Management
Connect Southbound Scheme business to begin,
thus injecting new developmental momentum into
the Greater Bay Area market. We accelerated the
application of financial technology, pushed forward
the development of our data platforms and cloud
platform systems. Our Smart Transportation Service
payment platform, including Smart Parking, Smart
Refueling and Smart Transportation services,
expanded its reach across Macao and continued to
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expand our brand effect. Furthermore, we persisted
in our systematic approach, reinforced our bottom-
line mentality, boosted our emergency response
capacity, and identified market changes in real-
time and troubleshot risk exposures. As a result,
we maintained a capital adequacy ratio within a
reasonable range, ensured sufficient liquidity levels
and enhanced our comprehensive risk management
capacities.

Looking into 2024, the global economy is to recover
gradually, though there still exist instability and
uncertainty. Some developed economies have
accumulated financial sector risks and some
complex geopolitical situations did not disappear.
This year is the 75th anniversary of the founding
of the People’'s Republic of China, the 25th
anniversary of Macao’s return to China and the
completion of the first phase of development goals
for the Guangdong-Macao In-Depth Cooperation
Zone in Henggin. China will continue to focus on
high-quality development, move faster to create
a new pattern of development and promote
the comprehensive advancement of Chinese
modernization. As the“1+4” economic diversification
strategy gains traction, major projects will one after
another come into play, and customs operations for
the Guangdong-Macao In-Depth Cooperation Zone
in Hengqgin will provide a new support for Macao’s
economic recovery and moderately diversified
development.

Facing the opportunities and challenges in 2024,
we are committed to maintaining stability while
driving progress, applying a new development
strategy and creating a new development
pattern for Tai Fung Bank. In response to the
call of “making the financial sector better serve
the real economy”, we will strengthen our local
presence, tap the potential of retail and corporate
business, enhance customer service and provide
comprehensive support for Macao’s economic
recovery. We plan to engage ourselves greatly with
the growth initiatives of the Guangdong-Macao
In-Depth Cooperation Zone in Henggin and the
Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area,
and support Macao in better integrating itself into
China’s overall development. We will initiate a digital
infrastructure plan and set to bring Tai Fung Bank’s
digital standards to a new level within three to five
years. Based on national and regional sustainable
development strategies, we will give our all to
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Tai Fung Bank Limited Annual Report 2023

support the building of Macao’s diversified industry
system and incorporate the “green bank” concept
into our development strategy and operational
management. We will enhance our awareness
of potential risks, strengthen risk management,
improve our capacity of mitigating risks, and ensure
healthy and stable business operations.

Tai Fung Bank will continue to forge ahead through
wind and waves. With a rich history spanning over
80 years, Tai Fung Bank has consistently adapted
and thrived. For this reason, we are confident
in our ability to seize new opportunities. | would
like to sincerely thank our clients for their trust,
shareholders for their support, and staff for their
loyalty and devotion over this past year. As always,
Tai Fung Bank will hold fast to our founding mission
of delivering financial services and keep pressing
onward to create enduring value for our clients,
shareholders, and community at large!

Ho, Carlos
Chairman

Macao, 20 March 2024
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Tai Fung Bank Limited Annual Report 2023

The Directors of Tai Fung Bank Limited (the “Bank”)
present their report together with the audited
financial statements of the Bank for the year ended
31 December 2023.

Principal activities

The principal activities of the Bank are the provision
of banking, financial and other related services.

Results and appropriations

The results of the Bank for the year ended 31
December 2023 are set out in the statement of
profit or loss on page 20.

The Directors recommend, subject to the approval
of the shareholders at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting, the following appropriations in
respect of the retained earnings as of 31 December
2023:

B TT T
MOP’000

Proposed dividend of preference

shares 325,640
Proposed interest payment

of additional tier 1 capital

instrument 163,770
Retained earnings 5,689,017
Reserves

Movements in the reserves of the Bank during the
year are set out in the statement of changes in
equity on page 23 to 24.

Property, plant and equipment
Details of the movements in property, plant and

equipment of the Bank are set out in note 27 to the
financial statements.
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Directors and Supervisors

The Directors and Supervisors during the year and
up to the date of this report are shown on page
168.

Auditor

The financial statements have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers. They shall retire and offer
themselves for appointment in the auditor election
process.

On behalf of the Board

Ho, Carlos
Chairman

Macao, 20 March 2024

XERTEHGARLXFAN_-O=-Z=ZF%®



[+ — i—
IREHEGE ST
ENVIRONMENTAL AND
SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY



HAdERE

ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

1 BBER
Green Loans

2023%8H18H-19H
18-19 August 2023
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The Bank actively supported and sponsored the
“2023 Annual Meeting and GBA Green Finance
Summit” organized by the Guangdong-Hong
Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area Green Finance
Alliance. The event aimed to discuss the innovative
development of green finance, share successful
cases, promote exchanges and cooperation, and
contribute to the high-quality development of the
Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area.
Mr. Chio lo Va, Vice President of Tai Fung Bank,
attended the event.

BEAXNEERESMEN ¢ 2023FFE B SEANEEYESRNGE
2023 GUANGDONG-HONG KONG-MACAO GREATER BAY AREA GREEN FINANCE ALLIANCE (GBA-GFA) ANNUAL MEETING
AND GBA GREEN FINANCE SUMMIT
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GREEN FINANCE: EMPOWERING HIGH-QUALITY DEVELOPMENT IN THE GBA
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2023%F8A
August 2023
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The Bank successfully participated in the first
green syndicated loan for a leading company in
China’s lithium battery sector, certified by ISS
Corporate Solutions.

2023%F118
November 2023
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The Bank participated in Asia’'s largest
sustainability-linked syndicated loan in the
consumer disposable battery industry, fulfilling its
commitment to promoting sustainable development
of companies.

M GOLD
d PEAK

GPI International Limited
HKD660 Million 3-Year Sustainability-Linked Term Loan Facility
Signing Ceremony

Mandated Lead Arrangers and Bookg Lead Arrangers
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In November 2023, the Bank’s mainland
branches participated in a green and carbon-
neutral syndicated loan for a Chinese automotive
retail financial services provider. This bank-
enterprise collaboration empowered low-carbon
green finance, contributing to the win-win goal of
sustainable development.

?Eﬁ$ﬁﬂﬁ§&ﬁ¢ﬂﬁ@ﬁﬁ
ATAVEY

-, "G“D TONMN ’N '!5
5\ )
A e £l

Tai Fung Bank Limited Annual Report 2023

2023
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The Bank’s green finance portfolio continued to
expand in 2023, focusing primarily on industries
such as new energy, water resources, and green
buildings through syndicated loans, project
financing, and other approaches. Meanwhile, the
Bank engaged in public welfare activities, yielding
significant social benefits. Internally, it implemented
eco-friendly and energy-saving initiatives alongside
enhancing data governance. In 2024, the Bank
continues to develop its environmental, social,
and governance (ESG) framework and actively
implement high-quality standards in green finance
operations, ESG risk management, and ESG
operation management.

11
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ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (continued)

2. ERARERA R
Making Good Use of Technology to
Enhance Efficiency

2023
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Green operations and technology development:
The Bank has been actively advancing toward the
goal of “carbon peaking and carbon neutrality”.
Advocating green operations throughout its
operations, the Bank has implemented energy-
saving technologies to significantly reduce daily
water and electricity consumption in its offices.
Meanwhile, the Bank has made substantial strides
in digitizing its operations and management
practices. This includes increased investments
in developing various business and management
systems, aiming tat streamlining processes and
enhancing overall management efficiency.

(=) BRORERERRENERE

ii. Applying heat-insulating film to the glass
curtain wall of the Head Office building.

|IP
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ARG EZBE R E(=HAR

Improving key components and equipment
of the central air-conditioning system,
particularly air conditioning cooling water
towers.

XERTEHGARLXFAN_-O=-Z=ZF%®
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ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (continued)

3. ETREE
Employee Care
2023F1A

January 2023
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Workers from the Macao Health Bureau were
invited to administer flu shots to employees of
the Bank, not only facilitating staff members
in receiving influenza vaccinations but also
contributing to the prevention and control of
influenza epidemics in Macao.

2023574
July 2023

AOTEMFERBAITERETFRPIZRERT -
BROTHHETIHWRAE  FEEINRELERE
BEBTHNERENEBR

The Bank implemented a policy allowing
employees to enroll their children in its annual
health insurance program. This initiative covers
outpatient medical bills for employees’ children,
demonstrating the Bank’s care and concern for
its employees. By alleviating financial burdens on
employees’ families, this policy enhances their
overall well-being and fosters a greater sense of
belonging within the organization.

Tai Fung Bank Limited Annual Report 2023

2023%F6H£9A
June-September 2023
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The Bank assigned three employees to participate
in the “Alibaba Training and Internship Program
in Hangzhou for Youths in Macao”. This program,
co-organized by the Labour Affairs Bureau of
the Macao Special Administrative Region (SAR)
Government and Alibaba, was intended to advance
the development of modern financial services and
expand channels for talent cultivation. The Bank’s
participation was aimed at nurturing talented
individuals proficient in modern finance.

0 P BN P S T R RS (5 )
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2023F9H
September 2023
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The Bank responded actively to the call of the
Head Office of Bank of China (BOC) by sending
two employees to Beijing to participate in the
7-day “BOC Program for National Awareness
Enhancement”. This opportunity allowed young
staff to integrate China’s overall development,
broaden their horizons, expand their knowledge
base, and sharpen their professional skills.

13
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ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (continued)

2023F9A F12A
September—-December 2023

ATREGBEEBRFIESERG HIRH=UBT2
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ERFIBFATORE  BEABBRSERGEAAT ©

In response to the Macao Foundation’s initiative,
the Bank sent three employees to participate in the
“2023 Shanghai Learning and Practicing Program
for Young Talents from Macao”. This program
aimed to promote the development of young talents
from Macao into high-quality and well-rounded
professionals.

2023
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The Bank conducted 13 compliance training
courses for employees throughout the year to
strengthen their knowledge base of anti-corruption,
anti-money laundering and counter-terrorism
financing. These courses provided strong support
in enhancing employees’ legal literacy, raising
awareness of risk and integrity, and preventing
systemic financial risks.

2023%F12A

December 2023
BREFFERAIMESERAEATEHERE® - I
ARTEFE TEH KR RR BN ERB R
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To support the Macao SAR Government in fostering
a sense of patriotism and regional pride among
local residents, as well as in enhancing the sense
of identity and belonging among its young staff
toward both the country and Macao, the Bank sent
an employee on a four-day, three-night field visit to
Changsha.

2023
E—FNBREEASER  XKZBHET2MEHY
FRABREEXARNOEINRE ZEZMEXREER

E—FHRRTEEATHL AARBEEEXES
AT BHRMEAEHMER -

The Bank intensified its training of professional
talents by supporting and encouraging staff to
participate in courses on wealth management,
anti-money laundering, and other relevant topics,
as well as to obtain professional certifications. This
initiative expanded its professional talent pool and
trained skilled financial professionals for Macao,
thereby contributing to the development of modern
financial services in the region.

XERTEHGARLXFAN_-O=-Z=ZF%®
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ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (continued)

4. HEEE
Corporate Social Responsibilities
2023%F2H25H

25 February 2023
RITRELSABHRITEILZ ML AKXE2023/58) -

Recreation Club of Tai Fung Bank organized
employees to participate in the 2023 Winter Safety
Charity Campaign.
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2023454819H
19 April 2023

RATERFABBEASHRARENE —_E(ERMICF &
EE)2BIRE -
The Bank collaborated with the Macau University

of Science and Technology (MUST) to organize the
“2nd Seminar on Financial Crime and Regulation”.

Tai Fung Bank Limited Annual Report 2023

2023%3H28H
28 March 2023

ATARtTHE2EMmERHEES B
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EXAKEER EREEAARKAHBES
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The Bank held a meeting to convey the guiding
principle of the 14th National People’s Congress
(NPC) and the 14th Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference National Committee
(CPPCC National Committee). The meeting
featured on-site sharing by several key figures:
Chairman of the Supervisory Committee long
Weng lan, a delegate to the NPC from Macao;
Director Ip Sio Kai, a member of the CPPCC
National Committee from Macao; Director Ho Kevin
King Lun, a delegate to the NPC from Macao; and
Supervisor Mok Chi Wai, a member of the CPPCC
National Committee from Macao.

2023F4A278H
27 April 2023

XB2NENTBRAERN@RBERENSEE
REBBEAERQLEZY YEFHPEREMDEA
FEEERXREBWAEBE -

The Bank was invited to participate in the
“Strategic Cooperation Agreement Signing
Ceremony on Financial Assistance for Guangzhou’s
High-Quality Development”, organized by the
People’s Government of Guangzhou Municipality.
During the event, the Bank signed a strategic
cooperation agreement with the People’s
Government of Guangzhou Municipality and
Guangzhou Pharmaceutical Holdings.
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ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (continued)

2023458208
20 May 2023

ATHBET2BRAMBRRTEFERE S RO 2
RBEZXZ2HER]-

The Bank organized its staff members to visit
the “National Security Education Exhibition”, co-
organized by the Macao SAR Government and the
Liaison Office of the Central People’s Government
in the Macao S.A.R.

2023 6H20H
20 June 2023

AT EBEX R EREFERBINDB
ERMRFEIRVNZERSY  UEBARBLETHIRT
XoMRERAESRORA -

The Bank continued to support the “Career
Magnifier” series of visits organized by the
Education and Youth Development Bureau to help
local students understand the banking industry
and deepen their knowledge of modern finance.

2023%6A1H

1 June 2023

AITHRPFIHR A PR IT2023F N — R B A E
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The Bank and the Macao Daily News co-hosted the
“2023 Children’s Day Prize Quiz Award Ceremony”.

Y »,@F*Jesi *
2 R

2023%12H4H
4 December 2023

ATRRBETEERM T XBEMAIAEEAS8
17l

The Bank donated MOP150,000 in support of the
“Walk for a Million in Macao” activity.

XERTEHGARLXFAN_-O=-Z=ZF%®



28t & K E (&)

ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (continued)

2023%12HA5H

5 December 2023

KTREBH T EEBMATERABETRSEE - K
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ENEETF00ABEERETE-(RMARADES
— BPFIEABHMMAE) UWINFANDARERFE B
TH ZSERERHE " REAEBHAELE BB
- - HEEERNET MR EHRE BN
Bz -

The Bank donated MOP250,000 to the Macau
Tung Sin Tong Charitable Society in support of its
charitable initiatives. Additionally, the Bank also
presented 600 copies of the illustrated storybook
“Modern Macao Legends: Mr. Ho Yin, A Leader of
the Chinese Community of Macao” to the Tung Sin
Tong Primary School, in order to deepen children’s
understanding of the history of Macao and to
recognize the deeds of Mr. Ho Yin, a leader of
the Chinese community, who made contributions
to Macao and the motherland, thus feeling the
motherland’s care for Macao.

Tai Fung Bank Limited Annual Report 2023

2023%F12H10H
10 December 2023

RIT2EEFRZEBTIRZEY -

The Bank participated in the “Walk for a Million in
Macao” charitable event.

2023F12H12H
12 December 2023

The Bank held the inauguration ceremony for
Guangdong-Macao In-depth Cooperation Zone
in Henggin Sub-Branch. Upon establishment, the
sub-branch actively integrated into the building
of the financial innovation system for the Zone,
supporting its development with financial services,
reforms, and innovation. This initiative aims to
contribute to the integration of Macao into the
overall development of the country.

I%E;?ig/\ﬁ‘:'
(AEZER:-TTREW -
EERMEE)

BXEEERE BIAEHE -

Guests of honour

(From left to right: Ms. Jiang Xin, President of the
Bank, Mr. Ye Zhen, Deputy Director of the Zone
Office, Mr. Su Kun, Deputy Director of the Zone
Office, and Mr. Ho Carlos, Chairman of the Board
of Directors)
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ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (continued)

2023
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The Bank was awarded “2022 Decoration of
Honour — Silver Lotus” by the Macao SAR

Government.

2023

ATEBEE=-F2ALETEERINRNIBMEAEE
Batdll RRFIAWEFRHBAENTIERR B
NBRFBFRAMEFBEEEREIMENR -

For the third consecutive year, the Bank
participated in the “Professional Career Internship
Program” organized by the Labour Affairs Bureau.
This initiative provided opportunities for local
young people to experience the real labour market,
helping them to plan and prepare for their careers
in advance.

2023

i il 2 EE**I$5‘%)%A/7<FEJEP rEHEERE
mﬁﬂ ﬂi%——i P& KEE IO IF
Rl Wﬁmﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁo

The Bank participated in the “Pilot Trainee
Program” organized for the first time by the Labour
Affairs Bureau and the Association of Chinese
Enterprises in Macao. It selected six trainees as
part of its efforts to promote local employment in
Macao.

2023

AENXSM2EER REFNGTEMARBES -
BREBEMEERSE  SF=MAHRKRTE K2
E%ﬂﬂa?ﬁ%ﬂ‘%ﬁn%f%ﬂ HE - BN mE —
MAEXEEFE ROXETWASBERBSF
/E.\%‘H%T#\TSH%TE@FWII{’EH1 TR B E A
FREER  RERERMERMEERMB S -

Throughout the year, the Bank participated in 12
internship and training programs and large-scale
job fairs, including “Professional Career Internship
Program”, “Empowering Youth: The Spare Time
Enrichment Program”, “Summer Internship Program
for University Students”,” Pilot Trainee Program”,
“Setting Sail - Internship Program Across Four
Industries”, and “Banking Sector Targeted Talent
Development Program”. These initiatives provided
a total of 31 internship and training positions. As a
result, 17 interns were recruited, contributing to the
enhancement of local employment in Macao.

2023

SMBEPFIRE - BRAE - BIKRE -HHAEM

EEE K%/\ﬁfﬁﬁﬁﬂkﬁu’% 20234 f 43 R FT

Kﬁiﬁ‘fﬁiﬁifﬂﬁﬂﬂ ENEFREBES Kk
PR 3 B SR AR 1 Bjjjj

The Bank participated in the campus recruitment
fairs of the University of Macau, Macau University
of Science and Technology, Macao Polytechnic
University, City University of Macau, and University
of Saint Joseph (Macao). Additionally, it took part
in the “2023 Online Student Career and Internship
Fair in Macao and the Youth Career Expo”, aiming
to promote local employment opportunities in
Macao.

XERTEHGARLXFAN_-O=-Z=ZF%®
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HaEX

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

B WA

M B X
A B A

AR5 B R & WA
RS E R

R E AR A

o|

T RE E R EF]

FE (B8 RA
e (BR),aA

FET@JF T 45 A
R RIE R

FE G B & DR 2 TR A

B Wi AT (B 1), & A
PRSTE R,/ (BR)

AFEE(ER),EA

SFE27E1528 2 M 5E B AN BA 7% % 2 4B AR
D EERRBIBMKENRE R DEFE

EFHRMES -

HEZ

(BR4%5 RIEEBAIN -

OZ=f+ZA=+T—HLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2023

TREVH/RMITTIT)

(Amount in thousands of Macao Patacas, unless otherwise stated)

Interest income
Interest expense

Net interest income

Fee and commission
income

Fee and commission
expense

Net fee and commission
income

Net gain from trading and
other investment income
Other operating income

Operating income
Net charge of impairment

allowances of financial
assets

Net operating (loss)/income

Operating expense

Operating (loss)/profit

Net loss from disposal
of property, plant and
equipment

Share of profits after tax of
associates

(Loss)/profit before tax

Income tax credit/
(expense)

(Loss)/profit for the year

B 5 2023
Note

7 8,774,950

8 (6,003,911)

2,771,039

275,846

(47,311)

9 228,535

10 896,054

11 179,909

4,075,537

12 (4,857,330)

(781,793)

13 (815,613)

(1,597,406)

(20)

25 66,188

(1,531,238)

14 111,269

(1,419,969)

2022

6,125,039
(2,819,630)

3,305,409

290,850

(43,143)

247,707

78,136
243,133

3,874,385

(909,590)

2,964,795

(944,115)

2,020,680

(6)

60,916

2,081,590

(260,047)

1,821,543

The notes on pages 27 to 152 are an integral
part of these financial statements. Details of the

dividend paid or proposed and appropriation are
set out in note 15.

XERTEHGARLXFAN_-O=-Z=ZF%®



ZEHBRR

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE

INCOME

FE(ER),&EF

HEATEHIEE
BERANER:

EffERTITH

MAABEE AR
SARM AL
BT A

HEAEH 2 EE
BHERANER:

DRABENEARE
SPAE 2 E 2
E#TA

FE(E B = N Al E
% a8

g%

8
i

=

FERBARZEZE
Kz, (BE)

FERE(ER)
W i 48 EE

BHE-OZ=F+=-A=+—HILEE

(BR %5 Bl = AR 5 -

(Loss)/profit for the year

Items that will not
be reclassified
subsequently to
statement of profit or
loss:

Revaluation on bank
premises

Equity instruments
measured at fair
value through other
comprehensive income

Items that may
be reclassified
subsequently to
statement of profit or
loss:

Debt instruments measured

at fair value through other

comprehensive income

Share of other

comprehensive income of

associates

Currency translation
difference

Other comprehensive
income/(loss) for the
year, net of tax

Total comprehensive
(loss)/income for the
year

B 5
Note

25

For the year ended 31 December 2023

SREMH /BT TIT)
(Amount in thousands of Macao Patacas, unless otherwise stated)

2023 2022
(1,419,969) 1,821,543
7,888 48,588
113,207 (296,030)
121,095 (247,442)
356,449 (761,025)
356,449 (761,025)
13,167 -
(33,435) (146,554)
457,276  (1,155,021)
(962,693) 666,522

FTE2E 2 B AR B MKz 2 HKE The notes on pages 27 to 152 are an integral part
of these financial statements.

AN o

7]
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RZO—=F+=-_A=+—H
As at 31 December 2023

(BRERIGEERIN - @ BEMNHRRFMT T L)
(Amount in thousands of Macao Patacas, unless otherwise stated)

Rt 75 K L |

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

2023 2022
e +=B=+—B+-_A=+—H

Note 31 December 31 December

&E Assets
e k7 REE Cash and balances with

banks 16 6,796,427 5,297,750
FHREFSRMERB Deposits with AMCM 17 2,003,539 2,195,638
TR TR % & Placements with banks and

H & phig g other financial institutions 18 9,162,090 22,785,113

TRLIRE Financial investments 19 50,483,380 50,437,368
Bk HEAMIRE Advances and other

accounts 20 126,978,371 131,533,649
TEEMITHE Derivative financial

instruments 21 52,868 32,307
"EKE QA Investments in subsidiaries 24 11,000 11,000
"EHE N A Investments in associates 25 443,321 396,446
TEYE ~ BRI5 AR Property, plant and

equipment 27 4,042,910 4,130,845
"EMNEEE Investment properties 28 22,096 22,703
EERIEE E Deferred tax assets 34 92,474 -
HihEE Other assets 29 2,473,866 837,394
EE®RE Total assets 202,562,342 217,680,213
=i Liabilities
TR EMSEEE Deposits and balances of

TR K4 banks and other financial

institutions 30 38,909,440 44 973,561
BEPER Deposits from customers 31 136,983,196 140,156,850
BIIRERE Certificates of deposit in

issue 32 - 4,094,054
TESMIT A Derivative financial

instruments 21 4,498 11,498
EmmBEE Other liabilities 33 853,103 792,379
EFEMEARE Current tax liabilities 62,955 105,509
EEFRIBAE Deferred tax liabilities 34 - 60,025
®EaE Subordinated liabilities 35 2,065,757 1,998,200
BEHE Total liabilities 178,878,949 192,192,076
FEERER Equity
i% A% Share capital 36 1,500,000 1,500,000
IE A B Share premium 36 4,700,000 4,700,000
HEmEmT A Other equity instruments 36 2,729,500 2,729,500
EEHESD Regulatory reserves 37 3,621,000 830,097
EmFEEe Other reserves 38 5,054,466 4,662,574
REAB® Retained earnings 6,078,427 11,065,966
EamEm Total equity 23,683,393 25,488,137
EERFEEREAE Total liabilities and

equity 202,562,342 217,680,213

BER BHBESTR
Chairman Executive Director and President
Al & ¥ o
Ho, Carlos Jiang Xin

FTEIS2E 2B A HEX 2 HKE The notes on pages 27 to 152 are an integral part
7 e of these financial statements.

XERTEHGARLXFAN_-O=-Z=ZF%®



HREHR

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

RZOZ=%
—A—8H

A R
EMBBRERZ
EhEAEHK
KRR EENE
BEZHTA
Hi 2 H R 2
EREE

e HE 2 R AR
Hl 2 E R =

B EEE

PHEELRE

B
AR ERIEHA
Ho % T 3 2
5 1 2 8 9

T EREREEZ
me
EEREAR

RE-—O-——FF
25 AR AR B
EBE-_OZZFE
ZEBERKE
KE-_O—_=6F
ZERTEANE

R-—O=
+=A

%
+—8

At 1 January
2023

Loss for the year
Surplus on revaluation
of premises, net of tax
Financial investments
at fair value through
other comprehensive
income
Share of other
comprehensive
income of associates
Currency translation
difference

Total comprehensive
income

Release upon
disposal/redemption
of equity instruments
at fair value through
other comprehensive
income

Transfer from premises
revaluation reserve

Appropriation to
regulatory reserve,
net of tax

2022 dividend paid on
ordinary shares

2022 dividend paid on
preference shares

2023 interest paid on
capital instrument

At 31 December
2023

% 2=

Share
capital

1,500,000

1,500,000

B A< 3 1B

Share
premium

4,700,000

4,700,000

BHE_OZ_=F+"_A=1T-—HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2023

(BR %5 Bl = AR 5 -

CREMHRRMATTIT)

(Amount in thousands of Macao Patacas, unless otherwise stated)

Hit EE
EHZIA EES
Other
equity Regulatory
instruments reserves
2,729,500 830,097
- 2,790,903
2,729,500 3,621,000

Hit
HES RE B
Other Retained
reserves earnings
4,662,574 11,065,966
- (1,419,969)
7,888 -
469,656 -
13,167 =
(33,435) -

457,276 (1,419,969)

13,880 (13,880)

(79,264) 90,042

- (2,790,903)
- (364,309)
- (324,750)

- (163,770)

5,054,466 6,078,427

mat

Total

25,488,137

(1,419,969)

7,888

469,656

13,167

(33,435)

(962,693)

10,778

(364,309)
(324,750)

(163,770)

23,683,393

FTEIS2E 2B A HEX 2 HKE The notes on pages 27 to 152 are an integral part
of these financial statements.

AN o

7]
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HRBEEHXR(E)

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (continued)

R=-—O=—=#%
—A—H

AEE A F
EHBRRALZ
SHAEH
WARBERE
BEHEHFA
Htyz2ERE
ERIRE
ERMEEE

FEKEAHE

REE /TR

AREELFA
Hi2EKEZ
g 5

WTHERFERZ
o
EEREBAR

BITEN—RER
TA

RE-ZOZ—%E
Z2ERRRE

RKE-O-—4%F
ZERERRE

R-ZO=Z=#%
+=-A=+—H

At 1 January
2022

Profit for the year

Surplus on revaluation of
premises, net of tax

Financial investments at
fair value through other
comprehensive income

Currency translation
difference

Total comprehensive
income

Release upon disposal/
redemption
of equity instruments at
fair value through other
comprehensive income

Transfer from premises
revaluation reserve

Appropriation to
regulatory reserve,
net of tax

Issuance of additional tier
1 capital instrument

2021 dividend paid on
ordinary shares

2021 dividend paid on
preference shares

At 31 December
2022

R 7
Share

capital

1,500,000

1,500,000

BHE-OZ=F+-A=+—HILEE

(BR4%5 RIEEBAIN -

Hfth

A 5 (B BnIA
Other

Share equity
premium  instruments
4,700,000 -
- 2,729,500
4,700,000 2,729,500

EE Hfth
Gk Gk
Regulatory Other
reserves reserves
- 5,908,611

- 48,588

- (1,057,055)

- (146,554)

- (1,155,021)

- (14,294)

- (76,722)
830,097 -
830,097 4,662,574

For the year ended 31 December 2023

SEBNHR/BMITTIT)
(Amount in thousands of Macao Patacas, unless otherwise stated)

RE & B

Retained
earnings

10,655,358

1,821,543

1,821,543

14,294

87,408

(830,097)

(357,790)

(324,750)

11,065,966

st

Total

22,763,969

1,821,543

48,588

(1,057,055)

(146,554)

666,522

10,686

2,729,500
(357,790)

(324,750)

25,488,137

FTEIS2E 2B A HEX 2 HKE The notes on pages 27 to 152 are an integral part
of these financial statements.

AN o

7]
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
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BHE-OZ=F+=-A=+—HILEE

(Amount in thousands of Macao Patacas, unless otherwise stated)

(Loss)/profit before tax

Adjustments for non-cash
items:

Depreciation

Net charge of impairment
allowances

Distribution of financial
instruments

Dividend income from
investments in subsidiaries

Net loss from disposal of
property, plant and equipment

Share of results of associates

Interest income arising from
financial assets

Interest expense arising from
financial liabilities

Changes in operating assets
and liabilities
Decrease in deposits with AMCM

Increase in deposits with PBOC

(Increase)/decrease in
placements and deposits with
banks and other financial
institutions with original maturity
over three months

(Increase)/decrease in derivatives
financial instruments

Decrease/(increase) in advances
and other accounts

(Increase)/decrease in other
assets

(Decrease)/increase in deposits
and balances of banks and
other financial institutions

Decrease in deposits from
customers

Increase/(decrease) in other
liabilities

Exchange difference

Cash used in operations

Income tax paid

Interest received
Interest paid

Net cash flows used in
operating activities

B 5
Note

27,28
12
10

25

For the year ended 31 December 2023
(B 45 Al XA A

CREMHRRMATTIT)

2023

(1,531,238)

174,575

4,857,330
(768,557)
(170,000)

20
(66,188)

(8,774,950)
6,003,911

180,927
(38,567)

(992,292)

(27,561)
1,066,255

(1,636,472)

(6,194,466)
(3,621,608)

98,339
(136,558)

(11,577,100)
(84,412)

8,116,373
(5,294,631)

(8,839,770)

2022

2,081,590

168,613
909,590
60,002

(230,000)

6
(60,916)

(6,125,039)
2,819,630

197,690
(28,212)

74,883

9,427
(6,009,552)

12,814

13,632,470
(12,734,848)

(491,793)
85,225

(5,628,420)
(352,605)

5,425,137
(2,265,958)

(2,821,846)

FTEIS2E 2B A HEX 2 HKE The notes on pages 27 to 152 are an integral part
of these financial statements.
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BHE-_OZ=F+-"A=+—HLFE
IE ﬁ s E § ( E ) 4 For the year ended 31 December 2023
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)
(BR¥FRIFEEASN - @B ELIHR/RFTTT)
(Amount in thousands of Macao Patacas, unless otherwise stated)

Bt 5E 2023 2022
Note
REXBEHZ Cash flows from investing

RERE activities

I HX KEBEBEHH Distribution received from
7 B perpetual bonds 154,024 304,750
H&HX LIREERNEIDN Distribution received from

iR/ ROy subsidiaries and associates 202,480 153,336
KRERERESKRE Distribution received from

7 o B stocks and funds 257,959 287,061
BATHE - BN Purchase of property,

Bl plant and equipment (77,425) (45,191)
BEoRKRE Purchase of financial investments (18,489,432) (27,366,697)
HEXBERSRIKE Proceeds from sale or

Fr 15 518 redemption of financial

investments 9,374,468 31,553,643
REXKEE Net cash flows (used in)/

(FiA)/ EEz generated from investing

REeEREFE activities (8,577,926) 4,886,902
MEXKTEZ Cash flows from financial

RERE activities
BT REBRE Proceeds from issuance of

certificates of deposit 10,355,377 9,103,566
FE Bl 17 338 P K Payment for redemption of

certificates of deposit (14,554,313) (10,394,453)
BITHMERTHE Proceeds from issuance of

other equity instruments 36 - 2,729,500
BTREBEMS Proceeds from issuance of

subordinated liabilities 35 2,060,000 -
BEEEAGMNR Payment for redemption of

subordinated liabilities (1,998,200) -
A BR B Dividends paid (852,829) (682,540)
MEEKETE Net cash flows (used in)/

(FiA),/ EXxZ generated from financing

REeEREFE activities (4,989,965) 756,073
ReRERELEHZ Net (decrease)/increase in

(R &) /% hn % &8 cash

and cash equivalents (22,407,661) 2,821,129
R—A—BzH&k Cash and cash equivalents

ERIREIEE at 1 January 43,027,111 40,346,331
ReRERRELIEH Exchange differences in respect

ZHONEEYTE & of cash and cash equivalents 28,553 (140,349)
R+=-—A=+—H%2 Cash and cash equivalents

RekERHRLEHR at 31 December 39 20,648,003 43,027,111

%%im%f%?MEELMﬁé
EHRAR - F27TEIS2E 2 T B A
RZMEKED o

REH The 2022 comparative figures have been restated
81 # ¥  to conform to current year’s presentation. The notes
on pages 27 to 152 are an integral part of these

financial statements.

F
5 ¥

XERTEHGARLXFAN_-O=-Z=ZF%®
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(Amount in thousands of Macao Patacas, unless otherwise stated)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. —REH 1. General information
RNERITRHBRAA(LATE B Tai Fung Bank Limited (the “Bank”) is
RITDREFGEMAK T & mEE - a financial institution incorporated and
A RRFAFOFEREERES domiciled in Macau. The registered office
A8 K BIRITHITRE ° of the Bank is located at Tai Fung Bank

Headquarter Building, 418 Alameda Dr. Carlos
d’Assumpcéao, Macau.
RBITEBRFRHERT R NAE
AR 7% o The principal activities of the Bank are the
provision of banking, financial and other
related services.

RRITZERRARBR P EARHK
ME(FEDEFRAXZORHDERA The Bank’s holding company is Bank of China
A — FRERITRGHOBR AR (HER Limited (“BOC”), a joint stock company with
71 - limited liability incorporated in The People’s
Republic of China (“PRC”).
RITEFELBRIMR DT - BEM The Bank has established two branches in
DATHL AR R BN OB & 8 0T 78 B the PRC. The address of the Guangzhou
1815% + L #01-09F + £ )8 H 17 # b Branch is Room 01-09, Floor 19, No.181
R/REBTEHEERP LR —K235E418 Yanjiang Xi Road, Yuexiu District, Guangzhou.
401-404 - 406  408A = ° The address of the Shanghai Branch is
Room 401-404, 406, 408A, Floor 4, No.23
Zhongshan Dong Yi Road, Huangpu District,
Shanghai.
2. EXRETHXEE 2. Summary of significant accounting
policies
AREERNBEREZIESH KT The principal accounting policies applied in
HBWM T o BUERIGEREIN  ZEe: the preparation of these financial statements
BEHE - ERRAEY ~ 28 are set out below. These policies have
EERZSR o been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.
KT B RENPHECRMEEZS The financial statements of the Bank have
Bl o W AREERE M P E TR A been prepared in both Chinese and English
TBAR FECA IFER AR AL - languages. When there is any discrepancy in
interpretation between the Chinese version
and English version of the statements, the
Chinese version shall prevail.
NEITHEBBREELEERAE T+ — A The financial year for the Bank ends on 31
=+—B&&EH] - December (“reporting date”).

Tai Fung Bank Limited Annual Report 2023 o7
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RA %5 & &% Pt 5F (48)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(continued)

2. EXRENERXBEE)
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(B RIGERASN - B RRF T T IT)

(Amount in thousands of Macao Patacas, unless otherwise stated)

Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Financial
Reporting Standards promulgated by the
Macau Special Administrative Region under
Administrative Regulation No. 44/2020 on 27
March 2020 (“MFRS”).

The preparation of these financial statements
in conformity with MFRS requires the use
of certain critical accounting estimates.
It also requires management to exercise
its judgement in the process of applying
the Bank’s accounting policies. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgement or
complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the financial
statements are disclosed in note 3.

These financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost
convention, as modified by the revaluation
of financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income, financial assets
and financial liabilities (including derivative
financial instruments) at fair value through
profit or loss, precious metals at fair value,
and premises which are carried at fair
value or revalued amount less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses.

In addition, the Bank has availed itself
of the exemption election from IFRS 10
“Consolidated financial statements” (“IFRS
10”) that permits an entity to prepare separate
financial statements. The Bank is a partially-
owned subsidiary of BOC, a listed bank in
Hong Kong Stock Exchange Limited which
produces consolidated financial statements
available for public use that comply with
International Financial Reporting Standards.
BOC is domiciled in the PRC, with its head
office located at 1 Fuxingmen Nei Dajie,
Beijing 100818 PRC. The consolidated
financial statements of BOC are publicly
available from this address. All shareholders
of the Bank have been informed and do
not object to the Bank not presenting
consolidated financial statements.
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2.1

2.2

(BRI EERASN - BT AR T T T

(Amount in thousands of Macao Patacas, unless otherwise stated)

Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

Basis of preparation (continued)

Given the above, these financial statements
are not prepared for the purposes of
compliance with IFRS 10 included in the
MFRS. As a result, the financial statements do
not give all the information required by IFRS
10 about the economic activities of the group
of which the Bank is the parent. Furthermore,
as these financial statements are prepared in
respect of the Bank’s economic activities only,
disclosures required by IFRS 12 “Disclosure
of Interests in Other Entities” in the MFRS
have not been made.

Income and expense

Interest income and expense

Interest income and expense for all financial
instruments are recognised in ‘Interest
income’ and ‘Interest expense’ respectively in
the statement of profit and loss.

The effective interest rate is the rate that
discounts estimated future cash payments
or receipts through the expected life
of the financial instrument to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset (i.e.
its amortised cost before any impairment
allowance) or to the amortised cost of
financial liability. When calculating the
effective interest rate, the Bank estimates
cash flows considering all contractual terms
of the financial instrument but excluding future
credit losses. The calculation includes all
amounts paid or received by the Bank that are
an integral part of the effective interest rate of
a financial instrument, including transaction
costs and all other premiums or discounts.

For financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired (“Stage 37), the
interest income is calculated by applying
the effective interest rate to their amortised
cost (i.e. net of the expected credit loss
allowance).
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2.3

(B RIGERASN - B RRF T T IT)

(Amount in thousands of Macao Patacas, unless otherwise stated)

Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

Income and expense (continued)

Non-interest income and expense

The Bank earns fee and commission income
from a diverse range of services it provides
to its customers. For those services that
are provided over a period of time, fee and
commission income is accrued in accordance
with the terms and conditions of the service
agreement. For other services, fee and
commission income is recognised when the
transactions are completed.

Dividend income from financial asset is
recognised when the right to receive payment
is established.

Non-interest expenses are charged to profit or
loss during the reporting period in which they
are incurred.

Subsidiaries and associates
Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities over which
the Bank has the power to govern the
financial and operating policies generally
accompanying a shareholding of more
than half of the voting rights. The existence
and effect of potential voting rights that
are currently exercisable or convertible are
considered when assessing whether the Bank
controls another entity.

In the Bank’s statement of financial position,
the investments in subsidiaries are stated at
cost less allowance for impairment losses,
unless it is classified as held for sale (or
included in a disposal group that is classified
as held for sales). The results of subsidiaries
are accounted for by the Bank on the basis of
dividends received and receivable. Dividend
income from subsidiaries is recognised in the
statement of profit and loss when the right to
receive payment is established.
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2. EXSTHTHREREGE) 2. Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)
2.3 MEBARKRBE AT (&) 2.3 Subsidiaries and associates
(continued)
=N Associates
BEARIREARTHEAEARATLE Associates are all entities over which the
EmEHENMEERE  —MBEZX Bank has significant influence but no control,
EHE20% E50% 1 EHE 2 RHE - generally accompanying a shareholding of

between 20% and 50% of the voting rights.

RBTHBERNRNRERERRY Investments in associates are accounted for
MIRERAGE UWHRBEDREENT using the equity method of accounting and
RE BRIFZRERBEHESBARAFH are initially recognised at cost, unless it is
E(HBPREGFHEZEEHEGN) - classified as held for sale (or included in a
disposal group that is classified as held for
sale).
RIPITHEEBZE R AE REERF The Bank’s share of the post-acquisition
e R E A &Y ﬁ%)\’é WamsEE - kR profits or losses of associates is recognised in
EEANBRELENBEACKEES the statement of profit and loss, and its share
VAR EXNAFAEEERE QA of post-acquisition movements in reserves
& H éiﬂ’]%ﬁ;ﬁr%@) c BRIEARIRITE is recognised in reserves. The accumulated
RBERNTARBEBEIERHBANE post-acquisition movements are adjusted
cral EE'J$§E THEBRENRE QT against the cost of the investment. When the
BENEREK  BUAREREEER Bank’s share of losses in an associate equals
R o or exceeds its interest in the associate, the
Bank does not recognise further losses unless
the Bank has incurred obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associates.
RIPTHBELEARABAISHARERK Unrealised gains on transactions between the
WMIEARNRITEMMEE R R ) R Bank and its associates are eliminated to the
THE RIIXFIRBETEEEED extent of the Bank’s interest in the associates.
BHERENEE TAREREBXD Unrealised losses are also eliminated

4 8 o unless the transaction provides evidence of
impairment of the asset transferred.

EHBEATNERRSEZENR If the ownership interest in an associate is
B RERKMEAFTEEEMEE reduced but significant influence is retained,
WamAERNeEETDEEERR only a proportionate share of the amounts
HIREBAHBNA - previously recognised in other comprehensive

income are reclassified to the statement of
profit or loss or retained earnings, where
appropriate.
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2.4

(B RIGERASN - B RRF T T IT)

(Amount in thousands of Macao Patacas, unless otherwise stated)

Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

Foreign currency translation

Functional and presentation currency

The functional currency of the Bank’s
operations is Macao patacas (“MOP”). ltems
included in the financial statements of each of
the Bank’s operations in Mainland China are
measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity
operates (the “functional currency”). The
presentation currency of the Bank is MOP.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of
the transactions. Foreign exchange gains
and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the translation at
reporting date exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the statement of
profit or loss.

Translation differences on monetary securities
held at fair value through profit or loss are
reported as part of the fair value gain or
loss. Changes in the fair value of monetary
securities denominated in foreign currency
classified as fair value through other
comprehensive income are analysed between
translation differences resulting from changes
in the amortised cost of the securities
and other changes in the carrying amount
of the securities. Translation differences
related to changes in the amortised cost are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss,
and other changes in the carrying amount are
recognised in the statement of comprehensive
income.

Translation differences on non-monetary
items, such as equities held at fair value
through profit or loss, are reported as part
of the fair value gain or loss. Translation
differences on non-monetary financial assets,
such as equities classified as fair value
through other comprehensive income, are
included in the statement of comprehensive
income.
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2.5

2.6

(BRI EERASN - BT AR T T T

(Amount in thousands of Macao Patacas, unless otherwise stated)

Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

Foreign currency translation
(continued)

Foreign operation

The functional currency of certain overseas
branches is currency other than MOP. The
statement of financial position of the entity
is translated into MOP at the exchange
rates prevailing at the reporting date and
its statement of profit or loss is translated
into MOP at exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. The resulting
exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in
the other reserves.

Cash and cash equivalents

The effect of exchange rate changes on cash
and cash equivalents is presented individually
in the statement of cash flows.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair
value on the date the derivative contract
is entered into and are subsequently re-
measured at fair value. Fair values are
obtained from quoted market prices in active
markets, including recent market transactions,
and through the use of valuation techniques,
including discounted cash flow models and
option pricing models, as appropriate. All
derivatives are carried as assets when fair
value is positive and as liabilities when fair
value is negative.

All derivatives of the Bank are categorised as
held for trading and changes in their fair value
are recognised immediately in the statement
of profit or loss.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
offset and the net amount is reported in the
statement of financial position when there
is a legally enforceable right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis, or realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously.
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2.7

(B RIGERASN - B RRF T T IT)

(Amount in thousands of Macao Patacas, unless otherwise stated)

Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

Financial assets

The Bank classifies its financial assets into
one of the following measurement categories
at initial recognition as subsequently
measured at: fair value through profit or
loss (“FVPL"), amortised cost (“AC”) and fair
value through other comprehensive income
(“FVOCI”). The classification depends on
the Bank’s business model for managing its
financial instruments and the contractual cash
flow characteristics of the instruments, or
the election of fair value option. All financial
assets are recognised initially at fair value.
Except for financial assets carried at FVPL,
all transaction costs of financial assets are
included in their initial carrying amounts.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives
are considered in their entirety when
determining whether their cash flows are
solely payment of principal and interest.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss

These assets are recognised initially at fair
value, with transaction costs taken directly
to profit or loss, and are subsequently re-
measured at fair value.

Gains and losses of such assets are reported
in net gain from trading and other investment
income.

Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets are classified as
subsequently measured at AC if both of the
following conditions are met: (1) the financial
assets are held with the objective to hold
financial assets in order to collect contractual
cash flows (“hold-to-collect” business model),
and (2) the contractual terms of the financial
asset give rise to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding on specified
dates.

XERTEHGARLXFAN_-O=-Z=ZF%®



RA %5 3 2% P 5E (#8)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(continued)

2. EXRENERXBEE)

2.7 sREEE)
NEBBREA B 2 EE(E)

mﬁ@@AFAA/FEMLE&W
AR ZERETNG AR
E%ﬂ%%ﬁ%%%ﬁ$ﬁ@ﬂ@%
KAFRERT 2 - B I (8 8 35 0 A
S 12 BRE R A BOR A B iR
EE%*°LE%¢%%‘V&&H
BEEENKRGEIBRERaTESR -

U BEFEBAZEGFTAEME

E W w2 & B EE

a0 e LA T e fE g A E'J1$$
MRURNABEETEBRE @J

xir@ﬂﬁ%m%”ﬂlﬁié?’]fﬁi\
EF’;HWT—;E @ ZzmeE
KIERIEET
KeFKEER

BEHELENE S
$iﬁ%%ﬁi2ﬂ

=

It
B

Nl

N
VI

ol
i

N S i s b
Bl

Bk

|
-

mmﬁl:ﬁ)mﬁﬂﬂﬂ

i >
SIS NS
T S W R
ﬁmﬂwm;
w>m%@
+H

%Qﬁ*
>

2 b
2

r‘-!]]'_‘_‘

cl

&4

o
N s

o

Yoy R B O B W E
= I vl ¥
T/

oy

E=113
e
piil]
E\
|

Tai Fung Bank Limited Annual Report 2023

: puise)]

T2
o
e mAEERE S SRAR
i

° JDLD>EE

E’Jiﬁ

ERHEEFHFAHEME
BENAARBENEER
)EHLTT%}]ﬁAﬁEWL/'
%Zgﬁri"-;x:/i\
“ﬂiﬁﬁ?EEZ?KE\
Tz:zﬁﬁ R 2 E W am R
?Zﬁﬂzﬁﬁuujzﬂﬁ
R HE 25 R ) R 5 5
7 N o HEB TR E
1R R E R A BORET

2.7

(BRI EERASN - BT AR T T T

(Amount in thousands of Macao Patacas, unless otherwise stated)

Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Financial assets at amortised cost (continued)

They are initially recognised at fair value plus
any directly attributable transaction costs
and are subsequently measured at AC using
the effective interest method less allowances
for impairment losses. Interest income which
includes the amortisation of premium or
discount is calculated using the effective
interest method and is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss, gains or losses are
recognised in profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised, modified or impaired.

Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income

Debt instruments are classified as
subsequently measured at FVOCI if both
of the following conditions are met: (1) the
financial assets are held with the objective of
both holding to collect contractual cash flows
and selling, and (2) the contractual terms of
the financial assets give rise to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding
on specified dates.

Financial assets at FVOCI are initially
recognised at fair value plus any directly
attributable transaction costs, and are
subsequently measured at fair value.
Unrealised gains or losses arising from
changes in the fair value of the financial
assets are recognised directly in the
statement of comprehensive income, until the
financial asset is derecognised or impaired
at which time the accumulated gain or loss
previously recognised in equity should be
transferred to the statement of profit or loss.
However, interest income which includes
the amortization of premium and discount is
calculated using the effective interest method
and is recognised in the statement of profit or
loss.
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(B RIGERASN - B RRF T T IT)

(Amount in thousands of Macao Patacas, unless otherwise stated)

Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income (continued)

For equity instruments, an irrevocable
election can be made at initial recognition
to recognise unrealised and realised fair
value gains or losses in the statement of
comprehensive income without subsequent
reclassification of fair value gains or losses
to the statement of profit or loss even upon
disposal, when it meets the definition of an
equity instrument under IAS 32 Financial
Instruments: Presentation (“IAS 32”).

Dividends on equity instruments classified as
FVOCI are recognised in net gain from trading
and other investment income when the Bank’s
right to receive payment is established. Equity
instruments designated at FVOCI are not
subject to impairment assessment.

Financial liabilities

Deposits, certificates of deposit in issue,
together with subordinated liabilities and other
liabilities, are carried at AC. Any difference
(if available) between proceeds net of
transaction costs and the redemption value is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss
over the period using the effective interest
method.

Repurchase agreements

Securities and bills sold to a counterparty
with an obligation to repurchase at a pre-
determined price on a specified future date,
referred to as “Repos”.

Repos are initially recognised as deposits
and balances of banks and other financial
institutions, at the actual amount of cash
received from the counterparty. Financial
assets given as collateral for repurchase
agreements are not derecognised and
are recorded as financial investments.
The difference between the sale and the
repurchase price is recognised as interest
expense over the life of the agreements using
the effective interest method.
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(BRI EERASN - BT AR T T T

(Amount in thousands of Macao Patacas, unless otherwise stated)

Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

Financial guarantee contracts and
undrawn loan commitments

Financial guarantee contracts are contracts
that require the issuer to make specified
payments to reimburse the holder for a loss
it incurs because a specified debtor fails to
make payments when due, in accordance with
the terms of a contract between the holder
and the debtor.

Financial guarantee contracts are initially
recognised as financial liabilities at fair
value on the date the guarantees were
given. Subsequent to initial recognition, the
Bank’s liabilities under such guarantees are
measured at the higher of (1) an ECL provision
as set out in note 2.13 and (2) the amount
initially recognised less, where appropriate,
accumulated amortisation recognised over
the life of the guarantee on a straight-line
basis. Any changes in the liability relating to
financial guarantee contracts are taken to the
statement of profit or loss.

Undrawn loan commitments are commitments
under which, over the duration of the
commitment, the Bank is required to provide a
loan with pre-specified terms to the customer.
These contracts are in the scope of the ECL
requirements as set out in note 2.13.

The ECL provision for financial guarantees
and loan commitments are reported under
“Other liabilities” in the financial statements.

Recognition, derecognition, modification
and write-off of financial instruments

Initial recognition

The Bank recognises a financial asset or
financial liability in its statement of financial
position when the Bank becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instrument.
Regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on the settlement date.
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(Amount in thousands of Macao Patacas, unless otherwise stated)

Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

Recognition, derecognition,
modification and write-off of financial
instruments (continued)

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when
the rights to receive cash flows from the
investments have expired, or when a financial
asset is transferred, the Bank has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership, or when the Bank neither transfers
nor retains substantially all risks or rewards of
ownership of the financial asset but has not
retained control of the financial asset.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when
they are extinguished — that is, when the
obligation is discharged, cancelled or
expired.

Modiification

When the contractual cash flow of
financial instruments measured at AC or
FVOCI are renegotiated or modified, the
modified contractual cash flow should be
discounted using the original effective
interest rate, and compared with the original
amortised cost before impairment. If the
difference is material, the original financial
instrument should be derecognised and
then re-recognised with the present value
aforementioned. Otherwise, the difference is
adjusted to the original carrying value and
accounted for in the profit or loss.

Write off

When the Bank determines that a financial
asset has no reasonable prospect of recovery
after the Bank has taken necessary actions
and necessary proceedings, the financial
asset is written off, in whole or in part,
against its allowance for impairment losses.
If in a subsequent period the loan written off
is recovered, the amount recovered will be
recognised in profit or loss captured within
impairment losses on financial assets.
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Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

Fair value measurement of financial
instruments

The fair value of financial instruments is
based on their quoted market prices, where
available, at the reporting date without any
deduction for estimated future selling costs.

If there is no publicly available latest traded
price nor a quoted market price on a
recognised stock exchange or a price from
a broker/dealer for non-exchange traded
financial instruments or if the market for it
is not active, the fair value of the instrument
is estimated using valuation techniques
that provide a reliable estimate of prices
which could be obtained in actual market
transactions.

Where discounted cash flow techniques are
used, estimated future cash flows are based
on management’'s best estimates and the
discount rate used is a market rate at the
reporting date applicable for an instrument
with similar terms and conditions. Where other
pricing models are used, inputs are based on
market data at the reporting date.

The Bank’s details of valuation of financial
instruments is depicted in note 6.

Impairment of financial assets

At the reporting date, the Bank assesses
and recognises the relevant impairment
allowances for financial assets measured at
AC, debt instruments measured at FVOCI,
account receivables and loan commitments
and financial guarantee contracts on the basis
of expected credit losses (“ECL”).

Financial assets measured at FVPL, including
units in debt instruments, funds, equity
instruments, equity instruments classified
at FVOCI (non-recycling) and derivative
financial assets, are not subject to the ECL
assessment.
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(Amount in thousands of Macao Patacas, unless otherwise stated)

Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

Impairment of financial assets
(continued)

Measurement of ECL

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of
credit losses. Credit losses are measured
as the present value of all expected cash
shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the
cash flows due to the Bank in accordance
with the contract and the cash flows that the
Bank expects to receive).

For undrawn loan commitments and financial
guarantee contracts outstanding, expected
cash shortfalls are measured as the difference
between (1) the contractual cash flows that
would be due to the Bank if the holder/
beneficiary of the loan commitment/financial
guarantee draws down/claims on the loan/
financial guarantee, and (2) the cash flows
that the Bank expects to receive if the loan is
drawn down/financial guarantee is claimed.

The expected cash shortfalls are discounted
where the effect of discounting is material.
The maximum period considered when
estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual
period over which the Bank is exposed to
credit risk. Where the financial instrument
such as revolving credit facilities includes
both a drawn and undrawn commitment, ECL
is measured over the period that the Bank
remains exposed to credit risk that is not
mitigated by management actions in respect
of credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Bank takes into
account reasonable and supportable
information that is available. This includes
information about past events, current
conditions and forecasts of future economic
conditions.

According to the changes of credit risk of
financial assets since initial recognition, the
Bank calculates ECL by three stages:

— Stage 1: Financial assets without
significant increases in credit risk since
initial recognition are included under
Stage 1 to calculate their impairment
allowance at an amount equivalent to
the ECL of the financial instruments for
the next 12 months;

XERTEHGARLXFAN_-O=-Z=ZF%®
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2. EXSTHTHREREGE) 2. Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

213 eRMEERE(H) 2.13 Impairment of financial assets
(continued)

BRI s FIEX i E () Measurement of ECL (continued)

— S_ER - BVREREEAR —  Stage 2: Financial assets that have had
LEERN BHEFTBREE a significant increase in credit risk since
BHERmEEMNARR - &R initial recognition but have no objective
ZeRmIAEEREFEBANTES evidence of impairment are included
CHREXNEFEAREE under Stage 2, with their impairment
1 allowance measured at an amount

equivalent to the ECL over the lifetime of
the financial instruments;

—  Stage 3: Financial assets with objective

— SB-RR - EAEAFEEZTER evidence of impairment at the reporting
BEEBENCREEMARE= date are included under Stage 3, with
ERZemEERETFEH their impairment allowance measured at
EFHERBELAN BT EER an amount equivalent to the ECL over
BEEH - the lifetime of the financial assets.

HRA— S HEAELEBEERNS Where, in the previous accounting period,

MEEREFEHANBHEAEX the impairment allowance of a financial asset

WESBAETREEE BEEHE was measured based on the ECL of the

EH ZeMmEECITEHBERENS instrument over the entire lifetime, and while,

RECEHARBBEZEEMOBELY - at the current reporting date, such financial

RARITEEMAEEBRBEE N KK asset is no longer regarded as experiencing

TZEARNBEHERBRANSETE a significant increase in credit risk since its

ZeRMEENBEBELER - initial recognition, the Bank measures the

impairment allowance of the financial asset
as at the reporting date using the ECL of the
instrument over the next 12 months.

HRBEIURENEZAERABEN For purchased or originated credit-impaired

TREE ARTELEEREHBY financial assets, the Bank only recognises the

EREREEREFELANBHRERAELX cumulative changes in lifetime expected credit

WMBAEHERRBRER £ losses since initial recognition at the reporting

HEA O ARTEEBEREGFEHANEH date as an impairment allowance. At each

ERABXNEHSHBERBMEBR KK reporting date, the Bank recognises in profit

MSFFAEHER - or loss the amount of the change in lifetime

expected credit losses as an impairment gain
or loss.

EEEHERABEAE X AFEH When measuring ECL, an entity need not

AT —RIBEBEAMBR - Al KNiR necessarily identify every possible scenario.

TERBRMEABRELENTREER However, the Bank considers the risk or

T EERERR (B34 probability that a credit loss occurs by

ERABAOITRELEREK)  REEEH reflecting the possibility that a credit loss

BRBEEMRARIME - BHERE occurs and the possibility that no credit loss

KtEPMERAN2E - RERMGE occurs, even if the possibility of a credit

B - 2R M5E41 0 loss occurring is very low. The parameters,

assumptions and estimation techniques used
in measuring the ECL are disclosed in note
41.
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(Amount in thousands of Macao Patacas, unless otherwise stated)

Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries,
associates, and non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life or
are not yet available for use are not subject
to amortisation and are tested annually for
impairment. Other assets are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognised for the amount
by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds
its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value
less costs to sell and value in use. For the
purposes of assessing impairment, assets are
grouped at the lowest levels for which there
are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-
generating units). Non-financial assets other
than goodwill that suffered an impairment
are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at each reporting date.

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or
buildings which are owned or held under a
leasehold interest to earn rental income and/
or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are stated in the
statement of financial position at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment
loss. Rental income from investment
properties, and any gain or loss arising from
the retirement or disposal of an investment
property is recognised in the statement of
profit or loss.

Depreciation charge is calculated using the
straight line method to write off the cost of
investment properties, less their estimated
residual values, if any, over their estimated
useful lives. Estimated useful lives for
investment properties are the same as those
for Bank premises as shown in note 2.16.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to
the asset’s carrying amount only when it
is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Bank
and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance
costs are charged to the statement of profit
and loss during the financial period in which
they are incurred.
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Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment comprise bank
premises and furniture, fixtures and equipment.
Property, plant and equipment are recognised
initially at cost. Cost comprises purchase cost,
and any directly attributable costs bringing the
assets to the condition for their intended use.

Subsequent to initial recognition, bank
premises are carried at fair value, based on
valuations by external independent valuers,
less subsequent depreciation and any
impairment losses for bank premises excluding
freehold land portion of bank premises.
Valuations are performed with sufficient
regularity with an interval to ensure that the
fair value of a revalued asset does not differ
materiality from its carrying amount at the
reporting date.

Any accumulated depreciation at the date of
revaluation is eliminated against the gross
carrying amount of the asset, and the net
amount is restated to the revalued amount of
the asset. All furniture, fixtures and equipment,
and motor vehicles are stated at historical
cost less accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses.

Subsequent costs are included in the
asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a
separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Bank
and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced
part is derecognised. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged to the statement
of profit or loss during the financial period in
which they are incurred.

Increases in the carrying amount arising on
revaluation of bank premises are credited
to the premises revaluation reserve in
shareholders’ equity. Decreases that offset
previous increases of the same asset are
debited against revaluation reserve directly
in equity; all other decreases are charged
to the statement of profit or loss. Each year
the difference between depreciation based
on the revalued carrying amount of the asset
charged to the statement of profit or loss, and
depreciation based on the asset’s original
cost is transferred from premises revaluation
reserve to retained earnings.
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2. EXSTHTHREREGE) 2. Summary of significant accounting

policies (continued)

216 TBE - BZANRME (E) 2.16 Property, plant and equipment (continued)
KAERE LM - UGS ARBHME Freehold land and leasehold land under
WHAERE WEUNEGEE BEE private or government tenure without limitation
ZRABEBREHBEREND N EFAA of time are not depreciated. Depreciation
FRAEH: is calculated using the straight-line method

to allocate their costs or revalued amounts
to their residual values over their estimated
useful lives, as follows:

KAXEBLIHWEBNT BERE Freehold land and leasehold  Not depreciated
sk Al AR B 8L FE 3 land under private or

government tenure without
limitation of time

WITITHE BEHEHESHKET Bank premises (other than Lesser of period
(bt £ Er 5N FWMEIRE above lands) of lease or 50
) years
B BBERBAE ZZFZ=+F Furniture, fixtures and office  3-20 years
B equipment
BIEE =2 N\F Computer equipment 3-8 years
"E AERF Motor vehicles 5-6 years
BEZFHEBERTERFEFHRNG -4 The assets’ residual values and useful lives
EREFRE  WHEESRHETER - are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at
each reporting date.
EEAEZREERNEMGF AT KEE An asset’s carrying amount is written down
EF EEEEMBREATEKEE - immediately to its recoverable amount if the
asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount.
217 B8 2.17 Precious metal
EcEREE: HRREMESE - Precious metals comprise gold, silver and
EeBUNERABEEVHRERME] other precious metals. Precious metals are
B -BEeBEBRETHMBEEBRME initially recognised and subsequently re-
ErzBmESBEE BEEREMEE measured at fair value. Mark-to-market gains

WA e or losses on precious metals are included in
other operating income.
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(Amount in thousands of Macao Patacas, unless otherwise stated)

Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

Leases

Operating leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the
risks and rewards of ownership are retained
by the lessor are classified as operating
leases. Payments made under operating
leases (net of any incentives received from
the lessor) are expensed in the statement of
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
period of the lease.

Where the Bank is a lessor, rental income
from operating leases is recognised in “other
operating income” on a straight-line basis
over the lease term.

Finance leases

Leases where the Bank has substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership are
classified as finance leases. Finance leases
are capitalised at the lease’s commencement
at the lower of fair value of the leased
property and the present value of the
minimum lease payments.

Each lease payment is allocated between
the liability and finance charges. The
corresponding rental obligations, net of
finance charges, are included in other
liabilities. The interest element of the finance
cost is charged to the statement of profit or
loss over the lease period so as to produce
a constant periodic rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability for each
period.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise
balances with less than three months’ maturity
from the date of acquisition including cash,
balances with banks and other financial
institutions, treasury bills, other eligible bills
and certificates of deposits.

Dividends

Dividends proposed or declared after the
reporting date are disclosed as a post
reporting date event and not recognised as a
liability at the reporting date.
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2.21

2.22

(B RIGERASN - B RRF T T IT)

(Amount in thousands of Macao Patacas, unless otherwise stated)

Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Bank has
a present legal or constructive obligation as a
result of past events; it is more likely than not
that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation; and the amount has
been reliably estimated. Provisions are not
recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar
obligations, the likelihood that an outflow
will be required in settlement is determined
by considering the class of obligations as
a whole. A provision is recognised even if
the likelihood of an outflow with respect to
any one item included in the same class of
obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value
of the expenditures expected to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risk specific to the
obligation. The increase in provision due to
passage of time is recognised as interest
expense.

Employee benefit

Retirement scheme obligations

The Bank operates a defined contribution
plan. Retirement benefit costs are charged
to the statement of profit or loss when
the contributions fall due. The defined
contribution plan requires members of the
plan to contribute 5% of their basic salary
while the Bank to contribute 5% or 10%
of the member’s salary depending on the
number of years of service of the employee
concerned. The Bank’s contributions to the
defined contribution plan are charged to the
statement of profit or loss in the period to
which they relate. Contributions made under
the defined contribution plan after 1 January
2003, the effective date of Macau Decree Law
6/99/M which sets out certain requirements
of retirement schemes, together with part of
the contributions made before this date, are
Peld separately in independently administered
unds.

Bonus plans

The expected cost of bonus payments is
recognised as a liability when the Bank has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a
result of services rendered by employees and
a reliable estimate of the obligation can be
made.
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(Amount in thousands of Macao Patacas, unless otherwise stated)

Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

2.22 Employee benefit (continued)

2.23

Short-term obligations

Salaries, annual bonuses and the cost of non-
monetary benefits are accrued in the year in
which the associated services are rendered
by employees. Where payment or settlement
is deferred and the effect would be material,
these amounts are stated at their present
values.

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrued by employees.
A provision is made for the estimated liability
for annual leave as a result of services
rendered by employees up to the reporting
date. Employee entitlements to sick leave and
maternity leave are not recognised until the
time of leave.

Current and deferred income taxes

The current income tax charge is calculated
on the basis of the tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date
where the Bank operates and generates
taxable income. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with
respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulations are subject to interpretation and
establishes provisions where appropriate on
the basis of amounts expected to be paid to
the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using
the liability method, on temporary differences
arising between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts
in the financial statements. However, the
deferred income tax is not accounted for if it
arises from initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction
affects neither accounting nor taxable profit
nor loss. Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates (and laws) that have been
enacted or substantially enacted by the
reporting date and are expected to apply
when the related deferred income tax asset is
realised or the deferred income tax liability is
settled.
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(B RIGERASN - B RRF T T IT)

(Amount in thousands of Macao Patacas, unless otherwise stated)

Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

2.23 Current and deferred income taxes

2.24

(continued)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised
to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised.
The tax effects of income tax losses available
for carry forward are recognised as an asset
when it is probable that future taxable profits
will be available against which these losses
can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary
differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries and associates, except where
the timing of the reversal of the temporary
difference is controlled by the Bank and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset
on an individual entity basis when there is a
legal right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when the deferred
taxation relates to the same authority.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in
the statement of profit or loss, except to the
extent that it relates to items recognised in
the statement of comprehensive income or
directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also
recognised in the statement of comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

Fiduciary activities

The Bank commonly acts as a trustee, or
in other fiduciary capacities, that result in
its holding or managing assets on behalf
of individuals, trusts and other institutions.
These assets and any gains or losses arising
thereon are excluded from these financial
statements, as they are not assets of the
Bank.
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(Amount in thousands of Macao Patacas, unless otherwise stated)

Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

2.25 Contingent liabilities

2.26

2.27

A contingent liability is a possible obligation
that arises from past events and whose
existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Bank. It can also be a present
obligation arising from past events that is not
recognised because it is not probable that
an outflow of economic resources will be
required or the amount of obligation cannot
be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but
is disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements. When a change in the probability
of an outflow occurs so that outflow is
probable, it will then be recognised as a
provision.

Related parties

For the purposes of these financial
statements, a party is considered to be
related to the Bank if that party (1) controls,
jointly controls or has significant influence
over the Bank; (2) is a member of the same
financial reporting group, such as the holding
company, subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries;
(3) is an associate or a joint venture of the
Bank or reporting group of the holding
company; (4) is a key management personnel
of the Bank or the holding company; (5) is
subject to common control with the Bank; (6)
is an entity in which a person identified in (4)
controls; and (7) provides key management
personnel services to the Bank or the holding
company. Related parties may be individuals
or entities.

Repossessed assets

Repossessed assets are initially recognised
at the lower of their fair value less costs
to sell and the amortised cost of the
related outstanding loans on the date of
repossession, and the related loans and
advances together with the related impairment
allowances are derecognised from the
statement of financial position. Subsequently,
repossessed assets are measured at the
lower of their cost and fair values less costs
to sell and are reported as “Repossessed
assets” included in “Other assets”.
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3.1

(BREFRIGERRSN - SBEEAMHTA/BFTT L)
(Amount in thousands of Macao Patacas, unless otherwise stated)

Critical accounting estimates and
judgements in applying accounting
policies

The Bank makes estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year.
Estimates and judgements are continually
evaluated and are based on historical
experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances.
Areas susceptible to changes in essential
estimates and judgements, which affect the
carrying amount of assets and liabilities, are
set out below. It is possible that actual results
may require material adjustments to the
estimates referred to below.

Impairment of financial assets

The Bank reviews its credit portfolios to
assess impairment at least on a quarterly
basis. Under IFRS 9, the measurement of
impairment losses across all categories
of financial asset requires judgement, in
particular, the estimation of the amount and
timing of future cash flows and collateral
values when determining impairment losses
and the assessment of a significant increase
in credit risk. These estimates are driven by
a number of factors, changes of which can
result in different levels of allowances.

The Bank’s ECL calculations are outputs
of complex models. The choice of variable
inputs and their interdependencies involves
a series of assumptions. ECL models are
developed by leveraging on the parameters
implemented Internal Ratings-Based models
and internal models, where feasible and
available. Elements of the ECL models that
are considered accounting judgements and
estimates include:

— The Bank’s internal credit rating models,
which assign Probability of Defaults to
the individual ratings;

— The Bank’s determination criteria for
significant increase in credit risk;

— The segmentation of financial assets
according to credit risk characteristics
(portfolios including Corporates, and
Retail Small Medium-sized Enterprise)
when their ECLs are assessed on a
collective basis;
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510 ﬁsiEoirEg ;IIN(A?\E:?AL STATEMENTS (AmoTunt in thousands ofili/le_fcao Patacag,E unlézs otherwise stated)
(continued)

3. EASTERXRRZEREFMEERH 3. Critical accounting estimates and
& (&) judgements in applying accounting
policies (continued)

31 EREEZREER(E) 3.1 Impairment of financial assets (continued)
EHERBELAREZR 25 A E & Elements of the ECL models that are
mErBEATTE: (8) considered accounting judgements and

estimates include: (continued)

— EHERABLRANERE 81 —  Development of ECL models, including
HEBRBEBREOEAN AR the determination of macroeconomic
HEBAME BHBEBRIERE factor forecasts and the effect on
REREAENTZE UK Probability of Defaults, Loss Given

Defaults and Exposure at Defaults; and

— %ﬁﬁﬁ%’l‘i?ﬁ%ﬁ”«%ﬁ|$ii(@ﬁ.‘m — Selection of forward-looking
B ERNMNEB=EBIE= macroeconomic scenarios (including
BEEREMERE - three independent scenarios i.e. good,

baseline and bad) and their probability
weightings.

?JH* BEBAOmME  BEHERIBX In respect of credit-impaired exposures,
BEFFRKRAIKEMNE S REER expected credit losses are measured on

qui cARETEZMGNERERE R an individual basis by estimating the future

TRAATAR - FEEBRAREE recoverable cash flows. Factors affecting

FRAMBEENFRIEE BXAR this estimate include, among other things,

TEBFERBAGEENRAIESN - 17 the granularity of financial information related

XEEBEAREERARKEE X to specific borrowers and their guarantors,

ReeEERE UREREHRR the availability of meaningful information

BB ERES ° of competitors and the relevance of sector

trends to the future performance of specific
borrowers and cash flows from the sale of
collateral.

ARITHERAETEHRRERBELK It has been the Bank’s policy to regularly

REREHAEL  EFERETRE review its models in the context of actual loss

o experience and adjust when necessary.

REEANESFRERER K HMIE Carrying amounts of investment in securities

B2 REED RN E19K20 - and loans and advances as at reporting date

are shown in note 19 and 20 respectively.
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3.

(B RIGERASN - B RRF T T IT)

(Amount in thousands of Macao Patacas, unless otherwise stated)

Critical accounting estimates and
judgements in applying accounting
policies (continued)

Fair value of financial instruments

The Bank’s accounting policy for valuation
of financial instruments is included in note
6. The fair value of the financial instruments
is mainly based on the quoted market
price on a recognised stock exchange or a
price quoted from a broker/dealer for non-
exchanged traded financial instruments. The
fair value of financial instruments that are not
quoted in active market are determined using
valuation techniques. Valuation techniques
include discounted cash flow analysis, option
pricing model and various market recognised
pricing models. To the extent practical, the
models use observable data. In addition,
valuation adjustments may be adopted if
factors such as credit risk are not considered
in the valuation models. Management
judgement and estimates are required for the
selection of appropriate valuation parameters,
assumptions and modelling techniques.

Estimated useful lives of property, plant
and equipment

The Bank periodically reviews estimated
useful lives of property, plant and equipment.

Leasehold land under private or government
tenure without limitation of time are not
depreciated in consideration of expected
useful lives, based on management’s
assessment of land regimes in Macau SAR
and its enforcement.
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3.4

(BRI EERASN - BT AR T T T

(Amount in thousands of Macao Patacas, unless otherwise stated)

Critical accounting estimates and
judgements in applying accounting
policies (continued)

Taxes

The Bank is subject to income, value-added
and other taxes in numerous jurisdictions,
principally in mainland China. During the
ordinary course of business, there are certain
transactions and activities for which the final
tax treatment is uncertain. The Bank takes
into account the existing tax legislations and
past practice in determining the tax estimates.

Where the final tax outcome of these matters
is different from the amounts that were initially
estimated, such differences will impact the
current income tax, deferred income tax, and
value-added tax in the period during which
such a determination is made.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for
temporary deductible differences. As those
deferred tax assets can only be recognised
to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profits will be available against which
the unused tax credits can be recognised,
management’s judgement is required to
assess the probability of future taxable profits.
Management’s assessment is constantly
reviewed and additional deferred tax assets
are recognised if it becomes probable that
future taxable profits will allow the deferred
tax assets to be recovered.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

4. cREKRERE 4. Financial risk management

ﬁﬁﬁﬁ?ﬁé%%?@%%ﬁﬁiﬁ&@%ﬁ@ The Bank is exposed to financial risks as a
T EeRmEREEEARR ™ result of engaging in a variety of business

iﬁﬂ (’E%?l\lzﬂ n [ ) 2 B )& activities. The principal financial risks are
mu@]liﬂ o ANt .ETEELZL@ETT{MZ credit risk, market risk (including currency
*Eﬂ EI’J}_L A E AR EBERF - risk and interest rate risk) and liquidity risk.

T fiﬂ’]*zﬁ@é% E&Eﬁﬁi'&f&g This note summarises the Bank’s exposures
FEZ%EJ_WMEI’JE/?E ° to these risks, as well as its objectives, risk

management governance structure, policies
and processes for managing and the methods
used to measure these risks.

THE R EEEE Financial risk management framework

RIRTEBEEEAREEEELZ The Bank’s risk management governance
ERHEZHBE URIFEEFLEH structure is designed to cover all business
Y % 28 R e &R BE 1 ?'Jﬁxﬁlgﬁﬁﬁ il o processes and to ensure various risks are
ﬁ%ﬁfﬂéﬂ%m%ﬂ@@k’*” B0 properly managed and controlled in the
Tﬁﬁﬁfﬁﬁ%iﬁﬁﬁﬁ Fﬁ%ﬁﬁxﬁ?ﬂﬁ?ﬁﬁﬁﬁ course of conducting business. The Bank
TERBL BY—E2EHER a has established a robust risk management
2K kg V Fﬁ LA 38 /DJJ 2 f organisational structure with a comprehensive
RREH A BN ER ZK%E set of policies and procedures in accordance
TINE Bl E e &k B A ﬁ%’ﬁﬂ(%& with the current regulatory requirements in
BF - RS m%&%ﬂ‘&ﬁﬁﬁm;&“ ° Macau and the bank’s actual circumstances,
TRAEEMREREAEE P EBRTEHEA to identify, measure, monitor and control
1 A R B E.ﬁfﬁ various risks that may arise. These risk

management policies and procedures are
regularly reviewed and updated to reflect
changes in markets and business strategies.
Various groups of risk takers assume
their respective responsibilities for risk

management.
EEERRERENNZE - EARET The Board of Directors (“The Board”),
EREENTZEAKEKE I EHER representing the interests of shareholders,
EEARRET -BEFCTHEEB TR is the highest decision-making authority of
BEEgHmHT BEREARITHE the Bank and has the ultimate responsibility
BB IR KRS - B kR o AR B >k for risk management. The Board, with
THERRNRITEAGAEROEREER the assistance of its committees, has the
RAEBZENTHEBER o primary responsibility for the formulation of

risk management strategies, risk appetite
and risk culture and ensuring that the Bank
has an effective risk management system to
implement these strategies.
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(continued)

4. SEiEERE(E) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

T HE R E L () Financial risk management framework
(continued)

EEeREHETRNBBERLEER The Board authorises its subordinate
ZEg RREELAANISZHEZES Strategic Development and Budget
MEGFZEERTEZARBEENA Committee (“SDBC”), Risk Management and
EBE BEZREIKEEZESAEE Internal Control Committee (“RMICC”) and
HTEBERAE RREIEERANI Audit Committee (“AC”) to perform relevant
EHZESBER THHBBEFEME responsibilities of comprehensive risk
HErElTEE M RERRIFMERE B8 management. SDBC is responsible for setting
RRTEVHEZERZERAREEER strategic development plans of the Bank;
ENLZEEHHEETSRITANIBIES RMICC is responsible for setting risk appetites
REWMEZRE - and tolerances level that match with the

strategic objectives and business plans of the
Bank, which also serve as the guidance of the
Bank for the establishment and development
of a comprehensive risk management system;
The AC assists the Board in fulfilling its role in
overseeing the internal control system.

SREEEEBEEEARITSERR - The senior management is responsible for
HITEFTEHRE - ﬁﬁﬁﬂé’]?ﬂi managing the Bank’s various types of risks
UEEHEBEENRRERE ST - %f“ and implementing resolutions of the Board.
BZREREEDN Eﬁ'—iﬁ AR R B Various units of the Bank have their respective
EIRES - Bf = B & A) E BB % AE B8 B et risk management responsibilities. Business
HAaEEEam AR  BZHB L units act as the first line of defence, while Risk
EEcmERERE BRERAHESRE Management Department (“RM”), Finance
Fro) st et REIT B L I B e B2 o Department (“FN”), Treasury Department
(“TD”), and other relevant functional
departments are responsible for managing
financial risks. Internal Audit Department
(“AD”) conducts independent reviews on
financial risk management, including the
design and implementation of internal
control procedures, and supervising relevant
rectification.
RIPTEITEEORNIIZEHIRET The Bank has put in place appropriate
BRI AEER OB MM A R E internal control systems, including the
NEREBEERESNEMTERE establishment of an organisation structure that
BrELERE BENERESETD sets clear lines of authority and responsibility
M EERERELRNEHEE - B for monitoring compliance with policies,
REEBEAEENRESLT ABE procedures and limits. Proper reporting lines
EEENANIIZESIRER - also provide sufficient independence of the

control functions from the business areas,
as well as adequate segregation of duties
throughout the organisation which helps
to promote an appropriate internal control
environment.
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Financial risk management (continued)
Credit risk
Overview

Credit risk is the risk of loss that a customer
or counterparty is unable to or unwilling to
meet its contractual obligations.

Credit risk of the Bank arise principally from
the exposures on the portfolio of corporate,
small business and retail customer, which
mainly includes placements with banks and
other financial institutions, government-related
claims, certificates of deposit, loans and other
accounts (including loan commitments and
guarantees), securities investment and other
assets, etc.

Credit risk management framework

The Bank has formulated a comprehensive
set of credit risk management policies and
procedures, and appropriate credit risk limits
to manage and control credit risk that may
arise. These policies, procedures and credit
risk limits are regularly reviewed and updated
to cope with changes in market conditions
and business strategies.

The Bank’s organisation structure establishes
a clear set of authority and responsibility
for monitoring compliance with policies,
procedures and limits.

Various units of the Bank have their respective
credit risk management responsibilities.
Business units act as the first line of
defence in risk management. RM, which
is independent from the business units, is
responsible for the day-to-day management
of credit risks and provides an independent
due diligence through identifying, measuring,
monitoring and controlling credit risk to ensure
an effective checks and balances, as well as
drafting, reviewing and updating credit risk
management policies and procedures. It is
also responsible for the design, development
and maintenance of the Bank’s internal rating
system and ensures the system complies
with the relevant regulatory requirements.
Back offices are responsible for credit
administration, providing operations support
and supervision on the implementation of
prerequisite terms and conditions of credit
facilities.
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Financial risk management (continued)
Credit risk (continued)

Credit risk management framework

(continued)

The Board delegates credit approval authority
to the Credit and Investment Management
Committee (“CIMC”). The CIMC can further
delegate to the subordinates within its limit
authorised by the Board. The Bank sets the
limits of credit approval authority according to
the credit business nature, rating, the level of
transaction risk, and the extent of the credit
exposure.

Credit risk measurement and control

In view of the rapidly changing market
conditions, the Bank has been continuously
revisiting its credit strategies and conducting
rigorous reviews on the concerned portfolios.

Loans and advances to customers (including
loan commitments and guarantees)

The Bank employs an Internal Rating
Based (IRB) model that can be mapped to
Moody’s external credit ratings to reflect its
assessment of the probability of default of
individual counterparties.

In addition, the Bank identifies credit
concentration risk by industry, geography,
customer or counterparty. The Bank monitors
changes to every counterparties credit risk,
quality of the credit portfolio and credit risk
concentrations, and reports regularly to the
Bank’s Management.

The Bank determines loan grading criteria
based on the guideline for loan credit risk
classification (the “Guideline”) issued by
AMCM, which requires commercial banks to
classify their corporate and personal loans
into five categories: pass, special-mention,
substandard, doubtful and loss (“The
five-category classifications”), among
which loans classified in the substandard,
doubtful and loss categories are regarded
as non-performing loans. Loan commitments
and guarantees with credit exposure are also
assessed and categorised with reference to
the Guideline.

B/
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Financial risk management (continued)
Credit risk (continued)

Credit risk measurement and control

(continued)

Loans and advances to customers (including
loan commitments and guarantees)
(continued)

The five-category classifications are defined
as follows:

Pass: loans for which borrowers can honour
the terms of the contracts, and there is
no reason to doubt their ability to repay
the principal and interest of loans in full
and on a timely basis.

Special-mention: loans for which borrowers are still able
to service the loans currently, although
the repayment of loans might be
adversely affected by some factors.

Substandard:  loans for which borrowers’ ability to
service loans is apparently in question
and borrowers cannot depend on their
normal business revenues to pay back
the principal and interest of loans.
Certain losses might be incurred by
the Bank even when guarantees are
executed.

Doubtful: loans for which borrowers cannot
pay back the principal and interest of
loans in full and significant losses will
be incurred by the Bank even when
guarantees are executed.

Loss: principal and interest of loans cannot
be recovered or only a small portion
can be recovered after taking all
possible measures and resorting to
necessary legal procedures.

The Bank strictly follows the regulatory
requirements in five-category loan
classifications management, and makes
adjustments to these classifications
as necessary according to customers’
operational and financial position, together
with other factors that may affect the
repayment of the loans.
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Financial risk management (continued)
Credit risk (continued)

Credit risk measurement and control

(continued)

Loans and advances to customers (including
loan commitments and guarantees)
(continued)

The Bank performs centralised review on
customer credit ratings on an annual basis in
addition to making adjustments as necessary
according to the customers’ operational and
financial condition. The Bank conducts back-
testing of the rating model for corporate
customers, according to the customers’
actual defaults each year, so that the model
calculation results are closer to the objective
facts.

Due from, placements with banks and other
financial institutions

The Bank manages the credit quality of due
from, placements with and loans to banks
and other financial institutions considering the
size, financial position and the internal and
external credit rating of banks and financial
institutions. During the business lifetime,
the Bank conducts comprehensive analysis,
monitors and manages internal and external
factors that may affect banks and financial
institutions’ ability to operate on on-going
basis and capacity to bear risk, and takes
corresponding control measures.

Debt securities and derivatives

For investments in debt instruments, the
obligor ratings or external credit ratings and
credit limits setting on customer/security
issuer basis are used for managing credit
risk associated with the investment. For
derivatives, the Bank sets customer limits to
manage the credit risk involved and follows
the same approval and control processes as
applied for advances. On-going monitoring
and stop-loss procedures are established.
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4. cREMRERE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)
41 FEHRRK (&) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)

15 /5 /7 B2 5F 12 R B 2 (48

Credit risk measurement and control

(continued)

HROTE2BIA  RRITHEHE For derivative investment, the Bank has
BEEZESRTFETESLNFHONE established policies to manage the net
ELHER TAEAEMNERARRBIES open derivative positions by amounts and
EPheREBRAREEEN—I by maturity dates. Credit risk exposures
MTUER -PTE2RITANEFEAR for derivatives are included as part of the
Bz W E 38 F T LA & 15 1K 1 an 3 L fh B aggregated credit risk limit management
R 2R PE AR =L By o for financial institutions and customers.
Collaterals or other pledges of assets are not
typically sought for these exposures.
ERXE BRI FEEFHESRITAY Financial instruments are default when one or
RRBEEREETFNTE  flmiE more events that have a detrimental impact on
WA+ RUA E#@E - S8R AR BE & the estimated future cash flows have occurred
EEBINABITNELE B & such as past due for more than 90 days or
TAKRAEXNEHIA - the borrower is unlikely to pay in full for the

B (5 18 (ECL) 7 )% i

credit obligations to the Bank.

Expected Credit Loss ("ECL”) Methodology

2B TS & 2E B BOSR 4R B AY R OR For impairment assessment, an impairment
BEEAUERBBRAUNERK AT E - MU model is introduced in compliance with
ARnBEFEEEEHFAEMEE IFRS 9, it requires the recognition of ECL
WamemITANERERAEBX &R for financial instrument held at AC and
BRI E R EOR T - THHE AR FVOCI. Under IFRS 9, ECL is assessed in
KOoBR-EMRERETHME  Ma three stages and the financial assets, loan
BENERAAZTE-HEBRER+PHFE commitments and financial guarantees are
REP—ERE - classified in one of the three stages.

F—HEER - UREBTAETEEYIHA Stage 1: if the financial instruments are not
RAEERABREEE  NREVIEGER credit-impaired during origination and their
’éiﬁﬁﬁfﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁtﬁﬁ,ﬁ%i'ﬂﬂﬂﬁIﬁ/ﬁ credit risk has not increased significantly
BEEEHEAT-EAANEHRERRE since origination, and the impairment
%K allowance is measured at an amount up to

12-month ECL;

F_BR-UOUREMIATEEYS Stage 2: if the financial instruments are not
ARRERAREEE  BEVBER credit-impaired during origination but their
BEBEERARREZZEMNNHER K credit risk has increased significantly since
BEEAREAFTEDNNERERIBL: origination, and the impairment allowance is

measured at an amount equal to the lifetime
ECL;

F-BBR- ORI AERERRBE Stage 3: if the financial instruments are credit-
BE - -BAXRBEREEXI —EIK impaired and their future cash flows of that
ZHECNTIRTE  BREEERE financial instruments are adversely affected
EFEANEREREBX - by one or more events, and the impairment

allowance is also measured at an amount
equal to the lifetime ECL.
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4. SEiEERE(E) 4. Financial risk management (continued)
41 FEHRRK (&) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
BRI 15 B (ECL) 7 2 i (B) Expected Credit Loss (“ECL") Methodology
(continued)

RIFITERLEANERERRBACGHT The Bank has established the significant

ERXAGERTENMBREEER credit deterioration criteria framework

HERBEEERTENNGE TR to determine the stage of the financial

B = Pl anse B K 8- N BB AT ARk B (b instrument. The framework incorporates both

BEEARBPFAGERERREE - guantitative and qualitative assessment,

taking into account of factors such as number
of days past due, change in IRB rating, low
credit risk threshold and the watchlist.

AHERNERRABREBLCENEERER The quantitative and qualitative criteria

EMET e considered in determining significant credit

deterioration include:

EEEE Quantitative criteria

— KREGESRAIHHEEZE=TAEAX —  Failure to make payments of principal
NARSHFE or interest 30 days after the contractual

due dates;

— RWmER BENATFEHMNED — At the reporting date, the credit risk
2= ) 4 5 EE_E\H*HE?’] WmEE is deemed to increase significantly
FABB-—TERE RBERHEE when the remaining lifetime PD rises
RAARB I ERRETKEE by more than a certain range from
J&E /K HQMEF%E%EHS EEIL initial recognition, reflected as drop in
me RZHBEAT BEPHE credit rating by corresponding level
AR TRZAMEZAE 7 according to the different PD at initial
RAERE@EZEM - recognition. In majority cases, there is a

significant increase in credit risk when
the customer’s credit rating drops more
than 2 grades.

EMEEF 1 Qualitative criteria

— 1%?%5<A§<“szﬁ7ﬁ5<;'ﬂlﬂt LB R —  Significant adverse change in debtor’s
=N E A operations or financial status;

— HREREREEHKNTFE — Customers with sign of credit
WIABREZEANERAEEFHR deterioration are put into watchlist for
TEHBEREE - staging review.
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Financial risk management (continued)
Credit risk (continued)

Expected Credit Loss (“ECL”) Methodology
(continued)

Credit-impaired financial instruments are
classified as Stage 3 and lifetime expected
credit losses will be recognised. Evidence
that a financial instrument is credit-impaired
include observable data about the following
events:

— Significant financial difficulty incurred
by the borrower;

— A breach of contract, such as a default
or delinquency in principal or interest
payment;

— For economic or contractual reasons
related to the borrower’s financial
difficulty, the Bank has granted to the
borrower a concession that it would not
otherwise consider;

—  Probable that the borrower will become
bankrupt or undergo other financial
reorganisation; or

—  Other observable data indicating that
there is a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flows from such
financial instruments.

The Bank leverages the parameters
implemented Internal Ratings models
and internal models where feasible and
available to assess ECL. For the portfolios
without models, all other reasonable and
supportable information such as historical
information, relevant loss experience or
proxies are utilised. The measurement of ECL
is the product of the financial instrument’s
probability of default (“PD”), loss given default
(“LGD”) and exposure at default ("“EAD”")
discounted at the effective interest rate to the
reporting date.
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Financial risk management (continued)
Credit risk (continued)

Expected Credit Loss (“ECL”) Methodology
(continued)

ECL involves segmentation of exposures
on the basis of shared risk characteristics,
such that risk exposures within a group
are homogeneous. In performing this
segmentation, there must be sufficient
information for the segmentation to be
statistically credible. In particular, the Bank
uses credit ratings, product types, client
types, etc., for grouping personal loans and
advances to calculate the losses measured
on a collective basis.

ECL is measured at an unbiased and
probability-weighted amount that is
determined by evaluating a range of possible
outcomes, the time value of money and
reasonable and supportable information
about past events, current conditions and
forecasts of future economic conditions. The
Bank adopts three economic scenarios in the
ECL measurement to meet the requirements
of IFRS 9. The “Baseline” scenario represents
a most likely outcome and the other two
scenarios, referred to as “Good” scenario and
“Bad” scenario, represent less likely outcomes
which are more optimistic or more pessimistic
compared to Baseline scenario.

The Baseline scenario is managed by RM.
Historical data, economic trend, external
forecast from governmental and non-
governmental organisation, etc. are also used
as benchmarks to ensure the scenario is
reasonable and supportable. For the Good
and Bad scenarios, the Bank makes reference
to the historical macroeconomics data.

63



64

RA %5 & &% Pt 5F (48)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(continued)

4. SEREREE(HE)
41 EREAR (&)
78 B (5 78 5 (ECL) 5 )% i (#&)

ARTERTMBBERS RALES
MERR /WENEREAERE W
CHBE W BB

BALtERERE
RERE  MEEBRE BN

/

Eﬂ‘nTﬁfﬂ%f& RE A

= &

¢

ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬂ&?—ﬁ“%%ﬂ’]&ﬁ%&@%ﬁé
BRADEOBER - MmARITER
'IE&‘E‘ ME 5 E R E - LR R
BETE R © ﬁﬁ*’“ ZE"@EK

B = /\&H%E’—I El’] ES:
M&EI @Efﬁﬂ‘ﬂﬁ)ﬁTLA&Hﬂf

(:9]] E’Uﬁi% EA_O__E—F A
BEOMERERNBBLE

ﬁ%ﬂﬁﬁ 15
B8 ZZ-fu(—o—:E H g
EI’NE%T“EC%EH&M ]

%E%ﬁﬁﬁ%@%ﬂ’]ﬁr?ﬁﬁ%&ﬁ&?@

EEEBESHEZE BRENTRE
E’Jr&ﬁié/;”é‘“I?L T T {3 3K 18 o0 R
EXRER H%@%?&%EE@%FHT
£t ZMETﬂETFﬁE = F
BERUMEANZELERRZR

BEORETETER -

REX
EELRBERBERNEZEARERBE XL
BHE

S @A) -

(B RIGERASN - B RRF T T IT)

(Amount in thousands of Macao Patacas, unless otherwise stated)

Financial risk management (continued)
Credit risk (continued)

Expected Credit Loss ("ECL”) Methodology
(continued)

The macroeconomic factors in the major
countries/regions the Bank operates such as
Gross Domestic Product growth, Consumer
Price Index, Total Investment, Property
Price Index and Unemployment Rate are
applied in the economic scenarios. These
macroeconomic factors are considered to be
important to the Bank’s in statistical analysis
and business opinion.

The probability assigned for each scenario
reflects the Bank’s view for the economic
environment, which implements the Bank’s
prudent and consistent credit strategy
of ensuring the adequacy of impairment
allowance. A higher probability is assigned to
the Baseline scenario to reflect the most likely
outcome and a lower probability is assigned
to the Good and Bad scenarios to reflect the
less likely outcomes. As of December of 2023,
the probability weight of the Bank’s Baseline
scenario is equal to the sum of probability
weight of Good and Bad scenarios (2022:the
probability weight of the Bank’s Baseline
scenario is equal to the sum of probability
weight of Good and Bad scenarios).

The calculation of ECL is affected by
macroeconomic factors and economic
scenarios. If more pessimistic macroeconomic
factors are applied in ECL assessment or
a higher probability is assigned to the Bad
scenario, it would resulted in an increase in
ECL. The Bank reviews the macroeconomic
factors used in the ECL model and the
probability weight of economic scenarios on
an annual basis according to the established
mechanism.
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Financial risk management (continued)
Credit risk (continued)

Expected Credit Loss (“ECL”) Methodology
(continued)

As at 31 December 2023, the Bank conducts
sensitivity analysis on the weightings of
multiple economic scenarios used in the
ECL model, the ECL will be increased by
approximately 0.84% (2022: 1.12%) if 5%
of the probability weight is shifted from
Baseline scenario to Bad scenario; and
will be decreased by approximately 0.54%
(2022:1.31%) if 5% of the probability weight
is shifted from Baseline scenario to Good
scenario. For stage 3 ECL, as the credit
factors of such specific borrower are more
sensitive than the scenario weightings used in
the analysis, we excluded stage 3 exposures
from the analysis.

CIMC is responsible for reviewing the
reasonableness and reliability of the ECL
model, and approving the change of significant
judgements and assumptions of the ECL
model; RM is responsible for the ECL model
implementation and the maintenance of ECL
methodology including models review and
parameters update on a regular basis. If there
is any change in ECL methodology, the Bank
will follow the proper approval process.

Collateral held as security and other credit
enhancements

The valuation and management of collateral
have been documented in the credit risk
management policies and procedures
which cover acceptance criteria, validity of
collateral, loan-to-value ratio, haircut ratio,
valuation and insurance, etc. The collateral
is revalued on a regular basis, though the
frequency and the method used varies with
the type of collateral involved and the nature
and the risk of the underlying credit. Collateral
is insured with the Bank as the primary
beneficiary. In the personal sector, the main
types of collateral are real estate, cash
deposits and securities. In the commercial
and industrial sector, the types of collateral
include real estate, securities, and cash
deposits, etc.

For loans guaranteed by a third party, the
Bank will assess the guarantor’s financial
condition, credit history and ability to meet
obligations.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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66

4. SEiEERE(E) 4. Financial risk management (continued)
41 AR (&) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
T Z & & # o 36 F i 32 (5 15 i Y &= Maximum exposure to credit risk before
A5 A2 B i O collateral held or other credit enhancements
(1 WMABEIGHZENmHTA (1)  Financial instruments subject to
impairment
2023 2022
XKANEEEBMEBAM  Credit risk exposures
EARRBOMT: relating to on-balance sheet
financial assets are as
follows:
Re RiFmEZE Cash and balances with banks 5,849,637 4,255,604
FHRRRBEMF&/mERE  Deposits with AMCM
5 2,003,539 2,195,638
FHRIRTTRENREM  Placements with banks and
o Eb s other financial institutions 9,162,204 22,785,899
TRIEE Financial investments 40,929,603 39,190,320
EREEMIRE Advances and other accounts 130,569,318 134,491,298
H A& & Other assets 611,781 499,258
INET Subtotal 189,126,082 203,418,017
KIHINEEEBMEEBEKM  Credit risk exposures relating
ERARBEBOWMT: to off-balance sheet items
are as follows :
B R B Letters of guarantee issued 2,634,992 1,680,514
BRAEMEMER  Loan commitments and other
Zag= credit commitments 17,665,324 19,967,719
INET Subtotal 20,300,316 21,648,233
4 et Total 209,426,398 225,066,250

XERTEHGARLXFAN_-O=-Z=ZF%®
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(continued)

4. SEiEERE(E) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 AR (&) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)

T Z B8 E im0 A it 12 (5 15 b 7Y &= Maximum exposure to credit risk before

A1 A3 B i O (&) collateral held or other credit enhancements

(continued)

2) AWMARENHBENELSE T (2) Financial instrument not subject to
B impairment
HRUAABEFEAEHE The carrying amount of debt instruments
qu)\?EmZL% TR FRE2HE measured at FVPL best represents the
B EXEARERABRBA - ¥ maximum exposure to credit risk. While
ROUTEem T HE  ZAREHAER for derivative financial instruments, the
WO &R P 752,868F (= O maximum credit exposures is MOP
—F:BPIL382,307F L) © 52,868 thousands (2022: MOP 32,307

thousands).

(1) 15/ #E () Credit exposures
RRTzExaEARREAEERER The maximum credit exposure is the worst
F A 3K 0 an _JZ H 18 1;. =D RN case scenario of exposure to the Bank without
[RAE - HRMBRRRNEE - & taking into account any collateral held or
= =5 ARk 7%#1‘@ ERERMEME - ¥ other credit enhancements. For on-balance
A 13*4% BK %ﬁ% [7 B A HE = sheet assets, the maximum exposure to credit
?E?Jﬂ%)\;zjizliﬁﬁ ﬁ RKBENEHD risk equals their carrying amount. For letters
Kt HRERABLHEMER of guarantee issued, the maximum exposure
fHaE EaEARREAEARKE to credit risk is the maximum amount
A D e that the Bank could be required to pay if

the guarantees are called upon. For loan
commitment and other credit related liabilities,
the maximum exposure to credit risk is the full
amount of the committed facilities.

VAT & B #5310 an & Hof 38 (5 15 e &Y The nature of the collateral held and other

MELRHEHHARTEES E & ER credit enhancements and their financial effect

BE: to the different classes of the Bank’s financial

assets are as follows:

1) EROKEMESREEZER (1)  Balances and placements with banks
REBHFEFR: ZRIRXRSEFH and other financial institutions: these
ME —KeR KRR AE - exposures are generally considered
it — et tFEES KK to be low risk due to the nature of the
W o counterparties. Collateral is generally

not sought on these assets.

(2) MUAanfBETEBEEEHTAE (2)  Financial assets and debt instruments
mZeBMEEREBEIAE: —K measured at fair value through profit or
TEREREIESKEER - loss: collateral is generally not sought

on debt instruments.
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Financial risk management (continued)
Credit risk (continued)
Credit exposures (continued)

The nature of the collateral held and other
credit enhancements and their financial effect
to the different classes of the Bank’s financial
assets are as follows: (continued)

(3) Derivative financial instruments: the
Bank further restricts its exposure
to credit losses by entering into
master netting arrangements with
counterparties. Master netting
arrangements do not generally
result in the offsetting of assets and
liabilities in the statement of financial
position, as transactions are usually
settled on a gross basis. However, the
credit risk associated with favourable
contracts is reduced by a master
netting arrangement to the extent that
if a default or other termination event
occurs, all amounts with the customer
under the master netting arrangement
are terminated and settled on a net
basis.

(4) Advances and other accounts, loan
commitments and financial guarantee
contracts: The general types of
collateral are disclosed on page 65.
Advances and other accounts, loan
commitments and financial guarantee
contracts are collateralised to the extent
considered appropriate by the Bank
taking account of the risk assessment of
individual exposures. The components
and nature of loan commitments and
financial guarantee contracts are
disclosed in note 40. Regarding the
commitments that are unconditionally
cancellable without prior notice, the
Bank would assess the necessity
to withdraw the credit line in case
where the credit quality of a borrower
deteriorates.

XERTEHGARLXFAN_-O=-Z=ZF%®
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B 35 R = P o (48)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

4. SEiEERE(E) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

41

(1)

=RER (&)
B REMER

1% BBl B 2 5 A 2 A8 B 3R
WEMBRIBALT

41

(1)
K H R IR

Credit risk (continued)

Advances and other accounts

Gross advances and other accounts before
impairment allowances are summarised by

product type as follows:

2023 2022
EFEXK Advances to customers
YNC]! Corporate 96,097,504 98,358,857
— HEERX — Commercial loans 94,637,063 96,683,449
— B omE — Trade Finance 1,460,441 1,675,408
PN Personal 34,471,814 36,132,441
— %18 — Mortgages 28,957,521 29,766,621
— H A — Others 5,514,293 6,365,820
130,569,318 134,491,298
ERREINHPRAZER BEEASHF Advances with a specific repayment date
BEEABRINAREE AR E are classified as overdue when the principal
R BAEHYHERZER  HES or interest is past due and remains unpaid.
—ROHEREBHALNARESR A Advances repayable by regular instalments
PItEm B RIE - HENHEECERSA are classified as overdue when an instalment
EREBERAXEERBA  BEERXA payment is past due and remains unpaid.
RAREEREFR  HEFR—EBEBEHEBRX Advances repayable on demand are
ANEBMZHLEERRE - T E@E classified as overdue either when a demand
HApR I8 - for repayment has been served on the
borrower but repayment has not been made
in accordance with the instruction or when
the advances have remained continuously to
exceed the approved limit that was advised to
the borrower.
EERZ2HEBERER AFEHER Advances classified as Stage 3 may not
RE-ZMBER TALE @Z/)ITETE% o necessarily result in impairment loss where

Tai Fung Bank Limited Annual Report 2023

the advances are fully collateralised.
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(continued)

41

(1)

TR EkEEE(E)
=RER (&)
EHRAMEKRE(E)

REREBEEGBAZALER R EMIRE
BREZDBRERDFOT

(R%RIGEERSIN - @ BMEMH/RMTTF T
(Amount in thousands of Macao Patacas, unless otherwise stated)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

(1) Advances and other accounts (continued)
Gross advances and other accounts before
impairment allowances are analysed by

the five-category classifications and stage
determination as follows:

ZEFEXR Advances to customers
i Pass
E2had Special Mention
KR Substandard
A & Doubtful
Bx Loss
HA: Of which,
bz impairment allowances

EEFEER Advances to customers
s Pass
Eipad Special Mention
R Substandard
aJ &t Doubtful
Bx Loss
Hep: Of which,
BB impairment allowances

2023
P& B — BB R = = st
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
102,067,979 3,507,900 - 105,575,879
- 13,758,329 - 13,758,329
- - 7325526 7,325,526
- - 1,967,679 1,967,679
- - 1,941,905 1,941,905
102,067,979 17,266,229 11,235,110 130,569,318
(376,993) (495,814) (2,718,140) (3,590,947)
101,690,986 16,770,415 8,516,970 126,978,371
2022
P& R — PR — PR = et
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
110,901,609 6,725,897 - 117,627,506
- 11,270,236 - 11,270,236
- - 4,551,713 4,551,713
- - 193,940 193,940
- - 847,903 847,903
110,901,609 17,996,133 5,593,556 134,491,298
(470,330) (945,545)  (1,541,774) (2,957,649)
110,431,279 17,050,588 4,051,782 131,533,649

XERTEHGARLXFAN_-O=-Z=ZF%®



= (Br4FRIFERRSIN - @ BEMH AR TT L)
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(continued)

4. ERIEKREE(E) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 {ERRE (&) 41 Credit risk (continued)

() EXREMFEEE) (Il)  Advances and other accounts (continued)
ERXRREMEBE REEERBEE Reconciliation of impairment allowances
BIERY AT and gross amount for advances and other

accounts is as follows:

2023
P& B — BB R = BER= ot
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
M Gross amount
n—H—8 At 1 January 110,901,609 17,996,133 5,593,556 134,491,298

BHE-RE Transfer out from Stage 1 (11,873,649) 9,199,496 2,541,272 (132,881)
BIHE PR Transfer out from Stage 2 1,024,137  (7,111,372) 6,005,949 (81,286)

BHE=ER Transfer out from Stage 3 - 42,535 (51,127) (8,592)
B A FZ {0 Net change in
exposures M 2,093,420 (2,854,838) 173,884 (587,534)
1 5 Write-offs - - (3,035,566) (3,035,566)
EREEH R Exchange differences
it and other (77,538) (5,725) 7,142 (76,121)
R+ZHA=+—H At31December 102,067,979 17,266,229 11,235,110 130,569,318
2022
P& R — P& B = &= et
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
M Gross amount
n—H—8 At 1 January 110,189,040 17,026,533 1,036,152 128,251,725

EHE KR Transfer out from Stage 1 (5,805,391) 5,153,105 222,842 (429,444)
BHE_BE Transfer out from Stage 2 1,894,668  (6,032,702) 4,543,719 405,685

BHE =R Transfer out from Stage 3 - - -
EXWaF &M Net change in
exposures( 4,738,489 1,849,994 (37,857) 6,550,626
i Write-offs - - (171,210)  (171,210)
EXZEHK Exchange differences
H and other (115,197) (797) (90)  (116,084)
m+=—A=+—H At31December 110,901,609 17,996,133 5,593,556 134,491,298
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R 75 3 2= P &E (#8)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

4. SEiEERE(E) 4. Financial risk management (continued)
41 AR (&) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
() EHRAE#MIEKIEE) (Il)  Advances and other accounts (continued)

ERREMIRIE 2 BEEWR N BEE
BRI (8)

Reconciliation of impairment allowances
and gross amount for advances and other
accounts is as follows: (continued)

2023
P B — PEER = BB = ot
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

L E & Impairment allowances

m—AR—H8 At 1 January 470,330 945,545 1,541,774 2,957,649

BHE-BER Transfer out from Stage 1 (68,339) 183,273 350,919 465,853

BHE R Transfer out from Stage 2 2,548 (449,544) 2,459,683 2,012,687

BHE=FER Transfer out from Stage 3 - 22,768 (27,943) (5,175)

AEF (BB,  Net (reversal)/charge

B 0) for the year™ (27546)  (206,228) 1,429,273 1,195,499
i 34 Write-offs - - (3,035,566) (3,035,566)
m+=-A=+—H At31December 376,993 495,814 2,718,140 3,590,947

2022
P& B — PR ER — PR = et
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

HEE Impairment allowances

n—H—H At 1 January 663,853 1,141,179 543,603 2,348,635

BHE-RE Transfer out from Stage 1 (46,240) 302,015 396 256,171

BHE_ER Transfer out from Stage 2 601 (612,222) 972,568 360,947

BHE-ER Transfer out from Stage 3 - - - -

AEF(BE),/  Net (reversal)/charge

BEO for the year( (147,884) 114,573 192,626 159,315

Hi1 5 Write-offs - ~ (167,419)  (167,419)

R+=-A=+—H At31December 470,330 945,545 1,541,774 2,957,649

oo Notes:

(1) AFEERMOFE(RFERD) (1) Net (reversal)/charge for the year comprises
BEREFENR BEEENR X the impairment losses attributable to new/
BABEEBBRTEER BRI H repaid loans, remaining loans without stage
RS EHEE - transfers, and changes to risk parameters,

etc.

72

172,152,650 F # P9
175,144,955 F & F§

As at 31 December 2023, the collateral
value of loans in Stage 1 and 2 is MOP
172,152,650 thousands (2022: MOP
175,144,955 thousands).
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4. cREMRERE (&) 4.
41 AR (&) 4.1
() B KHAMEEE) (1)

(A)  BEER

FEDBIRMEZEFPERDMN

(BREFRIGERRSN - S RBEAMHTABFITTT)
(Amount in thousands of Macao Patacas, unless otherwise stated)

Financial risk management (continued)
Credit risk (continued)

Advances and other accounts (continued)

(A) Impaired advances

Classified or impaired advances to

R customers are analysed as follows:
2023 2022
BHENBEIBEZ Gross classified or
EPERARE impaired advances to
customers 11,235,110 5,593,556
HEFENLEA DL Percentage of gross
advances to customers 8.60% 416%
B EMERELZ Impairment allowances
BB L made in respect of such
advances 2,718,140 1,541,774

FEDPBEREZEFER R
BARTEREED BN R
(A&t SRR RIERKDE
—HEERNER-

MEEREZEE LAERZE
HamEE-

Classified or impaired advances
to customers represent advances
which are either classified
“substandard”,“doubtful” or “loss” under
the Bank’s classification of loan quality,
or classified as Stage 3.

The impairment allowances were made
after taking into account the value
of collateral in respect of the credit-
impaired advances.

2023 2022
BEMBEBMEEHN Current market value of
FEDHESREZE  collateral held against
FERZEMMME the covered portion of
classified or impaired
advances to customers 9,132,177 2,115,040
Lt EEHEREZ 2  Covered portion of
SEDHEIRERF  classified or impaired
== advances to customers 6,338,418 1,846,746
Lt )2 BHE P mEE 2 Uncovered portion of
SEDHEIRERTF  classified or impaired
B3 advances to customers 4,896,692 3,746,810

R-ZOZ=%+=-_HA=+—8"
BREREBEZESEBEMRITAE
HeERmBEBER(ZOZ —_F:
/) o
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As at 31 December 2023, there were
no impaired trade bills and advances
to banks and other financial institutions
(2022: Nil).
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4.1
(1)

TR EkEEE(E)
= RER (&)

B RAMERE(E)

4.1
(1)

(B) BHIEBB=EAZEXR

BHEBE=EAZEREEOMN

T :

RPER@BE
EAaH:

—BB=fAAE
N iB N A A

— BB EAE
THB—F

—BE-F

B =
/zv H“—

B E S
ZREER

—F=KER

Gross advances to
customers which
have been overdue
for:

— 6 months or less

but over 3 months

— 1 year or less

but over 6 months
— over 1 year

Total

Impairment allowances

made in respect of
such advances
— Stage 3

MEEEEZE LAERZHE

MamEE-

(BREFRIGERRSN - SBEEAMHTA/BFTT L)
(Amount in thousands of Macao Patacas, unless otherwise stated)

Financial risk management (continued)
Credit risk (continued)

Advances and other accounts (continued)

(B) Advances overdue for more than 3
months

The gross amount of advances overdue
for more than 3 months is analysed as

follows:
2023 2022

% F EEF
ERARE ERER
| Batt k| EEN1
% of gross % of gross
advances advances
to to
Amount customers Amount  customers
1,108,069 0.85% 20,859 0.02%
1,712,896 1.31% 201,647 0.15%
1,937,961 1.48% 832,739 0.62%
4,758,926 3.64% 1,055 245 0.79%

1,037,969 713,590

The impairment allowances were made
after taking into account the value
of collateral in respect of the credit-
impaired advances.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

4. cREMRERE (&) 4.
41 AR (&) 4.1
() B KHAMEEE) (1)

(B) mEBB=EAZERE)

BB =EACEREELN
W (88)

(BREFRIGERRSN - S RBEAMHTABFITTT)
(Amount in thousands of Macao Patacas, unless otherwise stated)

Financial risk management (continued)
Credit risk (continued)

Advances and other accounts (continued)

(B) Advances overdue for more than 3
months (continued)

The gross amount of advances overdue
for more than 3 months is analysed as
follows: (continued)

2023 2022
M EMABEFRE  Current market value of
EMREZEFEF collateral held against the
ZEHRmTE covered portion of impaired
advances to customers 3,763,838 430,003
L EEHEREEZ Covered portion of impaired
ZRERFER advances to customers 2,979,832 249,553
EFit 2 B5HEFHE  Uncovered portion of impaired
Z 7 REXEFER advances to customers 1,779,094 805,692

BEE RSN EE RN R &
ITZRRARREFLAETNNER
BEUNBENMEEET  BAR
EFETHESREME -

R-ZOZ—=F+=-_/A=+—8"
REBRPBEBR=-RAZESERE
MIBETREMESRBEBE (=
OZZF:f&)-

Tai Fung Bank Limited Annual Report 2023

Collateral held against overdue or
impaired loans is principally represented
by charges over business assets such
as commercial, and residential premises
for corporate loans and mortgages over
residential properties for personal loans.

As at 31 December 2023, there were no
trade bills and advances to banks and
other financial institutions overdue for
more than 3 months (2022: Nil).

75



(R%RIGEERSIN - @ BMEMH/RMTTF T
(Amount in thousands of Macao Patacas, unless otherwise stated)

RA %5 & &% Pt 5F (48)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(continued)
4. =c=EEKREE(E) 4. Financial risk management (continued)
41 AR (&) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
() EHRAE#MIEKIEE) (Il)  Advances and other accounts (continued)
(C) BFPEXREHRE (C) Concentration of advances to customers
(i) HROESEIREFERSR (i) Sectoral analysis of gross
L5} advances to customers
LTHEREFPERERZ The following analysis of the gross
TEYET BETEH advances to customers by industry
BHO2BREBEHEERRBR sector is based on the categories
ZEeERWMERMNERET with reference to the completion
A & o instructions for the AMCM return
of loans and advances.
2023
HEE g REEE  HEEE
EF EXRBE KBTSE HEB=fA - -%-%
EX4E Aol %R E ZER  EZEBR  FZER
Impairment
Gross % of gross Overdue for Impairment allowances
advances to advancesto  Classified more than allowances - Stages 1
customers customers orimpaired 3 months - Stage 3 and 2
DA ERNBHK Corporate loan and
advances
REE Agriculture and fisheries 4573821 0.35% - - - 580
FBI% Mining industries - - - - - -
BliET® Manufacturing industries 6,552,605 5.02% 293,360 30,849 211,690 31,589
EVRE Electricity, gas and water
Rk 3,369,694 2.58% - - - 7,662
BERALTE  Construction and public
works 7404,139 5.67% 195,960 195,960 2,524 27,392
HELETEES Wholesale and retail trade 12,248,394 9.38% 2,288,450 110,267 257,545 40,058
Eig  ZEREE  Restaurants, hotels and
REBTE similar 1,238,978 0.95% 234 - 234 4,899
B%  SER@H  Transport, warehouse
and communications 1,627,214 1.25% - - - 5,319
FFTOEBEE  Non-bank financial
institutions 12,475,794 9.55% - - - 68,015
HE% Education 454,803 0.35% - - - 1,044
EARE Information technology 686,381 0.53% - - - 724
Hip17%0 Other industries 49,581,681 37.97% 7710,303 3,856,819 2,101,075 504,850
HAER Personal loans 34,471,814 26.40% 746,803 565,031 145,072 180,675
130,569,318 100.00% 11,235,110 4,758,926 2,718,140 872,807
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RA %5 3 2% P 5E (#8)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(continued)
4. SEiEERE(E) 4. Financial risk management (continued)
41 AR (&) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
() EHRAE#MIEKIEE) (Il)  Advances and other accounts (continued)
C) EFPEXRSEHEME) (C) Concentration of advances to customers
(continued)
(i) HBOEIPBIIRFEXRSE (i) Sectoral analysis of gross
(&) advances to customers
(continued)
LTHEREFPERERZ The following analysis of the gross
TEYET BETEH advances to customers by industry
Hh2REHEERRER sector is based on the categories
e ERWMKRNERET with reference to the completion
mamE - (&) instructions for the AMCM return of
loans and advances. (continued)
2022
HEP a8 HEEE  AEERE
o ERBE HBTOE BREZHEA - -E—H
N8R Bk %R B ZER  F-BBR  F-ER
Impairment
Gross % of gross Overdue for  Impairment  allowances
advances to advancesto  Classified  more than  allowances - Stages 1
customers  customers  or impaired 3 months - Stage 3 and 2
NEERNB K Corporate loan and
advances
BEX Agriculture and fisheries 573,424 0.43% - - - 3,189
REIL%E Mining industries 402,545 0.30% - - - 595
HETE Manufacturing industries 6,680,786 4.97% - - - 35,452
BN REMH Electricity, gas and water
Rk 4 167,683 3.10% - - - 11,115
BERALTIR  Construction and public
works 4,666,266 3.47% 194,214 - 273 84,930
HERTEES Wholesale and retail trade 11,698,215 8.70% 3,070 3,070 2,944 95,160
g ZEREE  Restaurants, hotels and
LEBTE similar 940,253 0.70% - - - 6,422
E&EENR@HA Transport, warehouse
and communications 906,413 0.67% - - - 2,929
FFTHEBEE  Non-bank financial
institutions 14,907,703 11.08% 610,730 610,730 533,884 71,934
HE% Education 516,411 0.38% - - - 2,342
ﬁﬁﬂﬁ%m Other industries( 52,899,158 39.33% 4,487 513 159,712 972,417 1,065,615
BAEH Personal loans 36,132,441 26.87% 298,029 281,733 32,256 36,192
134,491,298 100.00% 5,593,556 1,055,245 1,541,774 1,415,875
B 3E - Note:
(1) EfTEIZEERH (1)  Other industries mainly
EXx -HEMYEF include real estate, leasing
B RIKITEXS - and property investment, and

Tai Fung Bank Limited Annual Report 2023
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R 75 3 2= P &E (#8)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

4.1
(1)

Bl E R T ()

=RER (&)

B RAMERE(E)

(C) EwFE

REFEE)

4.1
(1)

(i) EHwEBEERHIBIEFE
X A8 R

TIBEREPERZ 2
BEEHONMEREISZHF
Z R - WE B KR R
BERZ - EFFPERZ
ERAMEMERTFERE
WwAR - BEREEREE

ERAZHEM -

EFERMAE

B PY

B A i

BB

H b B =K 0
Hh (@

REFERBHE

EH = R B %
B —F—M
EZMEER

R P

oA

7B

H b B8 5 A
i [

(BREFRIGERRSN - SBEEAMHTA/BFTT L)
(Amount in thousands of Macao Patacas, unless otherwise stated)

Financial risk management (continued)
Credit risk (continued)

Advances and other accounts (continued)

(C) Concentration of advances to customers
(continued)

(i)  Geographical analysis of gross
advances to customers

The following geographical
analysis of advances to customers
is based on the locations of the
counterparties, after taking into
account the transfer of risk. For an
advance to customer guaranteed
by a party situated in a location
different from the customer, the
risk will be transferred to the
location of the guarantor.

2023 2022
Gross advances to
customers
Macao 55,407,273 59,135,271
Mainland China 52,367,603 55,085,481
Hong Kong 18,183,933 15,647,360
Other countries and
regions 4,610,509 4,623,186
130,569,318 134,491,298
Impairment allowances
made in respect of the
gross advances
to customers
— Stages 1 and 2
Macao 282,828 312,403
Mainland China 460,400 1,004,711
Hong Kong 82,710 76,580
Other countries and
regions 46,869 22,181
872,807 1,415,875
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= (Br4FRIFERRSIN - @ BEMH AR TT L)
510 _ﬁsﬁoiingg ;%\I(Aﬁ:?AL STATEMENTS (AmoTunt in thousands ofili/le_fcao Patacag,E unlézs otherwise stated)
(continued)

4. ERIEKREE(E) 4. Financial risk management (continued)
41 AR (&) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
() EBHRAMEREE) (Il)  Advances and other accounts (continued)

(C) BPEREHREE) (C) Concentration of advances to customers

(continued)

(i) mWERES>EZEFPE (i) Geographical analysis of
g (E) gross advances to customers

(continued)

2023 2022
BHHEB=MA Advances overdue for
ZEX more than 3 months
A Macao 1,290,445 284,900
B A Mainland China 1,923,481 770,345
BB Hong Kong 1,545,000 -
4,758,926 1,055,245
8B Impairment allowances
=@EAZEX  made in respect of the
fEH 2 B E%  advances overdue for
# —FE=MKEK more than 3 months
— Stage 3
YR P Macao 128,608 35,094
R A Mainland China 754,861 678,496
A Hong Kong 154,500 -
1,037,969 713,590
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a# ﬁ EE § I‘ﬁl "I ( '%E ) (AmoTunt in thousands ofili/lalcao Patacag,E unlézs otherwise stated)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

4. ERIEKREE(E) 4. Financial risk management (continued)
41 AR (&) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
() EBHRAMEREE) (Il)  Advances and other accounts (continued)

(C) BPEREHREE) (C) Concentration of advances to customers

(continued)

(i) mWERES>EZEFPE (i) Geographical analysis of
g (E) gross advances to customers

(continued)

2023 2022
BRBEEDELRE Classified or
impaired advances
B P9 Macao 2,033,890 295,931
f B A Mainland China 5,784,277 3,716,546
b Hong Kong 3,416,943 1,581,079
11,235,110 5,593,556
REESESRE Impairment allowances
EXEEZ®WME  made in respect of
B —F=BEB the classified or
impaired advances
— Stage 3
B P Macao 477,638 35,238
HRE A Mainland China 1,973,711 1,373,655
BB Hong Kong 266,791 132,881
2,718,140 1,541,774

XERTEHGARLXFAN_-O=-Z=ZF%®
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510 ﬁsiEoirEg ;IIN(A?\E:?AL STATEMENTS (AmoTunt in thousands ofili/le_fcao Patacag,E unlézs otherwise stated)
(continued)

4. SEiEERE(E) 4. Financial risk management (continued)
41 AR (&) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
() EHRAE#MIEKIEE) (Il)  Advances and other accounts (continued)
(D) WEEE (D) Repossessed assets
RER - NRTRABEF@T During the year, the Bank obtained
FYEEERMBEFLER+ZH assets by taking possession of collateral
S+-HERFEMEE - HREBER held as security. The nature and
FREEMANT : carrying value of these assets held as
at 31 December are summarised as
follows:
2023 2022
BE3ZES Commercial properties 1,660,430 -
WEEESBEARRITRBE K The repossessed assets comprise
HEBEERIESENYE properties in respect of which the Bank
BBZEZEEREFIEFERBRRH has acquired access or control (e.g.
HHEESFANE MEBRA through court proceedings or voluntary
WEBETEELE DR - actions by the proprietors concerned)
for release in full or in part of the
obligations of the borrowers.
EWEEEMNERENZITE When the repossessed assets are not
B NR1TTHERE /R A5 R readily convertible into cash, the Bank
B IR may consider the following alternatives:
— HARHEER — adjusting the selling prices
— EHEREHREE-—HLHEE — selling the loans together with the
= assets
— RHEBEFA — arranging loan restructuring
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(continued)

4. TEREREEE)

41 EREAR (&)

() FERITREMEBEEZEHR T

I

REBURBEEHA 2 ERITREMESE
BMBZEREENERRAESBER

BEER DA an T

ERITREHM
TEERL
B

IE%

\]
/i

=
ﬁ ..
Rlid
B

8RR E A
S L e
BB R E N
B}

%

82

Balances and
placements with
banks and other
financial institutions

Pass

Of which :
Impairment allowances

Balances and
placements with
banks and other
financial institutions

Pass

Of which :
Impairment allowances

(R%RIGEERSIN - @ BMEMH/RMTTF T
(Amount in thousands of Macao Patacas, unless otherwise stated)

Financial risk management (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

(Ill)  Balances and placements with banks and

other financial institutions

Balances and placements with banks and
other financial institutions before impairment
allowances are analysed by the five-category
classifications and stage determination as
follows:

2023
PR — P& R= P& E = gt
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
17,015,380 - - 17,015,380
17,015,380 - - 17,015,380
(161) - - (161)
17,015,219 - - 17,015,219
2022
P& R — R — BB = st
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
29,237,141 - - 29,237,141
29,237,141 - - 29,237,141
(849) - - (849)
29,236,292 - - 29,236,292
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= (Br4FRIFERRSIN - @ BEMH AR TT L)
510 _ﬁsﬁoiingg ;II'\](A'T“;C?AL STATEMENTS (AmoTunt in thousands ofili/lgcao Patacag,E unlézs otherwise stated)
(continued)

4. SEiEERE(E) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 AR (&) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)

() FRITRAEMEHEZZ Zer R TFEE  (ll) Balances and placements with banks and
FH (&) other financial institutions (continued)
RZOZ=%F+ZHA=+—H KF@ As at 31 December 2023, there were no
HIRBECRITREM SR EE 2 & overdue or impaired balance and placements
BEEHER(ZOZZF : |&) - with banks and other financial institutions

(2022: Nil).
ERITREMSREE 2 &8 K& TEH Reconciliation of impairment allowances for
FRZBEEEZEBFRINREAT: balances and placements with banks and

other financial institutions is as follows:

2023
P& ER — P ER — P& ER = Mot
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Kn—H—H At 1 January 849 - - 849
N FF R Net reversal for the
year (688) - - (688)
mn+=—H At 31 December
=+—H 161 - - 161
2022
f& ER — B B — PEEX = @t
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
mn—H—8 At 1 January 468 - - 468
NEF B Net charge for the
year 381 - - 381
wn+=—AH At 31 December
=+—H 849 - - 849
RZOZ=F+=-—A=+—H ' 2F#@a As at 31 December 2023, there were no
HISRE 2 RITREM SR EE 2 & overdue or impaired balance and placements
BREHER(ZO=-_—_F &) with banks and other financial institutions

(2022: Nil).
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(continued)

4. TEREREEE)

41 EREAR (&)
(1V) (&7 i 5 R A7 i

TREUETIRRER
EERGERERGEE
EBHTHRNBRT

R -

NAREEE
BHEHZEHFTA
H2mEWKH
ZERERE
— Baal3ll F
— AN Baa3
— M\

LR A2
ZERERE
— Baa3ll F
— LA Baa3
— mA AR

84

(BR %5 RIFEEA SN -
(Amount in thousands of Macao Patacas, unless otherwise stated)

TREMGRE

FI7T+7T)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

Hrd
RS

mE) TN

Credit risk (continued)

Debt securities and certificates of deposit

The following tables present an analysis of
the carrying value of debt securities and
certificates of deposit by issue rating and
stage classification as at reporting date.

In

the absence of such issue ratings, the ratings
designated for the issuers are reported.

P ER —
Stage 1
Investment in securities
at fair value through
other comprehensive
income
— Above Baa3 24,885,280
— Lower than Baa3 357,829
— Unrated -
25,243,109
Of which:
Impairment allowances (17,137)
Investment in securities
at amortised cost
— Above Baa3 4,212,196
— Lower than Baa3 -
— Unrated 6,862,028
11,074,224
Of which :
Impairment allowances (510)
11,073,714

2023
P& B = BER=
Stage 2 Stage 3
619,720 -
619,720 -
(1,220) -
572,249 -
1,005,281 1,578,176
- 836,844

1,577,530 2,415,020

Fo
Total

25,505,000
357,829

25,862,829

(18,357)

4,784,445
2,583,457
7,698,872

15,066,774

(53,939) (1,517,376) (1,571,825)

1,523,591 897,644

13,494,949
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510 _ﬁsﬁoiingg ;ﬁ\l(A.T\l;C?AL STATEMENTS (AmoTunt in thousands ofili/lgcao Patacag,E unlézs otherwise stated)
(continued)

4. SEiEERE(E) 4. Financial risk management (continued)
41 AR (&) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
(IV) EFEZEHRZLE(E) (V) Debt securities and certificates of deposit
(continued)
TERBUEBETIAREERIT Z2ES The following tables present an analysis of
BARALGREREEANKREE & the carrying value of debt securities and
BETHAEANBAT  AgRETA certificates of deposit by issue rating and
WA RmE - (8) stage classification as at reporting date. In
the absence of such issue ratings, the ratings
designated for the issuers are reported.
(continued)
2022
B BR — PEER — PEER = s
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
LAREEFE  Investment in securities
BHEZFA at fair value through
Hih 2@k & other comprehensive
ZEERE income
— Baa3A £ — Above Baa3 16,050,074 563,298 - 16,613,372
— LA~ Baa3 — Lower than Baa3 462,233 - - 462,233
— B AR — Unrated 964,929 78,969 - 1,043,898
17,477,236 642,267 - 18,119,503
He: Of which :
B E 2 Impairment allowances (22,366) (1,569) - (23,935)
LB A A5t E  Investment in securities
ZEHFRE at amortised cost
— Baa3M\ £ — Above Baa3 528,102 893,565 - 1,421,667
— LA~ Baa3 — Lower than Baa3 80,771 933,648 - 1,014,419
— B AR — Unrated 16,428,884 989,912 1,215,935 18,634,731
17,037,757 2,817,125 1,215935 21,070,817
H: Of which :
BB E Impairment allowances (1,893)  (62,761) (294,818) (359,472)

17,035,864 2,754,364 921,117 20,711,345
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a# ﬁ EE § I‘ﬁl "I ( '%E ) (AmoTunt in thousands ofili/lalcao Patacag,E unlézs otherwise stated)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

4. =c=EEKREE(E) 4. Financial risk management (continued)
41 AR (&) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
(IV) EFEZEHRZLE(E) (V) Debt securities and certificates of deposit
(continued)
EEEFRTRBEZREERBEF Reconciliation of impairment allowances for
b CNE debt securities and certificates of deposit is
as follows:
2023
PR — PEER— BER= Mt
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
LAREESE  Investment in securities
BHEHZFA at fair value through
Hih 2@k & other comprehensive
ZEERE income
Rn—A—H At 1 January 22,366 1,569 - 23,935
BHE-BR Transfer out from Stage 1 (478) 347 - (131)
REFRMEO Net charge for the year(® (4,751) (696) - (5,447)
BN+=-A=+—H At31 December 17,137 1,220 - 18,357
2022
B ER — PR ER = P ER = it
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
LAAREEE  Investment in securities

BHZBTA at fair value through
Htt2mEU = other comprehensive

ZEHFERE income
Kn—HA—H At 1 January 6,023 - - 6,023
BEE-BE Transfer out from Stage 1 (712) 903 - 191
REFEBEO Net charge for the year® 17,055 666 - 17,721
BN+=-A=+—H At31 December 22,366 1,569 - 23,935
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(continued)

4. SREREEGE) 4.
41 FRAER(E) 41
(IV) EFEFRFAEE) (IV)

EHREFRFREZRELEEZ DS

BRI - (&)

LU eR R AT B
ZRERE
n—H—H
BHE R
BEE R
BB PR
AREF(EE),/
BB

R+=A=+-H

LU 8% X A 5T B
ZEHRE
R—A—H
BHE R
EHE_ER
HHE=ER

A (BE),/

BB
R+=A=+—8
Bt 3

Investment in securities
at amortised cost
At 1 January
Transfer out from Stage 1
Transfer out from Stage 2
Transfer out from Stage 3
Net (reversal)/charge
for the year®

At 31 December

Investment in securities
at amortised cost
At 1 January
Transfer out from Stage 1
Transfer out from Stage 2
Transfer out from Stage 3
Net (reversal)/charge
for the year®

At 31 December

(1) AFEFERD BELENBE/
CEENEBESRFRE - KRB
ERBEMEEENERRFRE
RBR2RAESZERNER -
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SRBEMHRRFMTTIT)

(Amount in thousands of Macao Patacas, unless otherwise stated)

Financial risk management (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Debt securities and certificates of deposit

(continued)

Reconciliation of impairment allowances for
debt securities and certificates of deposit is

as follows: (continued)

P ER—
Stage 1

1,893
(16)

(1,367)

510

BB —
Stage 1

206,426
(199,598)

(4,935)

1,893

Note:

2023
P& B = BER=
Stage 2 Stage 3
62,761 294,818
16 -
(9,421) 673,144
583 549,414
53,939 1,517,376

2022
fEBR— B =
Stage 2 Stage 3
62,532 294,818
229 -
62,761 294,818

4t
Total

359,472

663,723

548,630

1,571,825

oS
Total

206,426
157,752

(4,708)

359,472

@) Net (reversal)/charge for the year comprises
of the impairment losses attributable to new/
redeemed debt securities and certificates
of deposits, remaining debt securities
and certificates of deposits without stage
transfers, and changes to risk parameters,

etc.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

4. SEiEERE(E) 4. Financial risk management (continued)
41 AR (&) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
(IV) EFEZEHRZLE(E) (V) Debt securities and certificates of deposit
(continued)
BEX B BRI S RFRE B The gross impaired or overdue debt securities
DT and certificates of deposit are analysed as
follows:
2023 2022

WMESRBHHFHKE Impaired or overdue
investment in securities

BiBE=EHETHEE 6 months or less but over

7~ B A 3 months - 1,215,935

FBiE N AETEBE 1 year or less but over
s 6 months - -
83— over 1 year 1,284,441 -
1,284,441 1,215,935

® L FEHF R EED 2 Impairment allowances

AR ZE A made in respect of such
investment in securities
FZEE Stage 3 844,232 294,818

XERTEHGARLXFAN_-O=-Z=ZF%®
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

4. TREREE(E) 4.
41 ERRR (&) 41
(V) BEAARZRYBEERE R (V)

EREERMGRRAAEARD B

REBESTWOT:
ERA#ER Loan commitments
BBERER and financial guarantee
contracts
E% Pass
apzd Special Mention
R AR Substandard
o] &t Doubtful
Bx Loss
Hep: Of which,
HEER impairment allowance
EXMAER Loan commitments
HEERER and financial guarantee
contracts
E® Pass
2pad Special Mention
KRR Substandard
] & Doubtful
BX Loss
AR Of which,
BEER impairment allowance
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(BREFRIGERRSN - S RBEAMHTABFITTT)
(Amount in thousands of Macao Patacas, unless otherwise stated)

Financial risk management (continued)
Credit risk (continued)

Loan commitments and financial guarantee
contracts

Loan commitments and financial guarantee
contracts are analysed by the five-category
classifications and stage determination as
follows:

2023
P& B — BEER= BER= ‘st
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
19,302,176 256,723 - 19,558,899
- 741,417 - 741,417
19,302,176 998,140 - 20,300,316
(44,370) (5,992) - (50,362)
19,257,806 992,148 - 20,249,954
2022
R — R = = st
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
20,521,527 991,773 - 21,513,300
- 128,749 - 128,749
- - 6,180 6,180
- - 3 3
- - 1 1
20,521,527 1,120,522 6,184 21,648,233
(60,163) (8,616) (12) (68,791)
20,461,364 1,111,906 6,172 21,579,442
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)
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B AR DFERE R (E) (V)

SORCGE R BB R AR 2 R R
BHERA AT

n—H—H
B B B B = AE
)

B E— PR
B T PR
BHE=MER

AEF (FE),/

BEo

W+=A=+-H

0% 7%

B 35 48 BB
M EEEEEEN S |
E#%\%%ﬁ”dﬁ”dﬂ@
|I|||
i
>‘2”‘

:ﬁ:m

%FE

@

At 1 January
Changes arising from
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Net (reversal)/charge
for the year®
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(BREFRIGERRSN - SBEEAMHTA/BFTT L)
(Amount in thousands of Macao Patacas, unless otherwise stated)

Financial risk management (continued)
Credit risk (continued)

Loan commitments and financial guarantee
contracts (continued)

Reconciliation of impairment allowances for
loan commitments and financial guarantee
contracts is as follows:

2023
P ER— PEER— BER= At
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
60,163 8,616 12 68,791
(15,198) 5,095 - (10,103)
78 (1,104) - (1,026)
(673) (6,615) (12) (7,300)
44,370 5,992 - 50,362
2022
BB — R — PR = G
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
73,982 32,076 - 106,058
(496) 1,514 9 1,027
41 (15,313) 2 (15,270)
(13,364) (9,661) 1 (23,024)
60,163 8,616 12 68,791
Note:

@) Net (reversal)/charge for the year comprises
of the impairment losses attributable to
new/cancelled loan commitments and
financial guarantee contracts, remaining
loan commitments and financial guarantee
contracts without stage transfers, and
changes to risk parameters, etc.
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Financial risk management (continued)

Market Risk
Overview

Market risk refers to the risk of loss arising
from movements in the value of foreign
exchange, interest rate, equity and commodity
positions held by the Bank due to the volatility
of financial market price. The Bank adopts a
moderate market risk appetite to achieve the
balance between risk and return. The Bank’s
objective in managing market risk is to secure
healthy growth, by the effective management
of potential market risk in the Bank’s business,
according to the Bank’s overall risk appetite
and strategy of the business on the basis of a
well-established risk management regime and
related management measures.

The market risk of the Bank mainly comes
from debt securities for business purposes,
followed by debt securities for liquidity
purposes and related investment business
of stocks, and also involves relatively small
investment scale of debt securities and equity
instruments for trading purposes, etc.

In accordance with the Bank’s corporate
governance principles in respect of risk
management, the Board, senior managements
and functional departments/units perform
their duties and responsibilities to manage
the Bank’s market risk. RM is responsible for
the Bank’s market risk management, assisting
senior managements to perform their day-
to-day duties, independently monitoring
the market risk profile and compliance of
management policies, and ensuring that the
aggregate and individual market risks are
within acceptable levels.

The Bank uses sensitivity analysis, foreign
exchange exposure and interest rate re-
pricing gap analysis as the primary
instruments to monitor market risk.
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(BREFRIGERRSN - SBEEAMHTA/BFTT L)
(Amount in thousands of Macao Patacas, unless otherwise stated)

Financial risk management (continued)
Market Risk (continued)
Foreign Currency risk

The majority of the Bank’s assets and
liabilities are denominated in Macao Patacas,
Hong Kong Dollars and United States Dollars.
To ensure the currency risk exposure of the
Bank is kept to an acceptable level, risk
limits (e.g. Position and VaR limit) are used
to serve as a monitoring tool. Moreover, the
Bank seeks to minimise the gap between
assets and liabilities in the same currency.
Foreign exchange contracts are usually used
to manage FX risk associated with foreign
currency-denominated assets and liabilities.

(1)  The exposure of the Bank’s financial
assets and financial liabilities to foreign
currency risk at each reporting date was

&
Bt 75 R 3= B 5E (48)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)
4. SREKREREE) 4.
4.2 WHERAK (&) 4.2
()  SMEER (1)
ABETMEERBESPERMT
BT - RETETEEE - BIERI
BE 2| o 75 JE R 15 2 B] B X OKCF 0 KR
17 7 8 R e PR 2R (91 4 S8~ Je 7 45 2 B
BE)FER/EET A - o NIETH
ARBOR—EHHEERE FIHA
WTBEFNAINESGHNERRINEEE
BEMEEMNIINERR -
(1) BeREENEREEHENS
EAERMINERBR M OLLT
AR
MOP
tHEE Financial assets
ReREHRE Cash and balances
with banks 500,892
GRREMEBEER  Deposits with AMCM 2,003,539
FRBIRERLE  Placements with banks
SREE and other financial
institutions 409,580
TRRE Financial investments 5,233,084
ERREMER Advances and other
\ accounts 26,281,044
HtEE Other assets 118,211
34,546,350
tHEE Financial liabilities
ROREMER Deposits and balances
BREIERREH of banks and other
financial institutions 1,895,385
RFRER Deposits from customers 25,132,731
BIENE Certificates of deposit in
issug -
kERE Subordinated liabilities =
EHEE Others liabilities 150,989
27,179,105
BEEEFET Net on-balance sheet
position 7,367,245
EEAR Credit commitments 3,851,405
TESBTIAN Derivatives () =

as follows:
2023

B Ey AR# Eth @t
HKD usb CNY Others Total
650,656 482,435 5,075,313 87,131 6,796,427
- - - - 2,003,539
2,513,705 3,728,929 2,172,576 337300 9,162,090
9,370,200 34,845,240 855,030 179,826 50,483,380
66,692,896 13,958,537  17434,499 2,611,395 126,978,371
477864 123,670 4,519 (112,615) 611,649
79,705321 53,138,811 25,541,937 3,103,037 196,035,456
4,704,953 14,778,917 15,105,793 2,424,392 38,909,440
89,628,113 7594265 13,189,921 1,438,166 136,983,196
2,065,757 - - - 2,065,757
413,469 80,161 26,879 5,821 677,319
96,812,292 22,453,343 28,322,593 3,868,379 178,635,712
(17.106,971) 30,685,468  (2,780,656) (765,342)  17,2399,744
9,483,812 3571774 695,595 56,738 17,665,324
(4,908,143) 1,005,328 3,383,172 568,013 48,370
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ﬂjﬁﬁiméz(ﬁ) (BB RIGERASN - € BB AR T T IT)
R ) (Amount in thousands of Macao Patacas, unless otherwise stated)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)
4. SEiEERE(E) 4. Financial risk management (continued)
4.2 mizRAR (&) 4.2 Market Risk (continued)
(1)  SNERR(E) (I)  Foreign Currency risk (continued)
1) FHeHEELERAEEEHRERNS (1)  The exposure of the Bank’s financial
EEEENIERREROMT: assets and financial liabilities to foreign
(&) currency risk at each reporting date was
as follows: (continued)
2022
RAT B e N -0 B
MOP HKD Usb CNY Others Total
tHEE Financial assets
ReRFHAZ Cash and balances
with banks 599,046 509,791 207,209 2,953,976 1,027,728 5297750
GHREMEBEER  Deposits with AMCM 2,195,638 - - - - 2,195,638
FHETEEREL  Placements with banks
SREE and other financial
‘ institutions 202,528 8,328,040 7,501,342 6,225,506 527,697 22,785,113
ﬁﬁ?&ﬁ Financial investments 8,881,901 11546929 29,314,139 364,949 329,450 50,437,368
ERRAMER Advances and other
‘ accounts 23874219 71949501 19541419 13,489,193 2679317 131,533,649
EpEE Other assets 295,647 270,008 172,281 7462 (109,055) 636,343
36,048979 92604269 56,736,390 23,041,086 4455137 212,885,861
tHER Financial liabilities
ROREMER Deposits and balances
BB ETRES of banks and other
financial institutions 1,896,405 7722624 17787119 14,596,446 2,970,967 44,973 561
RPRER Deposits from customers 25,894,286 99,916,764 4431726 8,204,513 1,709,561 140,156,850
RENE Certificates of deposit in
A issug - 2564212 1,193,620 336,222 - 4,094,054
RERE Subordinated liabilties - 1,998,200 - - - 1,998,200
EtgE Others liabilities 346,309 175,977 11,958 17,956 289 555,095
28137000 112377777 23424423 23,155,137 4683423 191,777,760
BEAEREY Net on-halance sheet
position 7911979 (19,773508) 33,311,967 (114,051) (228,286) 21,108,101
EE&E Credit commitments 3,095,338 10,676,207 4159972 1,937,280 98922 19,967,719
fTESBIAN Derivatives (1 - 965,332 (1,059,127) 100,497 14,107 20,809
B 5E - Note:
(1N TEeRIARREETETAN (1)  Derivatives represent the net notional
BEASFE  BERIEHE amount of currency derivatives, including
HSNEE - R EASNEE - HNEE IR BR AN B #E undelivered foreign exchange spot, foreign
HARE - exchange forward, foreign exchange swap
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= (BR4FRIERRSN - @B EMHE AR ITT L)
u ﬁ EE § Bﬁ "I ( E ) (AmoTunt in thousands ofili/lz_;cao Patacag,E unlézs otherwise stated)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

< L b 2 (4E) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

™ 35 Bk (%) 4.2 Market Risk (continued)

AN 2 B (48 ) (I)  Foreign Currency risk (continued)

(2) ARITEKAGREDNESEE (2) The Bank uses sensitivity analysis to
B AR 17 A /FEJE”JTaE TE o measure the potential effect of changes
TRINEREE BIRE A BT in foreign currency exchange rates
EENMBEETEXRHRXRESN on the Bank’s profit or loss and other

MR comprehensive income. The following
table sets forth, as at reporting date, the
results of the Bank’s foreign exchange
rate sensitivity analysis:

2023 2022
Hth Hth
B 2HEK & B 2EKE
Other Other
Profit comprehensive Profit comprehensive
or loss income or loss income
F{B3% 3% appreciation 968,799 (20,911) 967,179 (34,552)
7 1E3% 3% depreciation (968,799) 20,911 (967,179) 34,552
WEGRESMEREEMERE This sensitivity analysis is based on
H A5 RE ) [ X 3 b 45 18 DA T A a static foreign exchange exposure
THBRR: (NS EEXHRE R profile of assets and liabilities and
BEEBHRERMAITIAMSEAE XK certain assumptions as follows: (1) the
B (R EE) B X 4 ¥ 8 K 300 foreign exchange sensitivity is the gain
EMERNELEBEZ Q&% and loss recognised as a result of 300
EERFTIEXRRFR MK S A basis point fluctuation in the foreign
ARERTRAEKEXREE 2 HH currency exchange rates against MOP
HEM: Q) ENNEHROK - B at the reporting date; (2) the exchange

BT RVEISNE R O~ AR B A1 FE ik rates against MOP for all foreign
AAEA#E - BFfFESRT B ®ir currencies change in the same direction
B WHEIHBER Ao simultaneously and does not take
T\M%F%EEET ?z:ﬁﬁﬂ T into account the correlation effect of
BRHAFRE E L2 B E’\ﬁ changes in different foreign currencies;
LR - X “ﬂ:%?ﬁlﬁfﬁ and (3) the foreign exchange exposures
1T 5L Al a’“'J/FEJﬁfEEI’]A &Pl Be calculated include both spot foreign
B SRR M DT AE R AR exchange exposures, foreign exchange
derivative instruments, and; all positions
will be retained and rolled over upon
maturity. The analysis does not take into
account the effect of risk management
measures taken by management. Due
to the assumptions adopted, actual
changes in the Bank’s profit before
tax and other comprehensive income
resulting from increases or decreases in
foreign exchange rates may differ from
the results of this sensitivity analysis.
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H (BREFRIGERRSN - S RBEAMHTABFITTT)
510 ﬁsﬁﬁg‘g ;IIN(A?\E:?AL STATEMENTS (AmoTunt in thousands ofili/le_fcao Patacag,E unlézs otherwise stated)
(continued)

4. SEiEERE(E) 4. Financial risk management (continued)
4.2 TWiGEE(HE) 4.2 Market Risk (continued)
(1) A 2= b (1) Interest rate risk
Al Z@EL B 2 #5 A A FKF - ﬁ?ﬁ%fﬁ Interest rate risk means the risks to a bank’s
HA PR 4% T% EEEZBRLEEEHMAIEEH earnings and economic value arising from
fE TTE BE L 2 AN A J—%ﬁ BEAXEBRD movements in interest rate and term structures
o RIRITH M EE b A EEE K of the bank’s asset and liability positions. The
E % MHRHE - EBUEFRENETER Bank’s interest rate risk exposures are mainly
RN structural. The major types of interest rate risk

from structural positions are:

— E¥TERR:-EEHABGBEME — Repricing risk: mismatches in the
ﬁl\IEE@JHﬂHH R EHEERAR maturity or repricing periods of assets
FHEEZR EMxfFNERA and liabilities, and off-balance sheet
N EEE: items, that may affect net interest

income and economic value;

— HEERR:FEEETRAIRT — Basis risk: difference in pricing
@E}E‘%‘%Wﬁ\\iﬁ TEEMNRE benchmarks between on and off
EHNBENKARGEEER—= balance sheet items resulting that the
FTERHE AR REEZt: yield on assets and cost of liabilities

may change by different amounts within
the same repricing period;

—  aE =R ER B —  Yield curve risk: irregular changes in
ﬁ?THHﬁ B E ?-7J<$ BETR the interest rate levels of different tenor

J """"" AE) T OEOFR B A S on the yield curve that may have an
BEEEELABRETE K adverse impact on net interest income

or economic value; and

— HRERRBR-BERAE - BENEK —  Optionality risk: exercise of the options
;vMEEBﬁ SR B embedded or implicit in assets,
WOERENEHEEESE liabilities or off-balance sheet items that

EOHEER - can cause a change in the cash flows
of assets and liabilities.

R 1T R R B B I8 %Hﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁé\ﬂ The Bank’s risk management framework
EEEIRE - REREREIEMEANIE applies also to interest rate risk management.
HlEZE g ENCRITERER A X R The Asset-Liability Committee (“ALCQO”)
ERME) 5}*%%% PLEgAE exercises its oversight of interest rate risk in
BTEEBRTNEEBROBE - AE accordance with the “Banking Book Interest
HEasLrAROTEPMNEERRER & Rate Risk Management Policy” approved by
eH EEEXRESHENOR the RMICC. TD is responsible for interest rate
EN MBhEEABEEEZESHE risk management. With the cooperation of FN,
Elﬁﬂ”\]ﬂ%ﬁkﬁﬁﬁﬁlf/ﬁ 2R EIERE RM, and Financial Products and Investment
RABIAFMERERREERERE KZA Management Department (“FPIM”), TD assists
B2 38 12 A0 R %E DQJ%(%‘JZAZELFEAR%IE 4 the ALCO to perform day-to-day interest rate
REARBHRTEBEL WaEEERASR risk management. Its roles include, but are
UNEERBREREANLEFNZEGRER not limited to, the formulation of management

ﬂﬁﬂﬁﬁ%’ffi#& % o policies, setting of risk indicators and limits,
monitoring of the compliance with policies
and limits, and submission of interest rate risk
management reports to senior management
and the RMICC, etc.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)
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(Amount in thousands of Macao Patacas, unless otherwise stated)

Financial risk management (continued)
Market Risk (continued)
Interest rate risk (continued)

The Bank sets out interest rate risk indicators
and limits to identify, measure, monitor and
control interest rate risk. The indicators and
limits include, but are not limited to duration,
net interest income sensitivity ratio (“NII”),
and economic value limit (“EV”), etc. The
indicators and limits approved by the ALCO
and RMICC accordingly. Risk-taking business
units are required to conduct their business
within the boundary of the interest rate risk
limits.

NIl and EV assess the impact of interest
rate movement on the Bank’s net interest
income and capital base. They are the Bank’s
key interest rate risk indicators. The former
assesses the impact of interest rate movement
on net interest income as a percentage to
the projected net interest income for the year.
The latter assesses the impact of interest
rate movement on EV (i.e. the net present
value of cash flows of assets, liabilities and
off-balance sheet items discounted using
the market interest rate) as a percentage to
the latest capital base. Limits are set by the
RMICC on these two indicators to monitor and
control the Bank’s banking book interest rate
risk.

The Bank uses scenario analyses and stress
tests to assess the banking book interest
rate risk that the Bank would face under
adverse circumstances. Scenario analyses
and stress tests are also used to assess the
impact on net interest income and economic
value arising from the different interest rate
changes.
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H (BREFRIGERRSN - S RBEAMHTABFITTT)
510 ﬁsiEoirEg ;IIN(A?\E:?AL STATEMENTS (AmoTunt in thousands ofili/le_fcao Patacag,E unlézs otherwise stated)
(continued)

4. SEiEERE(E) 4. Financial risk management (continued)
4.2 TWiGEE(HE) 4.2 Market Risk (continued)
(1)  F == b (E) (1) Interest rate risk (continued)

1) #HELER EHTHMEHRZF (1)  As at reporting date, if market interest
EHEFITR @1001. AR H rates had a 100 basis point parallel shift
HEAEZTEFRT  HARBRITE of the yield curve with other variables
5E+:1IHEI’J/¥?|J B A ) 8% held constant, the sensitivities on net
JER NN interest income over a 12 month period

for the Bank would have been as

follows:
2023 2022
B B
Profit or loss Profit or loss
£ F1001E £ 24 + 100 basis points 942,970 956,302
T BE1001E Z Bh — 100 basis points (942,970) (956,302)
LG REFEEEFARE The measure above are for illustration
EFEFEETERR) TIRE only and are based on several
MEEERSEOMMEEEZ - assumptions, including, but not limited
?'J?—”?ﬂ“&@) KRt & BRI F to, the change in the correlation
KE AT RE BRENA AR R R PR 1T 8D - between interest rates of relevant
ﬁﬁ? )@i’] AEE =R =N currencies, parallel movement of interest
REFEHESGNETEREE rates, the absence of actions that
-:ﬁ\i)xﬁéﬂ HAZEmMNE MR would be taken to mitigate the impact
uX o Pt B b A IER BARITE of interest rate risk, all positions being
BN RERAEN—FD - assumed to run to maturity, behavioural

assumptions of products in which the
actual repricing date differs from the
contractual repricing date or products
without contractual maturity. The above
exposures form only a part of the Bank’s
overall interest rate risk exposures.
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= (BR4FRIERRSN - @B EMHE AR ITT L)
a# ﬁ EE § I‘ﬁl "I ( '%E ) (AmoTunt in thousands ofili/lalcao Patacag,E unlézs otherwise stated)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(continued)

4. =c=EEKREE(E) 4. Financial risk management (continued)
4.2 miEEAR (&) 4.2 Market Risk (continued)

(1)  F == b (E) (1) Interest rate risk (continued)

(2) THRBEMTARRITRE %ﬁ =Ryl (2)  The tables below summarise the Bank’s
R R &R AR R bR E on-balance sheet exposure to interest
KANERmEIREE & BE- rate risk as at reporting date. Included
WIZEHEEE ?- El Hi sk B HA A in the tables are the assets and liabilities
(NREERE)DHE - at carrying amounts, categorised by the

earlier of contractual repricing date and
maturity date.
2023
=faA -
ZfiRn E-f Enf BENE Rits it
Between Between Non-
Less than 3 months Tyearto  More than interest
3 months to 1 year 5 years 5 years bearing Total
tREE Financial assets

ReREHAE Cash and balances

with banks 5,179,586 70,004 - - 946,837 6,796,427

GHRRFPEBERR  Deposits with AMCM 2,003,539 - - - - 2,003,539

FHBTAEREL  Placements with banks

SREE and other financial
institutions 8,976,206 185,884 - - - 9,162,090
SBRE Financial investments 11,621,777 4,951,814 21,765,298 3,793,324 8,351,167 50,483,380

ERRENEE Advances and other
accounts 108,913,268 8,265,173 9,799,306 624 - 126,978,371

fTEERIA Derivative financial

instruments 52,516 352 - - - 52,868
EpEE Other assets 393,954 214,399 3,296 - - 611,649
137,740,846  13,687626 31,567,900 3,793,948 9,298,004 196,088,324

tHAE Financial liabilities

RORAEREE Deposits and balances

LERRER of banks and other
mancwal institutions 29,918,064 1777401 1,213,975 - - 38,909,440
RFER Deposits from customers 96,800,923 36,330,885 17791 - 3,833,597 136,983,196

RENE Certificates of deposit
in issue - - - - - -
fESHMIA Derivative financial

instruments 4,367 131 - - - 4,498
kEEE Subordinated liabilities - 5,757 2,060,000 - - 2,065,757
EfaE Others liabilities 646,204 7,336 23,179 - - 677,319
12736955 44121510 331555 - 3833507 178640210
NEGBERD Interest sensitivity gap 10,371,288  (30,433,884) 28,252,355 3,793,948 5,464,407 17,448,114
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H (BREFRIGERRSN - S RBEAMHTABFITTT)
510 ﬁsﬁﬁg‘g ;IIN(A?\E:?AL STATEMENTS (AmoTunt in thousands ofili/le_fcao Patacag,E unlézs otherwise stated)
(continued)

4. SEiEERE(E) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 mWiEEK (&) 4.2 Market Risk (continued)
() Fx= b (&) (1) Interest rate risk (continued)
(2) TERBMT AR %ﬁ =Ryl (2)  The tables below summarise the Bank’s
kR &R A e X 7 }_L R P o on-balance sheet exposure to interest
%’%WM%@@@E'JF%F&%E rate risk as at reporting date. Included

VAN EFTRERBEHA I HH

(NBREERE) DR - (B)

SREE

A2 RERAR
FRRRALHEER
FRETRZREM
SHER

SRLE
EFREMER

fEeRIA
AfEE

SRAR
BOREMREE
PAF L

EPER
¥hERE

fEepIa

B

af
Eh8f

hﬂi?&

NEGRERD

Financial assets

Cash and balances
with banks

Deposits with AMCM

Placements with banks
and other financial
institutions

Financial investments

Advances and other
accounts

Derivative financial
instruments

Other assets

Financial liabilities
Deposits and balances
of banks and other
mancwalms tions
Deposits from customers
Certificates of deposit

in issue
Derivative financial
instruments
Subordinated liabilities
Others liabilities

Interest sensitivity gap

“EAR

Less than
3 months

4,180,077
2,195,638

22,785,113
17,934,369
104,733,931

28,453
636,343

152,493,924

36,265,756
97,919,292

3,247,745
9,216

535,825

137,977,834

14,616,090
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in the tables are the assets and liabilities
at carrying amounts, categorised by the
earlier of contractual repricing date and
maturity date. (continued)

2022
=R —f

i-F gk BENE HE st

Between Between Non-

3 months Tyearto  Morethan interest
01 year 5 years 5 years bearing Total
75,465 - - 1042208 5297750
- - - - 2,195,638
- - - - 22,785,113
4632248 22,198,333 842,099 4830319 50,437,368
10,973,759 15,216,776 267,528 341,655 131,533,649
3,854 - - - 32,307
- - - - 636,343
15,685,326 37,415,109 1109627 6,214,182 212,918,168
5462,605 3,245,150 - - 44973 561
37,781,552 120,429 - 4335577 140,156,850
846,309 - - - 4,094,054
2,282 - - - 11,498
1,998,200 - - - 1,998,200
19,270 - - - 565,095
46,110,268 3,365,579 - 433577 191,789,258
(30,424.942) 34,049,530 1,109,627 1878605  21,128910

99



(BREFRIGERRSN - SBEEAMHTA/BFTT L)
(Amount in thousands of Macao Patacas, unless otherwise stated)

R 75 3 2= P &E (#8)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

100

4. SEiEERE(E) 4. Financial risk management (continued)
4.3 FEHEER 4.3 Liquidity Risk
mBEREEEREBRITEEICERKER Liquidity risk is the risk that banks may
SEENEGERKAESREESNE not be able to obtain sufficient and timely
HEEERRIBEBIPNLORLR - funding in a short period of time or at a
AN ERATH) O B 1 R B 3k ROR N R R reasonable cost to cope with the growth of
SABMRRES U REMN assets or the payment of debts when they
EEBEABTE: EFRRERK: are due. The Bank’s liquidity risk may be
BMERRIREKBRNBERE: B8 5 derived from specific scenarios or liquidity
ERIARTHA: AXFHFEREM risk events, such as a significant decline in
RESHERSE - the value of liquid assets; a sudden large
withdrawal of deposits; limited or shortened
funding sources; downgrade of its own credit
rating; or sudden requests for margin calls or
guarantee by counterparties, etc.
ARITEBLEESNRBERERA In accordance with the Bank’s corporate
EEBELNBERRE EFg BEA governance principles in respect of risk
BEERELZES mEBTEABNEB management, the Board, ALCO, senior
BB FAAER FAEHEE - management and functional departments/
EEEENDECRREBERIKE - units perform their duties and responsibilities
THARBESRRAEEREERT - to manage the Bank’s liquidity risk. The Board
EREREANSEFNEZESRELE is the decision-making authority of liquidity
BEEEZESEEHENRDES risk management, and assumes the ultimate
FEk MEABRITHEBRLERFEE responsibility of liquidity risk management. As
EERTHRYE ¢ ERR LA BUR authorised by the Board, ALCO exercises its
RE- MEHXEFTEZEEERRTRIE oversight of liquidity risk and ensures the daily
TREkRER  EAESLRRE RS operations of the Bank are in accordance with
ZE5E BEZSENBEIIHHE the risk appetite and policies as set by the
EBREERZESRITABNRDE Board. FN is responsible for overseeing the
©EEBE - Bank’s liquidity risk. It cooperates with the
TD and RM, etc. to assist ALCO to perform
liquidity management functions according to
their specific responsibilities.
RIRTHEARBURBEBIEREESR The Bank considers liquidity risk management
EERNEEZAKIN  WEEAR a significant component of asset-liability
RETENRABTEEABHRRK management, and determines the size,
EBANER ZYRSMEASAEE structure and duration of assets and liabilities
mBMER - AHESRIREERE consistent with the principle of overall
S 2 KEALOTTFEH TEMER balance between assets and liabilities. The
B SeZREFPRARBERE ®BE Bank establishes its liquidity portfolio to
RAMESRBRERFEFREZ BEX mitigate liquidity risk, and to minimise the
BREPEX NAREHFER M5 gaps in the amount and duration between the
g BOEREFESMEBERES X funding sources and the uses of funds. The
RELEFABESRRERE RamB Bank takes into consideration various factors
KIRHZ AL MBEE - including customer risk sensitivity, financing

cost and concentration of funding sources. In
addition, the Bank prioritises the development
of customer deposits, dynamically adjusts
the structure of funding sources by market-
oriented financing modes, including due to
banks and other financial institutions, inter-
bank borrowings and certificate of deposit
issuance, and improves the diversity and
stability of financing sources.
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mEEBHREAENEERRRE R
TWH% FRRNBRMAEMEER -
FRMNBEMERERER BEXKHM
FERGMEEE - EERME LA
B MOARBAREENEHER
AE% &k 1D R HI R P 17 R B # ik
A BE A SR X o ARER 1T b A DA B 18
%H%m%ﬁkéi\ﬁﬁi%~ﬁ
EEFUANEMEBINGE T RE T
TRAIEHONREFRL -
Kﬁﬁ@ﬁ%% MEEMTRAEE
BRI IGMN - & E S B LT

%D%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ‘}ﬁ@’lﬁﬁk 0 W0 i A
%ﬁmum%ﬂl@ié%ﬁf‘tﬁﬁé%ﬂiﬂﬂ
REBEENTAFEMBSIAFR -

AIRATEEE AT F R R B
SR 77 8 B 5T

— BB O AT

— RIMEEERAEEETRR
REBHEEBER - FELL mHM
kPl EFEEEEMANIEREE
=)

—  wEAH

—  EBEBHAH -

FEHERE NEFTELTREER

MEAOTHREKS  EERASRER

BRETRBMERRRITIEN -

Tai Fung Bank Limited Annual Report 2023

(BRI EERASN - BT AR T T T

(Amount in thousands of Macao Patacas, unless otherwise stated)

Financial risk management (continued)
Liquidity Risk (continued)

Assets available to meet all of the liabilities
and to cover outstanding loan commitments
include “Cash and balances with banks”,
“Deposits with AMCM”, “Placements with
banks and other financial institutions”,
“Advances and other accounts”, “Financial
investments”, etc. In the normal course of
business, a proportion of short-term loans
contractually repayable will be extended and
a portion of short-term customer deposits
will not be withdrawn upon maturity. The
Bank would also be able to meet unexpected
net cash outflows by borrowing funds from
inter-bank market, entering into repurchase
transactions, and by selling securities and
accessing additional funding sources.

The Bank manages liquidity risk by setting
various indicators and operational limits
according to the overall position of the Bank’s
financial assets and financial liabilities,
with referencing to market condition. The
Bank holds assets with high liquidity to
meet unexpected and material demand for
payments in the ordinary course of business.

The tools that the Bank uses to measure and
monitor liquidity risk mainly include:

—  Liquidity gap analysis;

— Liquidity indicators (including but
not limited to regulated and internal
managed indicators, such as liquidity
coverage ratio, loan-to-deposit ratio,
liquidity ratio) monitoring;

—  Scenario analysis;

—  Stress testing.

On this basis, the Bank establishes regular
reporting mechanisms for liquidity risk to

report the latest situation of liquidity risk to
the senior management on a timely basis.
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(continued)

4. =c=EEKREE(E) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.3 REMERERE (&) 4.3 Liquidity Risk (continued)

(1) HNEHBSM (1) Maturity analysis
TERRBABRITENREERR  BEERK The tables below analyse the Bank's assets
BEM EE/\Z’] HNEI B &R SR EIR 9 $H and liabilities into relevant maturity groupings
R BRSO - based on the remaining period at the

reporting date to the contractual maturity
date.

2023
- ZEA - TEE

% -fAR Ez@R E-Ff Rz ZHNL B 8%
On Within  1monthto 3 months 1 year to Over
demand 1month 3months toiyear  3years  3years Indefinite Total

tHEE Financial assets
RERFHAE Cash and balances
with banks 5221,288 1,231,009 274,126 70,004 - - - 6,796,427
BHRRFPEBERR  Deposits with AMCM 2,003,539 - - - - - - 2,003,539
KHRTRAER Placements with banks
Epomue and other financial
institutions - 8,976,206 - 185,884 - - - 9,162,090
SRRE Financial investments 1,474,741 7554,389 2,376,546 4,034,274 10,732,554 17906,573 6,404,303 50,483,380
EFREMER Advances and other
accounts 1,315,685 3,699,493 8,815,496 32,777568 25,618,414 46,234,745 8,516,970 126,978,371
fTEEMIA Derivative financial
instruments - 35,405 17111 352 - - - 52,868
EHEE Other assets - - 393,954 214,399 3,296 - - 611,649
10,015,253 21,496,502 11,877233 37282,481 36,354,264 64,141,318 14,921,273 196,088,324
tREE Financial liabilities
ROREMSEEEZ  Deposits and balances
GRRES of banks and other
financial institutions 136,901 15,139,502 10,094,085 8,411,652 5,127,300 - - 38,909,440
EPER Deposits from customers 26,212,467 23,051,523 37,341,299 28,671,589 17791 - - 115,294,669
T BRARR Deposits from subsidiaries 14,508 33,458 31,452 - - - - 79,418
REREEHN Deposits from public
sector entities 2,537 7305,153 6,642,124 7,659,295 - - - 21,609,109
¥ENE Certificates of deposit in
issue - - - - - - - -
fTEeRIA Derivative financial
instruments - 2,019 2,348 131 - - - 4,498
kEEE Subordinated liabilities - - - 5,757 - 2,060,000 - 2,065,757
EEE Others liabilities - - 646,204 7336 23,779 - - 677319
26,366,413 45,531,655 54,757512 44,755,760 5,168,870 2,060,000 - 178,640,210

y AMBETRAARAT_O-=%#
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(continued)

4. SEiEERE(E) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.3 REMERERE (&) 4.3 Liquidity Risk (continued)

(1) REBSWE) (1) Maturity analysis (continued)
TERRBABRITENREERR  BEERK The tables below analyse the Bank's assets
BEMHEEAIBHBENFARER S E and liabilities into relevant maturity groupings
WEHB ST o (&) based on the remaining period at the

reporting date to the contractual maturity
date. (continued)

2022
—fEA =fEA —f MEE
o —EAR  E=fA E-f ECE ZENLE A ag
On Within - 1 monthto 3 months 1 year to Qver

demand ~ Tmonth  3months to1year  3years  3years  Indefinite Total
tHEE Financial assets
ReRGHAE Cash and balances
with banks 3,197,890 1801302 223,093 75,465 - - - 5297750
BEHRRFEBERR  Deposits with AMCM 2,195,638 - - - - - - 2,195,638
KHRTRAER Placements with banks
Epomue and other financial
institutions - 18,176,285 4,608,828 - - - - 22785113
SRRE Financial investments 2,391,025 11203988 4525727 3912381 8781760 11,331,158 8291329 50,437,368
EFREMER Advances and other
accounts 579,987 5,165,789 7,590,706 36,239,817 41,890,532 39,725,163 341655 131,533,649
fTESBIE Derivative financial
instruments - 2,811 25,642 3,854 - - - 32,307
EHEE Other assets - - 253512 382831 - - - 636,343
8,364,540 36,350,175 17,227,508 40,614,348 50,672,292 51,056,321 8,632,984 212,918,168
tHAE Financial liabilities
ROREMSEEEZ  Deposits and balances
FRRES of banks and other
financial institutions 251,059 19,970,343 9,065,864 6,009,839 9,676,456 - - 44,973 561
EEEH Deposits from customers 30,534,914 19,986,348 32,011,587 26,142,342 120,429 - - 108,795,620
HERAER Deposits from subsidiaries 118,588 47 853 79,740 55,141 - - - 301322
REREEH Deposits from public
sector entities 2,707 7354380 12,118,752 11 584,069 - - - 31,059,908
¥ENE Certificates of deposit in
issue - 1285617 1962128 846,309 - - - 4,094 054
fTEeRIA Derivative financial
instruments - 2,058 7158 2,282 - - - 11,498
kEAE Subordinated liabilities - - - 1,998,200 - - - 1,998,200
EtERE Others liabilities 92,698 769 442358 19,270 - - - 555,09
30,999,966 48,647,368 55,687,587 46,657,452 9,796,885 - - 191,789,258
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(continued)

4. SEiEERE(E) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.3 REMERERE (&) 4.3 Liquidity Risk (continued)

(2) ETTETAEZEER (2)  Non-derivative cash flows
TERBARTARRITREEBZIEITAE The tables below summarise the contractual
PRABBEANKAEOIBAAI R Z R undiscounted cash flows of the Bank as at
THRERRER - reporting date for non-derivative financial

liabilities by remaining contractual maturity.
2023
-fiA =fA -
8  -fBAR  EZfR E-f Ezf  ZENL By
On Within  1monthto 3 months  1yearto Over
demand 1month  3Imonths  to1year 3 years 3 years Total
tRAE Financial Liabilities
ROREMEBERE Deposits and balances of banks
LER R and other financial institutions 136,901 15,139,502 10,094,085 8,411,652 5,466,653 - 39,248,793

RPER Deposits from customers 26,229,511 30,390,133 44,014,876 36,333,902 18,249 - 136,986,671

EENE Certificates of deposit in issue - - - - - - -

kEBE Subordinated liabilities - - 129,357 247200 2,301,443 2,678,000

ﬁﬁﬁ@ f Others liabilities = = 643,691 7,336 26,292 677,319

26,366,412 45,520,635 54,752,652 44,882,247 5,758,394 2,301,443 179,590,783

2022
—f@A =fiA -
P8 -EAR E=fR E-F E-E ZEJE g
On Within-~ 1Tmonthto 3 months 1year to

demand 1 month 3 months fo 1 year 3years Qver 3 years Total
tHAE Financial Liabilities
ROREMSEEE Deposits and balances of banks
LEARER and other financial institutions 251059 19,970,343 9065864 6,009,839 10,347 716 - 45644821
EERR Deposits from customers 30,656,209 27388581 44,210,079 37781552 124,155 - 140,160,576
EGRE Certificates of deposit in issue - 1287500 1,977,120 860,540 - - 4,125,160
kERE Subordinated liabilities - - - 1,998,200 - - 1998200
EEE Others liabilities 92,698 769 442 358 19,270 - - 555,095

30,999,966 48,647,193 55,695,421 46,669,401 10,471,871 192,483,852
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(continued)

4, cREMRERE(HE)

4.3 REMEEMR(E)

3) MTEIEZEE®®
TERBATABEITHREER BT
EEZ#HE Z@TEigﬂIﬂ(T\f Ba
HWBEESERE) UFHHELEIEA
HRZBREaR BRBL2ITETREUR
AEEINRIN TEREENEM SR
HAEREHRNERIRESR -
RIPTIRBBEEEE 2TESHM T
ExXEREEE &Hﬁ B KEE] o

D
On
demand

REEEELEY  Derivative financial instruments

fiEeRIA settled on a gross basis
ana Total inflow =
i Total outflow -
N
On
demand

REEEELEZ  Derivative financial instruments

fTEEMIA seftled on a gross basis
BRA Total inflow -
i Total outflow -

Tai Fung Bank Limited Annual Report 2023

(3)

-ERR
Within
1 month

3,621,742
(3,590,039)

31,703

—fHAR
Within
1 month

684,451
(684,672)

(221)

(BRI EERASN - BT AR T T T

(Amount in thousands of Macao Patacas, unless otherwise stated)

Financial risk management (continued)
Liquidity Risk (continued)
Derivative cash flows

The tables below summarise the cash flows
of the Bank by remaining contractual maturity
as at reporting date for all derivative financial
instruments that will be settled on a gross
basis regardless of whether the contract is
in an asset or liability position. The amounts
disclosed in the tables are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows, except for certain
derivatives which are disclosed at fair value.

The Bank’s derivative financial instruments
will be settled on a gross basis mainly include
currency forwards and currency swaps.

2023
-fiA ZEA -
E=fiA i-f EZE ZENL BE
1monthto 3Imonthsto  1yearto Over
3 months 1 year 3 years 3 years Total
2,823,886 10,982 - - 6,456,610
(2,815,042) (10,671) - - (6,415,752)
8,844 ki - - 40,858
2022
—fi A =fiA -
E=fiA E-F ECE EpE ag
Tmonth 3 months 1 year Over
to 3 months olyear  to3years 3 years Total
1,616,988 510,984 - - 2812423
(1,638,111)  (510,884) - - (2,833,667)
(21,123) 100 - - (21,244)
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(continued)

4. SEREREE(HE)
4.3 REMER(E)

1% 3 g
A

HBERAR

th 7w
B

BHERAR

Loan commitments
Financial guarantee contracts

Loan commitments
Financial guarantee contracts

D
On
demand

38,919

il
On
demand

4,907
42,224

(BREFRIGERRSN - SBEEAMHTA/BFTT L)
(Amount in thousands of Macao Patacas, unless otherwise stated)

4. Financial risk management (continued)
4.3 Liquidity Risk (continued)
(4) Off-balance sheet items

The tables below summarise the off-balance
sheet items at the remaining period to the
contractual maturity date as at reporting date.
Financial guarantees are also included below
at notional amounts and based on the earliest
contractual maturity date.

2023
-fiA ZEA -
AR E=fiR i-f Bzf  ZENL L]
Within 1month 3 months 1 year Over
1month to3months  to1year to3years 3 years Total

2547081 2425884 9635743 1,856,247 1,200,369 17,665,324
687,832 742,219 758,656 202,762 204,604 2,634,992

2022
—f@A =fEAR —-F
-EARm  E=fEA E-F EZE ZENE aE
Within Tmonth 3 months 1 year QOver
Tmonth  to 3 months folyear 103 years 3 years Total

2,261,343 2450502 11547695 2334180 1,379,092 19,967,719
464,141 567,162 468,393 22,134 116,460 1,680,514
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(continued)

EXERE

RIRITZHRBRFEEE A EGR K
XPBARRTEBZERMERT AR
NHERITERNEHAREZZEENRN
%EtKTZ%EE EARREBZERS
BRI AR ZABRIERARTS

Capital management

The Bank’s policy is to maintain a strong
capital base to support the development
of the Bank’s business and to ensure
compliance with the statutory capital
adequacy ratio requirement, a requirement

BESH L EHTXEMEERER used to assess the capital adequacy of
BEET T 1F3?‘%£‘21&ﬁ€%§%%%$&% banks. Capital is allocated to the various
Z 8 E'JXZ’H—?,H BN o activities of the Bank depending on the risk

taken by each business division. Where the
branches are directly regulated by other
regulators, they are required to maintain
capital according to the rules of those
regulators.

RFRTHERAEEAR R (1)FaR The Bank’s objective when managing capital
FIERBRETZERAEXR: RO X are: (1) comply with the capital requirements
BARITZEETELABEER &R under the Macao Financial System Act; and
HEREAEE R - (2) support the Bank’s stability and business
growth so as to provide reasonable returns for
shareholders.
RRTEEBETHEREERWITIEE Capital adequacy and the use of regulatory
EREESNERE EREARR capital are monitored regularly by the
EEREETEAZER BHEZTE Bank’'s management, employing techniques
EHmZELER o implemented by AMCM. The required
information is filed with the AMCM on a
quarterly basis.
TERERBRBITHARITEEHH The AMCM requires each bank or banking
ETELAREHMERREELX(E group to maintain a ratio of total regulatory
AAZLR)EFBERSERXENEE capital to the risk-weighted asset (the capital
FBETHAR &K KFE o ppoh - RERITHE adequacy ratio) at or above the minimum
BN D TTEXEMOE SRS as stipulated by the AMCM. In addition,
BEREERES HEEBTRES branches outside Macao of the Bank are also
TRMERME - directly regulated and supervised by their
local banking supervisors, which may be
different in different jurisdictions.
RIFTERBLI—EEARNRINEF - ## The Bank has established a capital
LA &Y iy é$%€ﬁ%’r’@§iﬁfﬁﬁ&*?}( planning process to assess the adequacy
ZE® WREEMBERRRKRRT of its capital to support current and future
Z%%E?ﬁﬁ&%%ﬂ%ﬂfﬁJﬁ éql‘% activities and to set the Bank’'s capital
TER FEEZREEZRERELES adequacy goals in relation to risk, taking
BAMBZBIINER . FHH TTZJ_ into account its strategic focus and business
DARER REBE - AR plan. Key factors to consider in this process
BHEBRERSE - including additional capital required for
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future expansion, results of the stress test
programme regularly conducted, dividend
policy, income recognition and provisioning
policies.
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(B RIGERASN - B RRF T T IT)

(Amount in thousands of Macao Patacas, unless otherwise stated)

Fair Value Management

Financial instruments measured at fair
value

All assets and liabilities for which fair value
is measured or disclosed in the financial
statements are categorised within the fair
value hierarchy as defined in IFRS 13, “Fair
value measurement”. The categorisation are
determined with reference to the observability
and significance of the inputs used in the
valuation methods and based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:

Assets and liabilities measured at fair value are
classified into the following three levels:

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities,
including equity securities listed on exchanges
or debt instruments issued by certain
governments and certain exchange-traded
derivative contracts.

Level 2: Valuation technique for which all inputs
that have a significant effect on the recorded
fair value other than quoted prices included
within Level 1 are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly or indirectly. This level
includes the majority of the over-the-counter
(*“OTC”) derivative contracts, debt securities
for which quotations are available from pricing
service providers, discounted bills, etc.

Level 3: Valuation technique using inputs which
have a significant effect on the recorded fair
value for the asset or liability are not based on
observable market data (unobservable inputs).
This level includes equity investments with
significant unobservable components.

The Bank’s policy is to recognise transfers
between levels of the fair value hierarchy as at
the end of the reporting period in which they
ocCcCur.

The Bank uses valuation techniques or
counterparty quotations to determine the fair
value when it is unable to obtain open market
quotation in active markets.

XERTEHGARLXFAN_-O=-Z=ZF%®
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(continued)

6.1

IRBEEEE(HE)
URAnEEFTENESHIAE)
AETERERMPEANTIEZZH
BRERESER X -EX -FERZK
BREER RBKFE  HEAMEE IR
ABRIMAIRARMSERN 2

o

@

HRARITHAENR ETREGFLER
) BEREERXRZHFRAEBENER
HERMEEAABE  HEXRMTE
Tﬁ@%ibw?ﬁfﬁ/f BEFEZE ﬁi’%
LB ES - AARBEMF 2 A8 K
%Tfiféfﬁ?i%ﬁ%%ﬂﬁTT&E%&
28 AAARTEELEERAR
ENEE=EH-

FELABRSHE L RAEBRER
BT 12% — 20% ° & A fHE R
%ﬁfﬂPﬁﬁEﬁﬁ%EﬁTT%ﬂ%ﬁl%&f%
AREW,/ THEL DABETE
BEERRE -
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(BRI EERASN - BT AR T T T

(Amount in thousands of Macao Patacas, unless otherwise stated)

Fair Value Management (continued)

Financial instruments measured at fair
value (continued)

The main parameters used in valuation
techniques include bond prices, interest rates,
foreign exchange rates, equity and stock prices,
volatilities, correlations, and others, which are
all observable and obtainable from the open
market.

For certain illiquid unlisted equity (private
equity), management obtains valuation
quotations from counterparties or uses valuation
techniques to determine the fair value, including
the discounted cash flow analysis, net asset
value and market comparison approach, etc.
The fair value of these financial instruments may
be based on unobservable inputs which may
have a significant impact on the valuation of
these financial instruments, and therefore, these
assets and liabilities have been classified by the
Bank as Level 3.

The main unobservable inputs and ratio ranges
include liquidity discounts 12%-20%. Had all of
the significant unobservable inputs applied on
the valuation techniques favourably changed/
unfavourably changed by 5%, the fair value will
not be altered materially.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(continued)
6. AAREBEEEE(E)
6.1 LAAEEFENESBIAE) 6.1

(1) 2REENFR

NRABEFARS
RLERWEE
—BHFRE
—E%

AR EEH S AR
BHHAAMRE
W eREE

—E5RE
TEERIA

TRARE
TR IA

(BR ' RIEERR SN

SEEMHRREMTT T
(Amount in thousands of Macao Patacas, unless otherwise stated)

6. Fair Value Management (continued)

value (continued)

(1)

Financial assets
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

— Investment in securities
— Funds

Financial assets at fair
value through other
comprehensive income
— Investment in securities

Derivative financial
instruments

Financial liabilities
Derivative financial
instruments

Fair value hierarchy

Level 1

4,849,298

4,849,298

27,636,570

32,485,868

Financial instruments measured at fair

2023
F-EBf F-ER F=ER st
Level 2 Level 3 Total
2,246,081 242,926 7,338,305
1,913,030 - 6,762,328
333,051 242,926 575,977
1,997,232 14,264 29,648,066
52,868 - 52,868
4,296,181 257,190 37,039,239
(4,498) - (4,498)
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510 ﬁsiEoirEg ;IIN(A?\E:?AL STATEMENTS (AmoTunt in thousands ofili/le_fcao Patacag,E unlézs otherwise stated)
(continued)

6. AREBEEE(HE) 6. Fair Value Management (continued)
6.1 LUAAREEFTENESERIA(E) 6.1 Financial instruments measured at fair
value (continued)
1) 2REBEEHNZEHRE) (1) Fair value hierarchy (continued)
2022
F-BR F-BR F=-E#R @it
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
CREE Financial assets
MAREBEZFARZ  Financial assets at fair value
RIeMEE through profit or loss 6,062,520 1,584,972 - 7,647,492
— BERE — Investment in securities 6,062,520 1,283,516 - 7,346,036
—E% — Funds - 301,456 - 301,456
WARBEEHEH  Financial assets at fair
SHIAEMEE value through other
KWEzemEE comprehensive income
— BHERE — Investment in securities 21,530,883 531,542 14,046 22,076,471
TEERIA Derivative financial
instruments - 32,307 - 32,307
27,593,403 2,148,821 14,046 29,756,270
tREE Financial liabilities
TESMIA Derivative financial
instruments - (11,498) - (11,498)
ARTZeMEERBERZ=O There were no financial asset and liability
T=ZRZOZZFREBEEER transfers between level 1 and level 2 for
REZER2ENERE o the Bank during 2023 and 2022.
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R 75 3 2= P &E (#8)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

6.

6.1

6.2

REEEE(E)
NAEEFENESRIAE)

5

N

N
N

(2) FE=EHEBHAMX

n—HA—H
NREEZEHEIR
H it 2 W &=

R+-—A=+—H

REE B R A RBE B
Hith 2 Wk A
RAEEEEM
EFtAEMB
BONARBERGE
ZFERNBU S

FULAABETENEMTA

RABERAE-FERHILBRED
BERRTRECRTE 2 B RFME -
ATZ2HERBRERERBERER
RAEEEERIAZAREE-

(BREFRIGERRSN - SBEEAMHTA/BFTT L)
(Amount in thousands of Macao Patacas, unless otherwise stated)

6. Fair Value Management (continued)

6.1 Financial instruments measured at fair
value (continued)

(2) Reconciliation of level 3 items

UAREBETEEHSEHTAHM
PHBRENEREE
Financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive

income
REILR
Equity instruments
2023 2022
At 1 January 14,046 13,960
Changes in fair value
recognised in the other
comprehensive income 218 86
At 31 December 14,264 14,046
Total gain for the year
included in fair value
reserve of the other
comprehensive income
for assets held at the
reporting date 218 86

6.2 Financial instruments not measured at fair
value

Fair value estimates are made at a specific point
in time based on relevant market information
and information about various financial
instruments. The following methods and
assumptions have been used to estimate the
fair value of each class of financial instrument
as far as practicable.

BBRAKRFIEARAEBEFENS
MEENABBEIZERE RELFRAE
X GFHRRAEAMESREER - MR
TREREMSBEERE EXRHEM
RIE UEBRRATENSBRIRE
ROMHEMEBEBE TR L&
BEPEX  BUOIFENXE MREAE-

Financial assets and liabilities not presented at
fair value in the statement of financial position
mainly represent “Cash and balances with
banks”, “Deposits with AMCM”, “Placements
with banks and other financial institutions”,
“Advances and other accounts”, “Financial
investments measured at amortised cost”,
“Deposits and balances of banks and
other financial institutions”, “Deposits from
customers”, “Certificates of deposit issued”, and
“Subordinated liabilities”.
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RA %5 3 2% P 5E (#8)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(continued)
6. AREBEEE(HE) 6. Fair Value Management (continued)
6.2 FLUQAAEBEEIFENESHIE(E) 6.2 Financial instruments not measured at fair
value (continued)
TERRBIEARAABEFTENEHMITE The following tables set out the carrying values
ZEEEMAEE BEHELE— and fair values of the financial instruments not
FAXAFESNERASEHIERESH measured at fair value, except for the non-credit
EEMBER REFREEEE impaired financial assets and liabilities whose
AR EE: maturity dates are within a year or are mainly
floating interest rates, as a result, their carrying
values being approximation of fair values:
2023
REEE X-BR X-ER %=Ef A/LEE
Carrying Fair
Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Value
tREE Financial assets
BIEMERHEH R Advances and other accounts
A ERBEO bearing at fixed interest rate™ 21,090,157 - 21,090,157 - 14,574,471
DERRATEZ Investment in securities
EHRREO at amortised cost® 2,679,538 2,629,055 50,483 - 1,383,707
23,769,695 2,629,055 21,140,640 - 15,958,178
tHEE Financial liabilities
Bl E MR RTR Deposits and balances of banks
At pkEe and other financial institutions
FRREHE at fixed interest rate © 1,213,975 - 1,213,975 - 1,127219
RBEHC Subordinated liabilities @ 2,065,757 - 2,065,757 - 2,130,669
3,279,732 - 3279732 - 3257888

Tai Fung Bank Limited Annual Report 2023
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(continued)
6. AREEEE(E) 6.
6.2 FEUAAREBETENEMIAE) 6.2

TRABEURAAEBEFTENEMTE

ZEEEMALEE BRHMEE -

FRAINFHFNERINSREEM

BERIN AREEEEEELIAR

BEE) :

tREE Financial assets

BEfZMERR Advances and other accounts

EfhRE0 bearing at fixed interest rate ()

DERKATEL Investment in securities

BHEREW at amortised cost @

B FE -

(1) BlEMEMER K HEAMMEEE
BEfEMmERNEMEE 2G5
RABEEBFALEESREHIE S
mMZBEgE e B RESRIEZET
MG REBEIBUEFERANE °

(2) UEBRKNAFTENBHFEE
KIETHFBEEFHRENRAEBEBENU
m%FIW@A/Q%ﬁ%ﬁER
AR -mRELESHBERE 8
Z2EHERGSEIEENERNIRA
We R REBERNETHE - - HES
BEREMHSANE - FBHEHE IR
FEREREMES RIS

3) BEMEMETLEMSREREZ
TFRREES M XRES
ZEABNANBEZBMS RE
FE HNEEMBHRENES
Wuﬁﬂﬂﬂ%ﬂﬂﬁfﬁﬁﬁ%
FZEBLIBIAEFAAE -

(B RIGERASN - B RRF T T IT)

(Amount in thousands of Macao Patacas, unless otherwise stated)

Fair Value Management (continued)

Financial instruments not measured at fair
value (continued)

The following tables set out the carrying values
and fair values of the financial instruments not
measured at fair value, except for the financial
assets and liabilities whose maturity dates are
within a year or are mainly floating interest
rates, as a result, their carrying values being
approximation of fair values (continued):

2022
FEEE F-EBHK F-ER E£=Ef 1LArBE
Carrying Fair
Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Value
15,042,042 - 15,042,042 - 14,055,377
4,015,111 3,965,808 49,303 - 2647275

19,057,153 3,965,808 15,091,345 16,702,652

Notes:

@) Advances and other accounts bearing at fixed
interest rate

The estimated fair value of advances and
other accounts bearing at fixed interest
rate represents the discounted amount of
estimated future cash flows expected to be
received. Expected cash flows are discounted
at current market rates to determine fair value.

(2) Investment in securities at amortised cost

Fair values of other investment in securities
are based on market prices or broker/dealer
price quotations. Where this information is
not available, the Bank will perform valuation
by referring to prices from valuation service
providers or on the basis of discounted cash
flow models. Valuation parameters include
market interest rates, expected future default
rates, prepayment rates and market liquidity.

(3) Deposits and balances of banks and other
financial institutions and subordinated
liabilities at fixed interest rate

The aggregate fair values are calculated
based on quoted market prices. For those
bonds where quoted market prices are not
available, a discounted cash flow model
is used based on current market rates to
determine the fair value for the remaining term
to maturity.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(continued)

6. AREEEE(E)
6.3 LIAREEFENFEMIA

REIRITEB - EHEXMIOERT S
HWEXRBEIIFSCHIEANRAABE -

B E i E

ANIRT ZQ%%WFE#EE
$¢Zﬁﬁmé %ﬁ
Fﬁ B ﬁi ﬁi

ﬁ%ZA%’ﬁ
EEBEHRAERR -

EHERFRETH  NERTT
%ﬁﬂ;%ﬁm%ﬁﬁﬁ
&ﬁ1
& ﬁﬁ%i B e

(1) FZERIL
S

WOBRE_BRZ2MENR

B H2EALBYEZOBE
EXREB(MBLEBR) RS EM
BHEERERNMEER(WAEARE) -
BYHALBEYERBFEDEZ
ANEZERELEEAE - LEH
EERSHUEBAELTHEX

ERFE-

2) BHF=ZEBRILESENEH
WOBRRE=ZEROERTY
K2R EHRBT S LB IK
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B ERETE -
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(Amount in thousands of Macao Patacas, unless otherwise stated)

Fair Value Management (continued)

Non-financial instruments measured at fair
value

The Bank uses valuation techniques or quoted
market prices in active market to determine the
fair value of non-financial instruments.

Owner-occupied properties

The Bank’s owner-occupied properties
were revalued as at year end. This year, the
valuations were carried out by an independent
professionally qualified valuer — Vigers Macao
Company Limited, conforming to the HKIS
Valuation Standards on Properties published by
the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors.

The Bank’s management had discussions
with the surveyors on the valuation methods,
valuation assumptions and valuation results
when the valuation is performed at each annual
reporting date. There has been no change
in valuation methods during the year and the
methods used are consistent with last year.

(1) Valuation methods and inputs used in
level 2 fair value measurements

The fair value of properties classified
as level 2 is determined using either
the market comparison approach
by reference to recent sales price of
comparable properties or the income
capitalisation approach by reference to
market rent and capitalisation rate, with
appropriate adjustments to reflect the
differences between the comparable
properties and the subject properties.
These adjustments are considered as
insignificant to the measurement.

(2)  Information about level 3 fair value
measurements

The fair value of all of the Bank’s
properties classified as level 3 is
determined using either the market
comparison approach or the income
capitalisation approach, adjusted for
a premium or a discount specific to
the features of the Bank’s properties
compared to the comparable properties.
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(BREFRIGERRSN - SBEEAMHTA/BFTT L)
(Amount in thousands of Macao Patacas, unless otherwise stated)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(continued)
6. AAEBEEEE(E) 6. Fair Value Management (continued)
6.3 LUAAEENENFSRMIA(E) 6.3 Non-financial instruments measured at fair
value (continued)
BREHE(B) Owner-occupied properties (continued)
2) BFHE=ZERAAETEHEH (2)  Information about level 3 fair value
(&) measurements (continued)
UTAREARBEFERHE SR The valuation methods and significant
REZEBRZARRITYWEFERA unobservable inputs used in the fair value
NEETERBERTABERREE measurement of the Bank’s properties
classified as level 3 are as follows:
TABRREEDNAENE
HER % EXTABERE MEYY %
Significant Relationship of
unobservable Weighted  unobservable inputs
Valuation method  inputs average to fair value

|ITITIE misLEERA MEREALENE -26%-23% HEAR AAEAR -

BI% EHELZEE/ WEAS ARBEAR-
(&)

Bank premises ~ Market comparison ~ Premium/(discount)  -26% - 23% The higher the premium, the
approach or income  on features of the higher the fair value.
capitalisation property compared The higher the discount, the
approach to comparable lower the fair value.

properties
£ B Precious metals
BB AN BERRERMBWME The fair values of precious metals are
SEETHENTSRERSER - determined by obtaining quoted market prices

FEMEE
ME - BMERE
— RITITHE

HipEE
Y

in active market or market quote with certain
adjustments.

(3)  Fair value hierarchy

2023
E-EBR E_EBR EZER wmet
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Non-financial

assets
Property, plant and

equipment

— Bank premises -
Other assets

— Precious metals 132,652 -

3,931,357 3,931,357

132,652

132,652

3,931,357 4,064,009
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B 35 R = P o (48)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

6. AREBEEE(HE) 6. Fair Value Management (continued)
6.3 LAAEEENFESHBITA(E) 6.3 Non-financial instruments measured at fair
value (continued)
E28(E) Precious metals (continued)
(3) DA EEEZRE) (3)  Fair value hierarchy (continued)
2022
EFE—EBHR F_ELK BZER BEr
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
FEMEE Non-financial
assets
ME - SMRRE Property, plant and
equipment
— RITITHE — Bank premises - - 4,028,280 4,028,280
Hih&EE Other assets
— BB — Precious metals 143,552 - - 143,552
143,552 - 4,028,280 4,171,832
KIRITZIIFEMEERFANLRE There were no non-financial asset
FEARFE_EHz2EANE transfers between level 1 and level 2 for
% o the Bank during the year.
(4) F=ZERmIELHE (4)  Reconciliation of level 3 items
2023 2022
RT3 Bank premises
n—H—H At 1st January 4,028,280 4,076,355
R1777HFEL 2 &% Surplus on revaluation of bank
MRAREMEEWEZE premises recognised in the
other comprehensive income 9,091 56,480
e Depreciation (105,700) (103,082)
M W =R Exchange difference (314) (1,473)
n+—A=+—H At 31st December 3,931,357 4,028,280

Tai Fung Bank Limited Annual Report 2023
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R 75 3 2= P &E (#8)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

118

FEW A 7. Interest income
2023 2022
FHRRAEMcRERER Deposits with AMCM 49,374 11,640
GFHRIETRER Placements with banks and
H & gh i s other financial institutions 492,759 232,187
TRRE Financial investments 1,490,584 976,144
ER K HEAMIRE Advances and other accounts 6,731,561 4,899,945
EFPREFSHRE Customer margin financing 10,096 4,909
HAth Others 576 214
8,774,950 6,125,039
B Included within interest income are MOP

RN B AT KB A # R A E
ENRARREBEFELEZEFHTA
H2HKRaNEMEEMELNR
NEa /é_';/x F9 77,855,318 F 7L (= O

7,855,318 thousand (2022: MOP 5,642,344
thousand) and MOP 908,960 thousand (2022:
MQOP 477,572 thousand) incurred from financial

——F:BP985,642,344F T) KR P assets measured at amortised cost and at fair
7_E908,960¥ T(ZOZZF:EMT value through other comprehensive income
477572F L) ° respectively.
FEXZH 8. Interest expense
2023 2022
RITREM S mEE 2 Deposits and balances of banks
73 K 4 8 and other financial institutions 1,321,908 537,078
BEPEFER Deposits from customers 4,424,741 2,129,834
BT RE Certificates of deposit in issue 150,166 38,787
BEAE Subordinated liabilities 96,387 109,901
EFREBEESGFEX Customer margin deposits 10,502 4,023
H A Others 207 7
6,003,911 2,819,630
A ER B R LB IR D EEE All interest expense are from financial liabilities
EHHEBEHFA TE mHERERE - that are not measured at fair value through profit

or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

(BREFRIGERRSN - S RBEAMHTABFITTT)
(Amount in thousands of Macao Patacas, unless otherwise stated)

9. FHREBERASWKA 9. Net fee and commission income
2023 2022
R ERAS WA Fee and commission income
—BHREBEXER —Securities agency services 60,373 77,541
—RERIEXK —Insurance agency services 78,801 64,316
— H AR R —Other agency services 24,587 27,533
-ExHEe —Loan commissions 53,427 81,835
—HEME —Bills commissions 14,354 8,782
—H A —Others 44,304 30,843
275,846 290,850
AR & K& H Fee and commission expense (47,311) (43,143)
228,535 247,707
M- IR M S ERE - NRITFEE=E Note: With adoption of the MFRS, the Bank identifies
ZERA AR I AEERI XN majority of the loan commissions as an integral
HKEBD T AVREREE ST part of the effective interest rate of a financial
HBERFAERTHEAE - instrument and adjusts the effective interest

Tai Fung Bank Limited Annual Report 2023

rates of respective financial instruments upon
initial recognition.
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R 75 3 2= P &E (#8)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

10. FEERHMEREKRA 10. Net gain from trading and other

investment income

2023 2022
HNEE 375 2 F W ) Net gain from foreign exchange
trading™: 127,497 138,139
FW (BB IRE - Net gain/(loss) from:
— DBRUREE u+i — Financial instruments
HE*‘:’%@J FFAE R classified at fair value
T A through profit or loss 472,246 (364,896)
— ﬁv‘iﬁﬁ‘_ﬂx A fEfEsTE  — Financial instruments
HE*‘:’%@J FAEMEE classified at fair value
WamzegITA through other comprehensive
income 296,311 304,894
768,557 (60,002)
RE /BRZHKEEZ Net loss on disposal/redemption
FETE of financial investment:
— USRI ARGTE — At amortised cost - (1)
- (1)
896,054 78,136
B 5E - Note:
(1) ﬁl\[%%ﬂz/ﬁuﬁl BIERE R R (1)  Net gain from foreign exchange trading
EH - EHEANRBEIINEEER includes gains and losses from spots and
E\%ZWE&FSTE\ BT IE R forward contracts, swaps and translated

BERMNEPER - foreign currency assets and liabilities, which
are not designated as qualifying hedging

relationship.
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AETHEERSHESEREBLE S
EBEI ML NERBE L - B RN
BNEffE R —EEK(REEEK]
s S—BEEK(EHEEDE
5B R IE ]IHE-ruTSZ?iHﬂ/ET
HoAEGERREBEINHAEES LA
REEM - EI]HE/\Z\’JEﬁiH\HQ%’UFﬁ
ELXMELZENREBEENRES
ﬁgjﬂﬁﬁéi&aﬁﬂﬁmﬁgﬂ’]ﬂ%%/\

FER R TINE 75 2 % a8

The Bank entered into foreign exchange swaps
for its liquidity management and funding
activities. It involves swapping a currency
(“original currency”) into another currency
(“swap currency”) at the spot exchange rate
for short-term placement and simultaneously
entering into a forward contract to convert the
funds back to the original currency on maturity
of the placement. The exchange difference
between the spot and forward contracts as
well as the corresponding interest differential
between the surplus funds in the original
currency and swap currency are recognised

s “Net gain from foreign exchange trading”.
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510 _ﬁsﬁoiingg ;ﬁ\l(A.T\l;C?AL STATEMENTS (AmoTunt in thousands ofili/lgcao Patacag,E unlézs otherwise stated)
(continued)

11. Han&K&WA 11. Other operating income
2023 2022
o= SR N Dividend income from

investments in subsidiaries 170,000 230,000

E2BFNE Net gain from precious metal
trading 1,624 1,937
H A Others 8,285 11,196
179,909 243,133

12. EWMEEREBEFIW
12. Net charge of impairment allowances
of financial assets

2023 2022
HEEE B, (B @) Net charge/(reversal) of
impairment allowances on:
BERNHEMERE Advances and other accounts 3,668,864 776,433
MITRHEMSEEE Balances and placements with
17 R K 48R banks and other financial
institutions (688) 381
TRIRE Financial investments 1,206,775 170,958
— DABEBR K AN ET — At amortised cost 1,212,353 153,046
— AR EBEFEAEZE — At fair value through other
FE A H A 2 U = comprehensive income (5,578) 17,912
ERAGHLEMBERER Loan commitments and financial
guarantee contracts (18,429) (37,267)
HAth Others 866 (123)
4,857,388 910,382
WEBEFECDM I 2 EFH Recoveries of advances written
off in prior years (58) (792)
4,857,330 909,590
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R 75 3 2= P &E (#8)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

(B RIGERASN - B RRF T T IT)

(Amount in thousands of Macao Patacas, unless otherwise stated)

13. KEXH 13. Operating expense
2023 2022
AEFERBEESFK Staff costs (including directors
EEMe) and supervisory committee
members’ remuneration) 414,652 584,333
— IENRHEMBER — Salaries and other costs 392,561 564,611
— BREF — Pension costs 22,091 19,722
KEHE 2 xEBEEMRE Minimum lease payments under
operating leases 38,594 36,302
HIERRE Repairs and maintenance 72,581 60,763
1 & (M 5% 27,28) Depreciation (notes 27,28) 174,575 168,613
HE sz Other operating expenses 115,211 94,104
815,613 944 115
14. FiBHGER) B 14. Income tax (credit)/expense

REMBAMABRERFAERMES
B ERBR B EHREI2% (0=
F12%) B IEE RIEMH - At )y
&SRB A BB IR DI R ERIT A A
ERBHRRORITHRERGTE -

Macao complementary tax has been provided
at progressive rates up to 12% (2022: 12%)
on the estimated assessable profits arising
in Macao during the year. Taxes on profits
assessable elsewhere have been calculated at
the rates of tax prevailing in the jurisdictions in
which the Bank operates.

2023 2022
RE IS Current income tax

— FAIE — Charge for the year 45,566 284,966

— REARHAEMBEBEMA  — Mainland China withholding
B3 tax 56,356 38,129
i RE A% I8 [ (Bt 7£34) Deferred tax credited (note 34) (209,418) (101,678)
BEBAEE Provision adjustment (3,773) 38,630
(111,269) 260,047
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

14.

15.

(1)

(2)

B (ER), ERAE

Kﬁﬁﬁlﬁ%ﬁﬁl‘(ﬁ?@)//ﬁﬂ |EENE

14.

(BRI EERASN - BT AR T T T

(Amount in thousands of Macao Patacas, unless otherwise stated)

Income tax (credit)/expense
(continued)

The taxation on the Bank’s (loss)/profit before

B EERBEBRPIMENEFTENN tax that differs from the theoretical amount that
HEREMT would arise using the taxation rate in Macao is
as follows:
2023 2022
BRERT(EE),a (Loss)/profit before tax (1,531,238) 2,081,590
RERBEFE Tax calculated at applicable tax
rates as above (183,749) 249,790
mIBRE: Tax effect of:
SR PT Hh (% LA SN B B Y Impact of differently taxed profits
XA outside Macao 24,626 9,031
EHRRNAOUWA Income not subject to tax (72,188) (75,533)
AR 2 A X Expenses not deductible 67,459 -
hEARKXMBEEMASTH  Mainland China withholding tax 56,356 38,129
B B Provision adjustment (3,773) 38,630
FABIA Tax (credit)/charge for the year (111,269) 260,047
RER 7 E 15. Dividend and Appropriation
ZERRKRE (1) Dividends for ordinary shares
ZOZ=F=ZRA=+t—HBHAMNFE Ordinary share cash dividend of MOP364,309
BRRAGEZHET_OZ__FER thousand in respect of the profit for the year
BOBRAR - BREZRESEFTR - ended 31 December 2022 was approved by
RRTERBE-_OZ_FELAEARR the shareholders of the Bank at the Annual
® % 2R FIT364, 309F 7T ¢ General Meeting (“AGM”) held on 31 March
2023 and was distributed during the year.
BEBRRE (2) Dividend for preference shares
RZOZ=F=A=+—HBHEHHOEF 2015 and 2017 preference shares cash
EREAEEZMET _O__4F dividend in respect of the profit for the year
R EREAFE - BREZKRESE A ended 31 December 2022 was approved by the
ES ﬁfﬁ FER-ZO=ZZF~A=-+~ shareholders of the Bank at the Annual General
ARE_O—RAFEERKRERFT Meeting (“AGM”) held on 31 March 2023. Cash
165,750F 7t - RZOZ=F N A+ 1 dividend of 2015 preference shares amounting
ARE_O—tFEBERKERFMT to MOP165,750 thousand was distributed on 26
159,000 F 7T ° June 2023. Cash dividend of 2017 preference
shares was distributed on 15 September 2023.
ABRITHR_O—MNEFE=ZA=-_+tBBERAZ At a meeting held on 20 March 2024, the
e EFega_0= _EJ* B % Directors proposed preference share cash

BRSNS RATE  ER-_O-_=F+_
AT -BINRBAEBMETRE
AT E R D B AR 2RI TT325,640 T
T Z_OZ=FEREDET =R~
F_O=FFEBRRREEHRME -
étf%“@ﬂiﬁ&ﬁﬂ%ﬁ/\ﬁﬁﬁﬁ“#&%&m
B{ER -
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dividend in respect of the retained earnings
as of 31 December 2023, amounting to a total
dividend of MOP325,640 thousand, based on
the number of shares issued as at 31 December
2023. This proposal will be proposed for
approval at the forthcoming 2023 AGM and
dividend payable is not reflected in the liabilities
of the financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(continued)

16. BERFHEHE

2023 2022
BEFHRE Cash 946,837 1,042,209
BN BR J% %2 HA 38 &0 4% 64 Money at call and short notice 4,133,032 2,039,417
FHRRPEARRITO Deposits with the People’s Bank
of China® 141,418 116,265
FRAHEMIFEITE S@MEHE Deposits with other banks and
financial institutions 1,547,227 2,089,719
6,768,514 5,287,610
&t A8 Accrued interest 27,960 10,203
OB Less: impairment allowances (47) (63)
6,796,427 5,297,750
B 5F - Note:
(1) RZOZ=F+ZA=+—80 " Ri& (1)  As at 31 December 2023, The statutory
PEARRBRITHBRE  ARITZ reserve funds placed with the People's
A DT - IRIE EARAREF R Bank of China (“PBOC”) were calculated
BRERNTRHEFTARBEFREES - at 7% and 4% (31 December 2022: 7.50%
RARE £ AKRINE 15 BER BB M9 4% 3 and 6%) of qualified RMB deposits and
GINBEFEREES (O —_F+= foreign currency deposits from customers of
A=+—H:750%K&6%) ° Mainland Branches of the Bank.
RZOZ=F+=ZRA=+—H " Xk As at 31 December 2023, the amount
TZzAMDTEABEARRITEK of minimum statutory deposit balance
M EFHREEER/RFIIT120,431F of Mainland Branches of the Bank with
T(ZOZ=Z%F+-_A=+—H:1® the PBOC is MOP 120,431 thousand (31
F97£81,864F 7T) December 2022: MOP 81,864 thousand).

TRBEMHRRFMTTIT)

16. Cash and balances with banks

XERTEHGARLXFAN_-O=-Z=ZF%®
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(continued)

17. FHARMEREER 17. Deposits with AMCM
2023 2022

FRABRMAERERERO Deposits with AMCM®) 2,003,539 2,195,638

B 5 Note:

1) ®BBEBEBER RETFETR (1) According to the statutory requirement, the
BRBE ReERMALZEMT Bank is required to maintain a minimum
EHERPHNEEGHERTATLRN deposit balance with AMCM for liquidity
e XY E-BEMZERMN purpose. The required daily amount of the
A >BEZ2FHERBERFTED MOP current deposit balance in each week
ZBRET70% should not be less than 70% of the sum of

the following percentage of the average of
the basic liabilities classified by term and
calculated in the preceding week:
©) ENHA B & 2 3% : ©) 3% on all the liabilities which are
repayable on demand;
@) BREVEAEESN Z@EANK(= @) 2% on all the liabilities which are
BA)REHEaE 2% &k repayable within 3 months (3 months
inclusive) except for those already
counted in @;and
©) “EARNERBHEE 1% - ©) 1% on all the liabilities which are
repayable beyond 3 months.
RZOZ=F+=-A=+—8 " KR As at 31 December 2023, the amount of
TRSEREXNEEGTREEA minimum statutory deposit balance with
BP9 01,726,341 F n(Z O = = 4F AMCM required for the Bank is MOP
+=—A=+—H:BMx1907268 1,726,341 thousand (31 December 2022:
FT) o MOP 1,907,268 thousand).
18. HHMRTRXRHEMESREE 18. Placements with banks and other
financial institutions
2023 2022
— @ AR One month or less 8,966,779 18,147,733
—ZE2=@A Three months or less, but over
one month - 4,595,488
“E@AE—%F One year or less but over three
months 185,074 -
9,151,853 22,743,221
JEEt 7 8 Accrued interest 10,351 42,678
R E ZE Less: impairment allowances (114) (786)

9,162,090 22,785,113
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)
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19. €WMKRE 19. Financial Investments
2023 2022
UAREBETFEEHES Financial assets at fair value
FABEBRZERMEE through profit or loss
DEANAREBEEBEE Financial assets classified at fair
P AERZZEBMEE  value through profit or loss
— BHEKE — Investment in securities 7,338,305 7,647,492
DAREBETFTEEHEE Financial assets at fair
FARMEERE 2 value through other
TREE comprehensive income
— BBEZHERE — Certificates of deposit held - 199,820
— BHEEO — Investment in securities® 29,648,066 21,876,651
29,648,066 22,076,471
DEgRAGTE2ESBMEE Financial assets at amortised
cost
— BFEFH — Treasury bills 6,862,028 9,994,444
— BEZERE — Certificates of deposit held 3,753,208 6,269,509
— BHKE — Investment in securities 4,276,333 4,725,286
14,891,569 20,989,239
FE 5T FI B Accrued interest 177,265 83,638
15,068,834 21,072,877
B ORE Less: impairment allowances (1,571,825) (859,472)
13,497,009 20,713,405
50,483,380 50,437,368

XERTEHGARLXFAN_-O=-Z=ZF%®
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(continued)

19. €@MKRE(E) 19.

it 3
() ABTBUIEZSAE
A

ETERERETE BN /Mﬁ 5
BEEFHAAEMLZE KR JR
R
HAEERIEER Investmentin
o] 3R /) 3% securities held for
wE long term
capital gain

RZOZ=%F+=-A=+—H8 #H
EREHXRBEAR2EEABRAZA
WHENURBEAAEBENKRELIAS
%8 A8 P9503,785,238F (0= =
¢ S8 F9 703,956,969 F Jt) - £ O
iEEEW&%*ﬁ)\ﬁ“@‘}ZIZME
KEEFEMmMDE 2215 K E
’A/‘EFTE?%/ F3 7£ 297,024
(ZO = —%: %P 141,188
F ) uZiné*E’JE%;Hr”ﬂ&EEﬁ
ERBREEaNER B RERM
13,880 F o (ZO=ZZ—F BT
14,294F 7)) °

HxE D |
|p1|>“%”ﬁ H
e
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(BREFRIERRSN - @ EEMH BRI T T T
(Amount in thousands of Macao Patacas, unless otherwise stated)

Financial Investments (continued)
Note:
(1)  The Bank designates equity instruments,

which are not held for trading, at fair value
through other comprehensive income as

follows:
2023 2022
DNRE CEIARE NRE BEERAKRE
Dividend Dividend
Fair value recognised Fair value recognised
3,785,238 296,275 3,956,969 304,858

As at 31 December 2023, equity securities
designated at FVOCI amounting to MOP
3,785,238 thousand (2022: MOP 3,956,969
thousand) were held for long-term strategic
purposes. Some equity instruments were
redeemed by issuers or disposed by the Bank
due to investment strategy changes, with a fair
value of MOP 297,024 thousand (2022: MOP
141,188 thousand), and resulted in transferring
cumulative gain or loss within equity relating
to these investments amounted to MOP 13,880
thousand during 2023 (2022: MOP 14,294
thousand).
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R 75 3 2= P &E (#8)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

20. ERKHEHMERE 20. Advances and other accounts

128

2023 2022
EFEX Advances to customers 115,243,231 116,757,013
RITAXEHMEBEE 2  Advances to banks and other
= financial institutions 12,475,794 14,840,500
BE5EE Trade bills 1,438,075 1,660,409
129,157,100 133,257,922
JE 5 FI 8 Accrued interest 1,412,218 1,233,376
130,569,318 134,491,298
R AR Less: Impairment allowances
— BEXRRELEH — Allowance for loans (3,590,947) (2,957,649)
126,978,371 131,533,649
mE Current 58,244,009 50,720,349
IE 7 B Non-current 72,325,309 83,770,949
ERkEMEERE Gross advances and other
accounts 130,569,318 134,491,298

XERTEHGARLXFAN_-O=-Z=ZF%®
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21. $TE€mIA 21.

RRTEBURS EH -EERE
BIE R AES B A MR E R - F
REZBHEBNITESRITA -

(BRI EERASN - BT AR T T T

(Amount in thousands of Macao Patacas, unless otherwise stated)

Derivative financial instruments

The Bank enters into foreign currency exchange
rate, interest rate and precious metals related
derivative financial instruments for trading,
hedging, asset and liability management and
customer initiated transactions.

RETHENTEEBRIANER The contractual/notional amounts and fair
LESEREAABAEITAT - & values of derivative instruments held by the
BUiAsmIAENAR S“x28E Bank are set out in the following tables. The
RUBRARANFIBERANEEXER contractual/notional amounts of financial
WARBERBEISLHER  FTIRK instruments provide a basis for comparison
KPR RREEREXNEBEANAR with the fair values of instruments recognised
BE  EmtTaEREARTHER in the statement of financial position but do
MEARRSIMBRER - BEEITE not necessarily indicate the amounts of future
TR ILAESNKRIMBEN TSN X cash flows involved or the current fair value of
SNEER - EHEBX R A RE the instruments and, therefore, do not indicate
BHREE  TES®M T EMNGER B the Bank’s exposure to credit or market risks.
HERTEELEEN(BEE) L TF(BE) The derivative instruments become favourable
Mg GEEFEAggaeTREBHEB (assets) or unfavourable (liabilities) as a result
WAHKE o of fluctuations in market interest rates, foreign
currency exchange rates or equity/commodity
prices relative to their terms. The aggregate
fair values of derivative financial assets and
liabilities can fluctuate significantly from time to
time.
2023
NAREHE
Fair values
=X
EHYE BE =R
Contractual/
Notional
amounts Assets Liabilities
EXEX Exchange rate contracts
— BE - 2 H K HEIE — Spot, forwards and
futures 380,685 4,785 (1,044)
— 17 Hf — Swaps 6,075,924 46,244 (575)
— — Options 227,781 1,839 (2,879)
6,684,390 52,868 (4,498)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

21. fTESRIA(E) 21. Derivative financial instruments
(continued)
2022
NI K]
Fair values
e/ i
HEUE BE &
Contractual/
Notional
amounts Assets Liabilities
M 2 & %Y Exchange rate contracts
— BNEf - I HE — Spot, forwards and
futures 491,597 8,050 (4,653)
— 15 Hf — Swaps 2,342,070 19,373 (596)
— HAHE — Options 463,732 4,884 (6,249)
3,297,399 32,307 (11,498)
22, sREENER 22. Transferred financial assets
ERAEEBKH - $ RITHEITHRER The Bank enters into transactions in the normal
SEHERANEFSFEELRE=F - course of business by which it transfers
5] E’\Kfﬁ 17 ?7%‘%‘ MELESZMA recognised securities to third parties. As the
FERBLAEH  ELBFHFNEEE Bank has retained substantially all the risks and
HEGEBEHEBER BHEXHT X rewards relating to the securities transferred in
S FERRT ﬁEHLZ’JE’\JI T those transactions, the full carrying amount of
ﬂﬁxﬂ%tﬂt%%ﬂj%iﬁ)’ﬂﬁﬂ?@% these securities continued to be recognised.
EBEREFAEEMZERETOIBAH The counterparties are allowed to sell or re-
LEatE %mmf&ﬁ/\$§E TR - X8 pledge those securities in the absence of
BRKENECEREBRABEIINR default by the Bank, but have an obligation
ThkHEME M&T%Zﬁ%(&%ﬁf%ﬂﬁ—lt ° to return the securities upon maturity of the
contract. The cash received on the transfer
was reported as liabilities under “Deposits
and balances of banks and other financial
institutions”.
TEREPEEHRE=ZFTMIRFERIL The following table analyses the carrying
BREHNemEELRBESREE amount of the above-mentioned financial assets
B AR E B E 5T transferred to third parties that did not qualify
for derecognition and their associated financial
liabilities:
2023 2022
BEEEN HASEN BEEEN HBEAEY
REEE KEEE FHEHEE HF@OEE
Carrying Carrying Carrying Carrying
amount of amount of amount of amount of
transferred associated transferred associated
assets liabilities assets liabilities
EHOBERS Repurchase agreements 3,971,599 3,736,053 4,218,980 4,018,389

y AMBETRAARAT_O-=%#
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(continued)

23.

T LA 85
T&E%%@EEE’\J

it ki
=&
oo

THAR
ELOERS

A BE

2N
R

i éf/féﬁ’fﬁ?lﬂ‘lt:

THMEENSMAENIEHE

Financial assets
Other assets

Financial liabilities

Repurchase
agreements

Other liabilities

Financial assets
Other assets

Financial liabilities

Repurchase
agreements

Other liabilities

23.

ERAN
sWMEE/
EENEER

Gross

amounts of
recognised
financial
assets/
liabilities

46,366

46,366

3,736,053
275,857

4,011,910

amounts

of recognised

assets/
liabilities
111,222

111,222

4,018,389
93,551

4,111,940
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CREMGRR
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(Amount in thousands of Macao Patacas, unless otherwise stated)

Offsetting financial assets and

financial liabilities

Financial instruments subject to offsetting,
enforceable master netting arrangements and

similar agreements are analysed as below:

2023
F A 88 B 3 MR R
MeHE RIRHFE
Gross Amounts
amounts  presented
offset in the in the
statement  statement
of financial of financial
position position
(46,366) -
(46,366) -
- 3,736,053
(46,366) 229,491
(46,366) 3,965,544
2022
FUEH  BEHRR
ME8 RIIRKFE
Gross
amounts Amounts

& F LA 88
HeHE
Amounts
not set
off in the

statement
of financial

RH

position Net amounts

(3,736,053)
(3,736,053)

AT UAE
oot

Amounts

offset in presented in not set off in
financial the statement the statement the statement

of financial
position

(93,551)

(93,551)

(93.551)

(93,551)

of financial
position

17,671

17,671

4,018,389

4,018,389

of financial

229,491

229,491

position Net amounts

(4,018,389)

(4,018,389)

17,671

17,671
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

23. sRMEENSREENKE(E) 23. Offsetting financial assets and
financial liabilities (continued)
TUEE XHEBEIENELHTHEL Financial instruments subject to offsetting,
MBARNEMEES O T (&) : enforceable master netting arrangements and

similar agreements are analysed as below
(continued):

EREZEREBREEHEEBRAEZETCHE Financial assets and financial liabilities are
MEHEFARTH  TEXH5EHE offset and the net amount is reported in the
ERIBVETHEE IRAKEEEE statement of financial position when there is a
MEBER SREENEBBRNEKER legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
BB EMBRAKRPIR o amounts and there is an intention to settle on
a net basis, or realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously.
AFARTUEENSENTETLAR Derivatives and repurchase agreements
B HEETE AR included in the amounts are not set off in the
statement of financial position where:
— XRSHEHFEARITZEALRTNA — the counterparty has an offsetting
HENER UEFEFELEE exposure with the Bank and a master
SR ULH (BEERER R netting or similar arrangement (including
ATARGSRGZEESIFRLS ISDA master agreement and Global
BemE)EAREEDN BN Master Netting Agreement) is in place with
EBENEE  SKEHMAEARBE a right of setting off only in the event of
el ERREE & default, insolvency or bankruptcy, or the
offset criteria are otherwise not satisfied;
and
— EBRLadxZEERZHEeKk — cash and non-cash collateral have been
FEEeERMm o received/pledged in respect of the
transactions described above.
24, REMBARE 24. Investments in subsidiaries
2023 2022
By =K AE AR Shares, at cost 11,000 11,000
RRTHEMBARMNEEEMBEY W The carrying amounts of investments in
T o FEHE B K FE43(3) © subsidiaries of the Bank are as follows. Further
details are disclosed in note 43(3).
2023 2022
=R Name
AREREEZREBER AR Companhia de Investimento
Predial Triumph, Limitada 3,000 3,000
EEREFEERAR Sociedade de Fomento Predial
Tak Kei, Limitada 8,000 8,000
11,000 11,000
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(Amount in thousands of Macao Patacas, unless otherwise stated)

25. REBENT 25. Investments in associates

2023 2022
n—H—H At 1 January 396,446 358,866
FEAE B 12 2 A Share of results, net of tax 66,188 60,916

JE (b T 1% HoAh 2 H W &= Share of other comprehensive
income, net of tax 13,167 -
2R E Dividend received (32,480) (23,336)
R+-—A=+—H At 31 December 443,321 396,446

AIFITHEE QAFMEEEEY R0
T o F Az B R E43(4) -

The carrying amounts of investments in
associates of the Bank are as follows. Further
details are disclosed in note 43(4).

2023 2022
=B Name
BMEZFRRBERR Companhia de Seguros Luen
Fung Hang, S.A.R.L. 339,539 306,464
BMESTASRERM Companhia de Seguros Luen
BRAHA Fung Hang — VIDA, S.A. 103,782 89,982
443,321 396,446
26. EEBICERPNER 26. Interest in structured entities
PN ﬁ TERHSKREPESIRERS The Bank is principally involved with structured
tExEg BEEES i’] RE=ZFT 2w entities through financial investments in funds
HRRENE BRI TE AEEBNE sponsored by other financial institutions. These
BERNEEUMHAEREAS - funds generally finance through the issue of
RRTOM A ELELEBIEERER unit to investors. The structured entities are not
ZH5c A AP REHEE - subject to consolidation consideration as the
Bank does not have control over them.
ARITEBEEREES =2k The interests held by the Bank in the structured
BREENEBLLIBRIEHNEZRT entities sponsored by other financial institutions
I through direct investments are set out as below:

it
5

Funds

Tai Fung Bank Limited Annual Report 2023

2023

U nEE

FTEREHSH

A EH

BEW
TRMEE FREBLXHKO

Financial

asset at fair
value Maximum
through exposure
profit or loss to loss
575,977 575,977
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26. TEHEBAERIHER (F)

e

27. TBE -  BENRHE

R-ZO=Z=%—-HF—H
B AN 3 4 B
2 E

SNE ST &

BREFE
BEZ-O=-—=f+=A

=t—-HLEHEE
AR E %A

B
i

= (M 7E13)
& T &=

X S i e
%+ &0 T i T i

&

=+-Ag
B 2K 5 it
2itiTE
INE 57 B £

REFE

26.

(BR %5 RIFEEA SN -
(Amount in thousands of Macao Patacas, unless otherwise stated)

(continued)

Funds

TREMGRE

FI7T+7T)

Interest in structured entities

2022

AR 7B E

18 3£

TRMEE KFABKXHO

Financial
asset at fair
value through
profit or loss

301,456

Maximum
exposure
to loss

301,456

27. Property, plant and equipment

At 1 January 2023

Cost or valuation
Accumulated depreciation
Exchange difference

Net carrying amount

For the year ended
31 December 2023

Opening net carrying
amount

Additions

Gain on revaluation

Disposals

Depreciation (note 13)

Exchange difference

Closing net carrying
amount

At 31 December 2023
Cost or valuation

Accumulated depreciation
Exchange difference

Net carrying amount

|ATITUE

Bank
premises

4,029,753
(1,473)

4,028,280

4,028,280
9,091
(105,700)
(314)

3,931,357

3,931,671
(314)

3,931,357

BHEMEM -
HERZE
Motor
vehicles and
furniture,
fixtures and
equipment

901,204
(797,536)
(1,103)

102,565

102,565
77,425
(28)
(68,268)
(141)

111,553

932,987
(821,293)
(141)

111,553

Total

4,930,957
(797,536)
(2,576)

4,130,845

4,130,845
77,425
9,091
(28)
(173,968)
(455)

4,042,910

4,864,658
(821,293)
(455)

4,042,910
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(continued)

27. ABE - KENRE(E) 27. Property, plant and equipment
(continued)
R TN
WITITHE  EHEREH B
Motor
vehicles and
furniture,
Bank  fixtures and
premises equipment Total
RZO=ZZ%-A—H At 1 January 2022
DN RN Cost or valuation 4,075,866 912,856 4,988,722
REFE Accumulated depreciation - (789,511) (789,511)
INEHTE E Exchange difference 489 66 555
AREFE Net carrying amount 4,076,355 123,411 4,199,766
BE-O=-=%+=H For the year ended
=t—HLEFE 31 December 2022
HIfN R (B Opening net carrying
amount 4,076,355 123,411 4,199,766
®E Additions - 45,191 45,191
EHBH Gain on revaluation 56,480 - 56,480
RE Disposals - (10) (10)
& (M sE13) Depreciation (note 13) (103,082) (64,924) (168,006)
SNEEHTE E Exchange difference (1,473) (1,103) (2,576)
HIRBREF(E Closing net carrying
amount 4,028,280 102,565 4,130,845
R=-ZO=Z=%+=A At 31 December 2022
=t-§
DN AN Cost or valuation 4,029,753 901,204 4,930,957
REFE Accumulated depreciation - (797,536) (797,536)
SNEHTE E Exchange difference (1,473) (1,103) (2,576)
REFE Net carrying amount 4,028,280 102,565 4,130,845
NETTUEFFZHERA-_O-= The Bank’s premises were revalued individually
+-B=4+—B#1T e HTEHB T at 31 December 2023 by an independent
ExREHMELY  WERSE S HZE professionally qualified valuer conforming to
EBEe N EElsmmEeeyEFE the HKIS Valuation Standards on Properties
S o published by the Hong Kong Institute of

Surveyors.
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27.

28.

(BREFRIGERRSN - SBEEAMHTA/BFTT L)
(Amount in thousands of Macao Patacas, unless otherwise stated)

TBE - BRENXRE(E) 27. Property, plant and equipment
(continued)
EIRITITU AR ARSI BR - @ FEWT If bank premises were stated on the historical
cost basis, the amounts would be as follows:
2023 2022
DN Cost 757,106 757,106
2 E Accumulated depreciation (296,527) (280,884)
NEEE Exchange difference (310) (194)
FREFE Net carrying amount 460,269 476,028
RETURLBERRMEE FHRT The Bank leases certain of its bank premises
TH o RIBETTHEAETE A Y EBH RN under operating lease arrangements. Details of
HfsE42(2) o the Bank as lessor are set out in note 42(2).
BREMEHE 28. Investment properties
2023 2022
@S Cost
Kn—H—H At 1 January 32,337 32,337
R+=-—A=+—H At 31 December 32,337 32,337
ZEtheE Accumulated depreciation
R—H—H At 1 January 9,634 9,027
T E (M 5E13) Depreciation (note 13) 607 607
R+=-—A=+—H At 31 December 10,241 9,634
REFE Net carrying amount 22,096 22,703
RZO—=f+-_A=1+—H " KT The fair value of the investment properties of
RARFNEBREMFHWEN A ALBER the Bank in Macao at 31 December 2023 was
BT 40T (ZO=ZZF+=H MOP11,410 thousand (31 December 2022:
=+t —RB:EPFIT11,620FT L) AR MOP11,620 thousand). The Bank’s investment
TRENFEHENGHBIEXAE properties were revalued individually by an
Bl — B ETRPIBRARIMEL - W& independent professionally qualified valuer,
REBREMEE QM) EE R B Vigers Macao Company Limited, conforming
SeYEGHELEL - 2REEEER to the HKIS Valuation Standards on Properties
HEDMEOAILEBEMER5EE - & published by the Hong Kong Institute of
EUMEMWENAABEFEAEREA Surveyors. The fair value is mainly arrived at by
AREBEEERFHE=R - reference to comparable market transactions for
similar properties. The fair value measurement
of the investment properties is categorised
within level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.
EFEREDENEER  HPTE One of the key inputs used in valuing the
ZRAMEMRBIERMERENEE L investment properties was the premium/
I RBERE  EMETFEIXENR-8% discount on features of the property
— 183% ° compared to comparable properties, the

weighted average rate was approximately
from -8% to 13%.

XERTEHGARLXFAN_-O=-Z=ZF%®



= (Br4FRIFERRSIN - @ BEMH AR TT L)
510 _ﬁsﬁoiingg ;ﬁ\l(A.T\l;C?AL STATEMENTS (AmoTunt in thousands ofili/lgcao Patacag,E unlézs otherwise stated)
(continued)

28. REMEME(E) 28. Investment properties (continued)
HESXREA&ER EIZHREESX Depreciation charges were presented in
t §‘J N operating expenses during each reporting date.

2023 2022
BEWA Operating income
KEDENHE2HKA Rental income from investment
properties 1,756 1,756
e Operating expense
EEASWANKREMEE Direct operating expenses arising
EREELERE from investment properties that
generate rental income (241) (173)
TEEHESBANKZREYZE Direct operating expenses arising
EENEELERX from investment properties that
does not generate rental income (470) (466)
FEERA Net operating income 1,045 1,117
29. Hih&EE 29. Other assets
2023 2022
JE Ug 318 Accounts receivable® 397,250 253,511
— m&ﬁ | — Accounts receivable 397,382 253,550
B R E L Less: impairment allowances (132) (39)
TE 3R K2 B A, JE WS 3K Prepayment and other receivable 294,973 449,162
5B Precious metal 114,848 128,353
W el & & (M s14.1(11)D) Repossessed assets (note 4.1(11)
D) 1,660,430 -
HAth Others 6,365 6,368
2,473,866 837,394
ik Current 803,774 816,860
IE 7 & Non-current 1,670,092 20,534
2,473,866 837,394
o= Note:
1) ERREFTEREERRFEENE (1) Accounts receivable mainly include items in
BEHRE - RZOZ=F+=ZA=+— the process of clearing and settlement. As at
EI FEWFHERBZERBHOKREK 31 December 2023, the aging of the accounts
FEE=AURR(ZOZZ%F:= receivables are mainly within 3 months (2022:
&l ArR) e within 3 months) based on invoice date.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(continued)

30. RITREMESEMEBZFRN

Vi
R

31. BEFEX

— &
=111 |_H
>
>

%%ﬁﬂ

FH & %ﬂﬁj’%\

F& & F B

32. BITHERE

(BR %5 RIFEEA SN -
(Amount in thousands of Macao Patacas, unless otherwise stated)

TREMGRE

FI7T+7T)

Rk #&E R 30. Deposits and balances of banks and

other financial institutions

Current
Non-current

2023

33,782,140
5,127,300

38,909,440

31. Deposits from customers

Current accounts
Savings deposits

Time and call deposits

Accrued Interest

Current
Non-current

2023

4,994,880
20,843,204
109,855,540

135,693,624

1,289,572

136,983,196

136,965,405
17,791

136,983,196

2022

35,297,105
9,676,456

44,973,561

2022

4,937,730
25,120,146
109,257,356

139,315,232

841,618

140,156,850

140,036,421
120,429

140,156,850

32. Certificates of deposit in issue

Current

2023

2022

4,094,054
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(BR %5 Bl FE BRI -

SRBEMHRRFMTTIT)

(Amount in thousands of Macao Patacas, unless otherwise stated)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(continued)
33. Htt&E 33. Other liabilities
2023 2022
REEHEX Guarantee deposits 73,743 17,536
KE Cashier orders 51,266 37,410
FETBRIA Account payables 544,973 498,516
Ho S BRI R Other payables and provision 183,121 238,917
— H b & BR 1A — Other payables 132,759 170,126
— BEREBELTBERE  — Impairment allowances on
ERERER loan commitments and
financial guarantee contracts 50,362 68,791
853,103 792,379
Viokd) Current 829,324 717,217
FE 7 B Non-current 23,779 75,162
853,103 792,379
34. EEMHIE 34. Deferred tax

FRBELEREELE,(B8E) KA HHE
ZEBE W REELEMERN G P E
HAMERENRZT  HEFHMT:

The movements in deferred tax assets/
(liabilities) during the period, without taking into
consideration the offsetting of balances within
the same tax jurisdiction, are as follows:

NEFE #EREZ
4HE AERFR THER  HEEFE 2t @t
Unrealised
losses on
Accelerated  investment
tax in  Revaluation
depreciation  securities on Premises  Tax loss Others Total
RZ0Z=F-F—H At 1 January 2023 (20,107) 378,340 (424,151) - 5,893 (60,025)
BEEA(XM)/BEZ  Deferred tax (charged)/
BRFE M) credited to statement of
profit or loss (note 14) - (25,500) - 234,489 429 209,418
EEEAZ(XE)/BE  Net (charged)/credited to
equity - (66,709) 9,790 - - (56,919)
W-OZZ#E+-R At 31 December 2023
=+-H (20,107) 286,131 (414,361) 234,489 6,322 92,474

Tai Fung Bank Limited Annual Report 2023 139



= (BR4FRIERRSN - @B EMHE AR ITT L)
u ﬁ EE § Bﬁ "I ( E ) (AmoTunt in thousands ofili/lz_;cao Patacag,E unlézs otherwise stated)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(continued)

34. ELEHIEEE(E) 34. Deferred tax (continued)
EHECHMEEE (BB RAKNEHE The movements in deferred tax assets/
ZEBE HEIWRERETAERS R LS (liabilities) during the period, without taking
BRAMEEENEEZT AEZ8HHT into consideration the offsetting of balances
(%&) - within the same tax jurisdiction, are as follows

(continued):

NEFE BHREL
EHE %E%L T Ef Kt B
Unrealised
Accelerated  losses on
fax investmentin  Revaluation

depreciation  securities  on Premises Others Total
R-0--&-f-H At 1 January 2022 (20,107) 260,404 (428,105) 87500 (100,308)
BREEN(ZD)/BE2EERE Deferred tax (charged)/
(R 3E14) credited to statement of profit

or loss (note 14) - 88,200 10,687 2,791 101,678
EEERZ(XH)/ &R Net (charged)/credited to

equty S N7% (6733)  (84398)  (61.395)
RZOZZ&+ZA=1-H At 31 December 2022 (20,107) 378,340 (424 151) 5,893 (60,025)
EREACHEMNABREEFREEHRIEBEEE Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset
HEEHE MECHBELER— when there is a legally enforceable right to
e B REERBEEERIEL offset current tax assets against current tax
MIBAGEEEKE - liabilities and when the deferred income taxes

relate to the same fiscal authority.
35. BEAR 35. Subordinated liabilities
2023 2022

BEESE LWEBRAFE Subordinated liabilities,

at amortised cost
—O— N\EBTILEEED 2018 HKD Debt Securities™ - 1,998,200
“OZZ=FFLAAEE® 2023 HKD Debt Securities® 2,065,757 -

2,065,757 1,998,200

IE T B Non-current 2,060,000 -
Vi) Current 5,757 1,998,200

2,065,757 1,998,200
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B 35 R = P o (48)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

35.

36.

(1)

(B %5 Rl ZEBA SN
(Amount in thousands of Macao Patacas, unless otherwise stated)

SRBEMHRRFMTTIT)

®mESEE) 35. Subordinated liabilities (continued)
B 5E - Notes:
1 ERMFemEERRBRILE WO (1) In October 2018, the Bank issued a debt
—N\F+AETES A T1,940,000 of HKD1,940,000 thousand (equivalent to
F oo (8 F 7B F9 751,998,000 F 7_5) MOP1,998,000 thousand) at fixed rate of 5.5%
WESSEEERES  FHEZ per annum after AMCM’s approval, maturing in
ZNF o HEFBRITARE %% ' 2028. The debts are subordinated debts and
Re A EHEEIEF T R HRITH its principal and interest rank after the Bank's
—MEEZBEEENRITREER normal debts but before the Bank's share
MEH ZEFH-_OZ=F1+A capital in the repayment order. Starting from
AIPER R - MARITHAE R October 2023, the debts are redeemable at
O—Z=ZF+A=+tHZAERANER any time, and the Bank has redeemed all the
2HES bonds in advance at face value on 30 October
2023.
(2) ERMemEERIE KR-ZO0=—= (2)  In December 2023, the Bank issued a debt
F+= A ?’*ﬁzﬁiﬁﬂ% 7£2,000,000 of HKD2,000,000 thousand (equivalent to
F 7t (FH%F 7R P9 T 2,060,000 F 75) MOP2,060,000 thousand) at fixed rate of 6%
WEEETEEES i Bz per annum after AMCM'’s approval, maturing in
—=F o WEFBRITRABE %? 2033. The debts are subordinated debts and
Re MF B HEEIEFSRRTH its principal and interest rank after the Bank's
—RABBEZEBEELERRBITREER normal debts but before the Bank’s share
MESF EFRFRMBETAER capital in the repayment order. The Bank is
& - entitled to redeem the bonds at the end of the
fifth year.
BRARHMERTE 36. Share capital and other equity
instruments
S (1) Share capital
2023 2022
=R N Ordinary share capital
— B BEITAHE — Authorised, issued and fully
paid:
1,000,000 & % B FI T 1,000,000 shares of
1,0007¢T MOP1,000 each 1,000,000 1,000,000
18 55 iR AR AR Preference share capital
— B BEITAHE — Authorised, issued and fully
paid: 500,000 500,000
300,000 & & B FI T 300,000 shares of MOP
1,000t ™M 1,000 each® 300,000 300,000
200,000 & & B FI T 200,000 shares of MOP
1,000t ® 1,000 each®@ 200,000 200,000
1,500,000 1,500,000
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u ﬁ EE § Bﬁ "I ( E ) (AmoTunt in thousands ofili/lz_;cao Patacag,E unlézs otherwise stated)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

36. RARHMERTA (&) 36. Share capital and other equity
instruments (continued)
(2) BE=EE (2) Share premium
2023 2022
BIEBOEE Preference share premium
— 2l FEITAHE: — Authorised, issued and fully
paid:
300,000 & & B FI T 300,000 shares of MOP 7,500
7,500t ™M each® 2,250,000 2,250,000
200,000 & & B FI T 200,000 shares of MOP
12,2507T@ 12,250 each® 2,450,000 2,450,000
4,700,000 4,700,000
(3) HftEmTHA (3) Other equity instruments
2023 2022
X EE Perpetual Bonds
— B2 BITEHRE: — Authorised, issued and fully
paid:
2022F FEIN— AR B R 2022 additional tier 1 capital
TH® instrument® 2,729,500 2,729,500
B 5T - Notes:
(1 AXEFAR-_O—AHFENA-+MHHAZ (1)  On 24 June 2015, the Bank has issued
T=TE8REER(TZO—RFEL 300,000 preference shares (“2015 preference
KD 2HEHSWEEIT K shares”), with nominal value and premium
mE Nk EEEES R ABRPIT1,000 value of MOP1,000 and MOP7,500 each
JL MR FIIT7,5007T © BN BB A respectively, fully paid up by cash. The total
EHEREBEH A2 EFIL300,000 share capital and share premium increments
F T KB P9782,250,000F 7T are MOP300,000 thousand and MOP2,250,000

thousand respectively.

2) AXRITARZ-ZO—tFNLATHABAE (2)  On 15 September 2017, the Bank has issued
T_TEREXER(ZOCO—+tHE& 200,000 preference shares(“2017 preference
SR 2ELIR e WEE T shares”), with nominal value and premium
BEEEREREEEBBED N AR T value of MOP1,000 and MOP12,250 each
1,0007T & B PI7L12,2507T © R A & respectively, fully paid up by cash. The total
EARAGELRERBE » A ARMT share capital and share premium increments
200,000 7T K & F7Tt2,450,000F are MOP200,000 thousand and MOP2,450,000
JC ° thousand respectively.

3) ABRTR=-_O=—=F+=-A=+1H (8)  On 29 December 2022, the Bank has issued
%4 702,650,000 F TEE I —RE R HKD2,650,000 thousand additional tier 1
TEHE -B5—@EEABTI,000F T capital instrument, with nominal value of
EHEBRSWEMET BEXAEFE HKD1,000 thousand, fully paid up by cash.
6% ° BIN—BRERNTHEXKARE - Coupon rate is 6%. Additional tier 1 capital
AERWEEGE N TREKAKREE instrument is a type of perpetual capital
REFZ - ROBEBTREBEH instrument, which is qualified as loss-absorbing
S ELN  FRITBETTFEE capacity, is perpetual and subordinated. The
BEMMMEBEIEBELER  ZEX coupon payments of this capital instrument
EESIRER WMk - NERE may be cancelled at the sole discretion of the
WEERZEBEREREBR - Bank. The capital instruments will be written

down at the point on the occurrence of a non-
viability trigger event. They rank higher than
ordinary shares in the event of a winding-up.
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(Amount in thousands of Macao Patacas, unless otherwise stated)

B 35 R = P o (48)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

37. EERED 37. Regulatory reserves

1) —REERE (1) General regulatory reserve
2023 2022
mn—AH—8 At 1st January 162,183 -
AN I Additions 2,177,817 162,183
Rn+=-—A=+—H At 31st December 2,340,000 162,183

(2) BEEEHHE

Specific regulatory reserve

2023 2022
n—H—8 At 1st January 667,914 -
AN )i Additions 613,086 667,914
R+-—A=+—H At 31st December 1,281,000 667,914
CEil Total 3,621,000 830,097
Bt 5E Notes:

(1) —"MRETRHREGELAFRITRERMNS
BB IE B 5E012/2021-AMCM 5k 8 &
AR ENREFREAGBL S
R zhAnkEfFES - FIEE®N
cRHABLIBERTCHEZER
HEMN—REREENEENE—
FE_REBEBHERAEXEREZ
EZEH O EERFTERE_BERE
%%%E%ﬁ%i$¢ﬂ—&%%

The general regulatory reserve is a non-
distributable reserve established by the Bank
from the amount set aside from the retained
earnings in accordance with the provisions of
the Monetary Authority of Macao Circular No.
012/2021-AMCM. The amount allocated is the
difference between the general provision on
credit related items calculated in accordance
with the above-mentioned circular and the

TARIE —REEREMNEZSHZH respective stage 1 and 2 ECL, until the total
= mﬁbﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁéﬁ of the Stage 1 and 2 ECL is not less than the

2 FIEERBERARTRERMS
BB IR B3 012/2021-AMCM 5% 8 &
':F'Ziﬁi%tif% BHBELER

RY TR EFEES - TERLH
Agﬁ#y%ﬁitﬁiﬁrﬁﬁ“zfﬁﬁ

}

required general provision. Movements in the
general regulatory reserve are appropriated
directly through retained earnings.

The specific regulatory reserve is a non-
distributable reserve established by the Bank
from the amount set aside from the retained
earnings in accordance with the provisions
of the Monetary Authority of Macao Circular

HHEm N E = TE 5 Fﬁﬁ T@ ES No. 012/2021-AMCM. The amount allocated is
1 A <i> LEB BEREFE=RR the difference between the specific provision
TEHERBELXE FH % DS % E 1% calculated in accordance with the above-
AeAlt BrEERENEHE mentioned circular and the stage 3 ECL, until
HRBABEERD - the total of the Stage 3 ECL is not less than
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144

(continued)
38. HihfE< 38. Other reserves
2023
MER
-REREY EERELC TUEMEE 2DRE  ERRE it
Premises Foreign
General  Statutory revaluation  Fairvalue  exchange
reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve Total
RZ0ZZ%-A-H t 1 January 2023 1,230,900 1,500,000 3127182  (1,1083,545) (91,963) 4,662,574
Rt ERERRE Transfer from premises
revaluation reserve - - (71,376) - - (71,376)
WAREEFFEEEES  Equity instruments at fair value
HARM2ENEZ through other comprehensive
H BI& income - - - 113,207 - 113,207
LAEEFFEEEES  Debtinstruments at fair value
M E2ENEZ through other comprehensive
EEIA income - - - 356,449 - 356,449
REE/BENLAGBE  Release upon disposal
ftéﬂ\ﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁﬂ &7 redemption of equity
RiELER instruments at fair value
through other comprehensive
income - - - 13,880 - 13,880
EiRBE DA Share of changes in equity of
E2EkE associates - - - 13,167 - 13,167
e Currency translation difference - - - - (33,435 (33435
R-0ZZ%+=A At 31 December 2023
=+-H 1,230,900 1,500,000 3,055,806 (606,842)  (125,398) 5,054,466
2022
LAEE
—REGEEN EEREEY THERRE EIEE  EREG st
Premises Foreign
General  Statutory  revaluation  Fairvalue  exchange
reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve Total
R-0--%#-A-H t 1 January 2022 1,230,900 1,500,000 3,155,316 (32,19) 54591 5908611
fiuEfRELE Transfer from premises
revaluation reserve - - (28,134) - - (28,134)
NAREBEHEEEEE  Equity instruments at fair value
HARM2ENEZ through other comprehengive
H EIA income - - - (296,030) - (296,030)
LAEEFFEEEES  Debtinstruments at fair value
M E2ENEL through other comprehensive
EEIA income - - - (761,025) - (761,025)
REE/BENLAGBE  Release upon disposal
it Efe2EbEZ  redemption of equity
RELER instruments at fair value
through other comprehensive
income - - - (14,294) - (14,294)
EEREZER Currency translation difference - - - - (146554)  (146554)
RZ0ZZ%#+=R At 31 December 2022
= 1,230,900 1,500,000 3,127,182  (1,103,545) (91,963) 4,662,574
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(Amount in thousands of Macao Patacas, unless otherwise stated)

B 35 R = P o (48)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

38. HfufE< (M) 38. Other reserves (continued)

B 5E - Notes:

1) —REFEHE2DHIAFEOTHEEMESR (1)  The general reserve is a distributable reserve
FABESERLADREES - set aside from profit each year. The amount
FgEE e EE Exegad IR to set aside is recommended by the Board of
BRBERGRBEAMBERERR Directors and is reflected in the accounts in
B o the year when the reserve transfer is approved

AERET D ANRITRER
ERVENREBFREEN B
BMRILZAANEZHES
W2 IAGLEBFAFE R
ZEAZ=1 Ei%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ$
RTECBTERAZAD AT ° It
% RAIREBFEFAFEENPHELT
PRBOZT BEERBESBESF
RARITZHITHRAZLE - FAEH
ZEENRRRBFERSBEBRNY
BHRRRB -

7

b
# o W R
X Bf SR EE K
2 e B

4

7

N

at the Annual General Meeting.

The statutory reserve is a non-distributable
reserve set aside from profit each year in
accordance with the Financial System Act of
Macao which provides that an amount of not
less than twenty percent of the profit for the
year be set aside each year until the reserve
reaches fifty percent of the Bank’s issued
share capital and thereafter at not less than
ten percent of the profit for the year each
year until the reserve is equal to the Bank’s
issued share capital. The amount set aside is

reflected in the financial statements in the year
when the reserve transfer is approved at the
Annual General Meeting.

39. BERERME 39. Notes to statement of cash flows

RekFERReBEELZ&TFTOM: Analysis of balances of cash and cash

equivalents:
2023 2022
E 773 & (K Ef16) Cash (note 16) 946,837 1,042,209
BV HA K %2 HA i@ %0 45 Money at call and short notice
(KfsE16) (note 16) 4,133,032 2,039,417
FERREMBITR ST Deposits with other banks and
financial institutions 218,748 1,701,790
REBEE=EARNZ Placements with banks and other
TR RFRRITR R financial institutions with original
Hi &b EE maturity within three months 8,976,319 22,785,899
REBEE=EARNZ Financial investments with
TR E original maturity within three
months 6,074,882 15,135,025
7 EﬁZ B EMEER 2 BE  Deposits with AMCM in excess of
HIEERFHEHIFE17) minimum statutory requirement
(note 17) 277,198 288,370
GHABRARIEITZ Deposits with PBOC in excess of
8 i R E sk 7 K minimum statutory requirement
(KFsE16) (note 16) 20,987 34,401
20,648,003 43,027,111
022F M REBMFLKEEEMNUFTF AR The 2022 comparative figures have been

FHEHmT A -

restated to conform to current year’s
presentation.
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(continued)

40. EESEBERUIIZEAREE 40. Off-balance sheet exposures
WTABEIRAEERAEZEE KER The following is a summary of the contractual
ZHTETERBE: amounts of each significant class of contingent

liabilities and commitments:

2023 2022
BEREFEERE Direct credit substitutes 1,451,714 877,125
RH5BHEZ2HARER Transaction-related
contingencies 349,746 393,955
BB AEE Trade-related contingencies 833,532 419,325
H i A HE Other commitments 17,665,324 19,967,719
20,300,316 21,658,124
4. EBEXREE 41. Capital commitments
RPITREER - KR ﬁ7f % &k P B The Bank had the following capital commitments
Wz BEREESFEBWAT not provided as at reporting date:
2023 2022
EEAEREE Expenditure contracted but not
provided for 35,854 27,832
WNEBERERERTODRBBEBAZEKE The above capital commitments mainly relate to
B the purchase of fixtures and equipment.
42, REHERIE 42. Operating lease commitments
(1) AR|RTEREHEA (1) The Bank as lessee
ZMET?LM%%?H?T?E)\ T FERITITHE © The Bank leases certain of its bank premises
L EHEVNSTARB—FELF WA under operating lease commitments. Leases
BREREEREN ERMAEKGHT for bank premises are negotiated for terms
E%ﬁ?ﬁm hEHETBEREXEES - ranging from 1 to 7 years initially with options to
BB T AR 2 &2 fﬁ 6% T renew the lease and re-negotiate all terms upon
RBEARITAREBEEEAERASN expiry. In accordance with the onerous contract
ZxIEHREE resulted from the non-cancellable operating

leases, the Bank is liable for the following future
minimum lease payments:

2023 2022

@ —F Within 1 year 22,643 24,520
—FULEEFRF In the 2 to 5 years, inclusive

(B RF) 17,610 37,325

AFEMN L Over 5 years 3,107 -

43,360 61,845
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(continued)

(BRI EERASN - BT AR T T T

(Amount in thousands of Macao Patacas, unless otherwise stated)

42. REHERE (&) 42. Operating lease commitments
(continued)

(2) ARBITEREBAA (2) The Bank as lessor
RRITUGLEHERABES FTIRT The Bank leases certain of its bank premises
T - HEFHBTFH - FE=F - under operating lease arrangements. Leases
MAOKK—RERBEERIRBTE R for bank premises are typically negotiated
REHERE  AEBEBTS RN for a period from 1 to 3 years. The terms of
MAEARES RETARBE LEH the leases generally require the tenants to
E6H THARARMTHMERERSG pay security deposits and provide for rent
HzARRKEEBEE s XERKES : adjustments according to the prevailing market

conditions at the expiration of the lease. In
accordance with the onerous contract resulted
from agreement with tenants, the following are
the future minimum receivables in relation to the
non-cancellable operating leases:
2023 2022
B —F Within 1 year 6,472 1,756
—FULEEFERF In the 2 to 5 years, inclusive
(BEERF) 12,547 -
AFEMN L Over 5 years 4,851 -
23,870 1,756

43. EXBBRS
(1) EHERIAKERHBIRANRS

ER AR M ERE R
RRITEZPBERITESG - EeRHE
RITZERRF] KEFENZEK
Bom MPREREINEESRE
EEXBEHNEBEEANR -

EENRLEANMERIHEAIEH R -

AETELEXRBPRNKEEEET
ROMEMBEHRS HPTEEHR
EX BERENEBEMHH - It
R ) A (5 1 B — AR E 4l A3 R R 1F &Y
EFONRBEXZANEMER -
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43.

(1)

Material related party transactions

Transactions with the holding company
and its fellow subsidiaries

General information of the holding company:

The Bank is controlled by BOC. Central Huijin is
the controlling entity of BOC, and it is a wholly-
owned subsidiary of CIC which is a wholly
state-owned company engaging in foreign
currency investment management.

Central Huijin has controlling equity interests in
certain other entities in the PRC.

The Bank enters into banking and other
transactions with these entities in the normal
course of business which mainly include
loans, investment securities and money market
transactions. The activities were on substantially
the same terms, including interest rates and
security, as for comparable transactions with
third party counterparties.
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R 75 3 2= P &E (#8)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

43. EXBEBRXZ (&) 43. Material related party transactions

(continued)

(1) EBEEZERARRERMBEARNRZS (&) (1) Transactions with the holding company

and its fellow subsidiaries (continued)

HER AR RERKEB QR HRSER Transactions with holding company and its
HERZGEHY AT : fellow subsidiaries are summarised as follows:
2023 2022
GEA BES
ERAT Bt & 2 F PR AR Lig=MNE]
Holding Fellow Holding Fellow
company subsidiaries company subsidiaries
FRRZHE Transaction
balances
as at 31 December
Be RFHREZE Cash and balances
with banks 949,826 72,753 1,132,806 13,189
FHRITRZE R Placements with banks
Hih$ pl i and other financial
institutions 2,287,523 795,757 2,850,305 403,130
TRIIRE Financial instruments 3,090,931 242,926 6,301,541 269,607
RITREMERE  Deposits and balances
B EEH of banks and other
financial institutions 29,878,696 1,881,279 33,104,465 3,533,261
BEFER Deposits from
customers - 79,801 - 431,588
BIOIERE Certificates of deposit
in issue - - 768,508 -
‘1IEEE Subordinated liabilities - - 1,030,000 -
FARZEE Transaction
amounts during the
year
FEM A Interest income 79,041 13,665 41,952 16,761
B H Interest expense 1,083,852 172,282 498,198 44,062
REERMAEWA  Fee and commission
income 2,107 6,512 1,940 27,423
REEBRAELE  Fee and commission
expense 2,657 2,832 375 3,683

XERTEHGARLXFAN_-O=-Z=ZF%®



(BREFRIERRSN - @ EEMH BRI T T T
(Amount in thousands of Macao Patacas, unless otherwise stated)

RA %5 3 2% P 5E (#8)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

43. EXRBABRZ (&) 43. Material related party transactions
(continued)
(2) HERFHE - KEKE - MEBHEBEHE (2) Transactions with government authorities,

fEEEENERNXS

agencies, affiliates and other state
controlled entities

RE AR £ HhrimBdh g kg The Bank is subject to the control of the State
SHARITERES  MPEARH Council of the PRC Government through
BB I imE I T - IR CIC and Central Huijin, which also directly
B oMERELRAEMERZESERE or indirectly controls a significant number of
B EEENRELMELRE - AR entities through its government authorities,
R REEIRRETHE - KRB agencies, affiliates and other state controlled
B HMERBLAEMBEAEEGERE entities. The Bank enters into banking
TERBRITEBERS - transactions with government authorities,

il

EX5BEENBRRTIIRIE

agencies, affiliates and other state controlled
entities in the normal course of business at
commercial terms.

These transactions include, but are not limited
to, the following:

— BE EHEEGAERNEXRF — lending, provision of credits and
b guarantees, and deposit taking;

— WRITARXRZHEMR&ER: — inter-bank balance taking and placing;

— HE BENKELHHEMEAE —  sales, purchases and redemption of

FIEBRETZES
—  IEHIE- - EREBEBEIKER
7

— BEQAHKEX -RB
N BB AR

lﬂﬂ
[ﬁﬂi
il

A\l
/
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bonds issued by other state controlled
entities;

—  provision of foreign exchange, remittance
and investment related services;

— purchase of utilities, transport,
telecommunication and postage services.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(continued)
43. EXBEBRXZ (&) 43. Material related party transactions
(continued)
(3) HEMBLARNRS (3) Transactions with subsidiaries
ARITHEHMBARTNEERZWA - The main transactions that the Bank entered
into with subsidiaries are as follows:
2023 2022
FRRGHH Transaction balances as at
31 December
EPER Deposits from customers 47,659 301,322
ERAEMEAME R A Loan commitments and other
credit commitments - 51,500
FARZEHE Transaction amounts during
the year
B X Interest expense 6,960 5,196
R E LKA Fee and commission expense 3,674 2,740
HAh &2l A Other operating income 173,777 233,770
R Other operating expenses 934 1,092
RIRTEEZEMBRRAMERBRAT : The general information of the principal
subsidiaries is as follows:
B F:
£8 dMRRIGE TEXR Ra& BERG BERG
Place of Direct Indirect
incorporation Interest Interest
Name and operation Principal activities Share capital held held
AEREERARAT 38 RERE EFI73,000000 BAZETE BEBHZZTZE
Companhia de Investimento Macao Investment holding MOP3,000,000 77% 23%
Predial Triumph, Limitada
ELEZBERAA 38 NERE #F978,000,000 BHZATA AAZZ
Sociedade de Fomento Predial ~ Macao Property holding MOP8,000,000 98% 2%

Tak Kei, Limitada

N AMBETRAARAT_O-=%#
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(continued)

43. EXRBABRZ (&) 43. Material related party transactions
(continued)
4) HBEEATRNRS (4) Transactions with associates
RIRITE — BB RGEK m RN B The Bank enters into banking transactions with
TR BERKER AEAEME associates in the normal course of business
MIRITEB R EM‘KHE?{ BB & b on commercial terms. These include deposit

WRXSGHREEXHESEIROT taking, other normal banking businesses and
financial services. The main transactions that
the Bank entered into with associates are as

follows:

2023 2022

FRRGHH Transaction balances as at
31 December
EPER Deposits from customers 876,686 905,474
“EAE Subordinated liabilities - 30,900
FARZEHE Transaction amounts during
the year
ME X Interest expense 31,223 13,474
fR7% & kA2 KA Fee and commission income 31,845 32,589
R Other operating expenses 8,318 8,296
RPTEEPECENERBERNOT The general information of the associates is as
follows:
£8 AMRRIEE FEEH Rx BERY
Place of
incorporation
Name and operation Principal activities Share capital Interest held
HETRERERAA L35 R B 2F97L40,000000 BAHZ=TN
Companhia de Seguros Luen Fung Hang, S.ARR.L. Macao Insurance MOP40,000,000 38%
HETASRBRROHERA L35 R B BFI7L100,000000 BAZZTN
Companhia de Seguros Luen Fung Hang Macao Insurance MOP100,000,000 29%
— VIDA, SA.
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R 75 3 2= P &E (#8)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

43. EXRBABRZ (&) 43. Material related party transactions
(continued)
(5) HEHBEEEBRAENRS (5) Transactions with key management
personnel
HREEABREARYEBERERN Key management personnel are those persons
MERE  BEEREHARNRITEBA having authority and responsibility for planning,
AT BREF EERITREKE - directing and controlling the activities of the

Bank, directly or indirectly, including members
of Board of Directors, Supervisory Committee
and President Office.

HREEEABEREZSEAEBNH M The key management compensation during
LN each reporting date is as follows:

2023 2022

TN EMEEETRF  Salaries and other short-term

employee benefits 28,580 68,010
RRITRERITREERAR 2 H@RE The Bank provided credit facilities to and
EE}\E\ HRXEKE & H 2§ accepted deposits from key management
BAREZRRIREHGEERBLER personnel of the Bank and its holding
FER WEEE L RTROE M H companies, their close family members and
—REMEREENEPS  SHAME companies controlled or significantly influenced
B(MERMNRERISZRKEMER - by them. The credit facilities extended and

deposit taken were provided in the ordinary
course of business and on substantially the
same terms as for comparable transactions
with persons of a similar standing or, where
applicable, with other employees.
2023 2022
FRXBERE Transaction balances as at

31 December
ERKkEMIRE Advances and other accounts 291,553 348,211
EPER Deposits from customers 879,735 963,650
B RO H A A& Loan commitments and other

credit commitments 38,749 81,359
FARSEHE Transaction amounts during

the year
B U A Interest income 9,440 5,718
B Interest expense 34,078 15,254

44. BB HRMEERRE 44. Approval of financial statements

AMBHERENR-_O-_MWE=A=+H

HEZS@ARLEL RERT -

The financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors
on 20 March 2024.

D AMBETRAARAT_O-=%#
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF TAlI FUNG BANK
LIMITED
(incorporated in Macau with limited liability by shares)

We have audited the financial statements of Tai
Fung Bank Limited (the "Bank”) standing alone,
which are set out on pages 20 to 152, which
comprise the statement of financial position as at
31 December 2023, and the statement of profit or
loss, the statement of comprehensive income, the
statement of changes in equity and the statement
of cash flows for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial
Statements of the Bank Standing Alone

Directors are responsible for the preparation of
financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Government of the Macao Special
Administrative Region, and for such internal control
as directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
financial statements based on our audit and to report
our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents
of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance
with Auditing Standards issued by the Professional
Committee of Accountants of the Government of
the Macao Special Administrative Region. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’'s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the preparation
of financial statements that give a true and fair view in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF TAlI FUNG BANK
LIMITED (CONTINUED)
(incorporated in Macau with limited liability by shares)

Auditor’s Responsibility (continued)

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.

Audit opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true
and fair view of the financial position of the Bank
standing alone as at 31 December 2023, and of its
financial performance and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Government of the Macao
Special Administrative Region.

Li Ching Lap Bernard
Certified Public Accountant
PricewaterhouseCoopers
Macau, 20 March 2024
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(BRI EERASN - BT AR T T T

(Amount in thousands of Macao Patacas, unless otherwise stated)

According to Circular No. 004/B/2024 — DSB/
AMCM — Guideline on Disclosure of Financial
Information, unaudited supplementary financial
information disclosed:

Capital Management

Summary information on the terms and
conditions of the main features of capital
instruments is disclosed on pages 140 to 142.

The Bank follows the Notice No.010/
B/2023-DSB/AMCM and Notice No.
011/2015-AMCM to calculate its own funds,
risk-weighted exposures, including credit risk,
market risk and operational risk.

The composition of own funds is formulated with
respect to the AMCM guidelines as stipulated in
the Notice No.010/B/2023-DSB/AMCM as at 31
December 2023.

The composition of own funds is formulated with
respect to the AMCM guidelines as stipulated
in the Notice No. 012/93-AMCM as at 31
December 2022.
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UNAUDITED SUPPLEMENTARY
FINANCIAL INFORMATION (continued)

1. EBEXEEE) 1. Capital Management (continued)
11 EXREBREHG 1.1 The Composition Of Own Funds
2023 2022
Bo—REXR Common Equity Tier 1
(“CET1”) capital 1 capital
i g iR R Ordinary share capital 1,000,000 @A NA
AEMBE R Legal, statutory and
HiEHEe other reserves 6,351,900 i@ A/ NA
REA® Retained earnings 6,002,266 @A NA
H ) Others 1,907,738 i@ A NA
15,261,904 T B NA
EEHRER Regulatory deductions
TTHE B A Premises revaluation reserve 3,055,806 @A NA
EERE Regulatory reserves 3,621,000 T A NA
6,676,806 @A NA
BO—REXRFRE Net common equity tier 1
capital 8,585,098 i@ A/ NA
Hih— R EX Additional Tier 1 (“AT1”)
capital
BERKRBRAR G ASS  Qualifying preference share
REMmERTE capital and other equity
instruments 3,079,500 @A, NA
EBEBRAFGAZBD Z Qualifying preference share
i B premium 3,575,000 i@ A NA
6,654,500 T A NA
—RERZFE Net tier 1 capital 15,239,598 i A NA

§ AMBETRAARAT_O-=%#
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION (continued)

1. EBEXEEE) 1. Capital Management (continued)
11 EXRE#RRG (&) 1.1 The Composition Of Own Funds
(continued)
2023 2022
—RERX Tier 2 capital
ZHREARTH Issued tier 2 capital instruments 2,060,000 i@ A /NA
st AR EEE S S Eligible portion of provision
reserve 2,038,133 i@ A /NA
A ETAITH B FEE Eligible portion of premises
revaluation reserve 1,375,113 i@ A /NA
5,473,246 TE A NA
EARFHE Net capital 20,620,370 i@ A NA
EXBEES Core Capital
[N Paid-up capital F#E A NA 1,500,000
BER % B Share premium F#E A NA 4,700,000
EEREE R Legal, statutory and
HEES other reserves TEAH, NA 2,730,900
REAB % Retained earnings A, NA 9,636,784
FBANA 18,567,684
BrEEES Supplementary Capital T#EHA NA 6,830,711
MR EBE Deduction T#E A NA 54,646
BEE® Own Funds 20,620,370 25,343,749
B 5E - Note:
(1) XEZ2RINEBREFEEZEFNULAAR (1) This mainly represented exchange differences
BEFEEAZS +)\ H 4R A Uk from the translation of foreign operations and
EHEREEREBRSE - gains/(losses) on financial assets at fair value

through other comprehensive income.
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AEBRZHAEMBERH(E)
UNAUDITED SUPPLEMENTARY
FINANCIAL INFORMATION (continued)

1. BEXREEGHE) 1.
1.2 BEARFRHE 1.2

(BREFRIGERRSN - SBEEAMHTA/BFTT L)
(Amount in thousands of Macao Patacas, unless otherwise stated)

Capital Management (continued)

Capital Adequacy Ratio

2023 2022

Bbh—REARFTEER  Common equity tier 1 capital

adequacy ratio

4.99% i@ A /NA

—RERFTER Tier 1 capital adequacy ratio 8.86% T A NA
ERFZEHE Capital adequacy ratio 12.04% 14.81%
1.3 ERARZELRFZEHE 1.3 Capital Adequacy Ratio of the Holding
Company
REPFTZERARBRPEARKEM The Bank’s holding company is Bank of China
BRI RO BER QG -FERT Limited, a joint stock company with limited
BRHBRAR - REBEAERITREE liability incorporated in the People’s Republic
EERZE(BERTERNETE ML of China. The calculation of Capital adequacy
(HA1TINFENEARAZREERT X ratio of the holding company is in accordance
N with Capital Rules for Commercial Banks

(Provisional) issued by China Banking and
Insurance Regulatory Commission.

2023 2022
£H &
Group Group

Zh—MEARFEREE  Common equity tier 1 capital
adequacy ratio 11.63% 11.84%
—REAFTEE Tier 1 capital adequacy ratio 13.83% 1411%
EXRFTBHE Capital adequacy ratio 17.74% 17.52%

XERTEHGARLXFAN_-O=-Z=ZF%®
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AEBRCHMEMERHGR)
UNAUDITED SUPPLEMENTARY
FINANCIAL INFORMATION (continued)

2. EHRRE 2. Credit Risk
@Z‘é OZ=F+=ZA=+—8" AR As at 31 December 2023, the Bank makes a
TERAEHEHEREENEAR management overlay with the approval of CIMC
pREERABA &fﬁﬁ EHIE B X for its portfolio to factors in unexpected credit
7&% ARERMRAMMA  BRERE risk deterioration not incorporated in the current
AMEEELER Ttt/ﬁ HEBEEEHES ECL models.

ETTEERBEM -

21 BEERLEFEAESRE  HFREZE - 2.1
EFREHRBLETETAEREHRBA (R
BZHE) A ARR10% A Eai[E -

Loans and commitments, placements with
banks, securities investments and financial
derivatives (at notional amount) classified by

BEUNTHRE D ZDH geographical regions over or equal to 10% of
the respective credit exposures.
2023
EXR FREXRK
EXARHE HERE TEIERE
WE D Region Placements
with banks
Loans and | and securities Financial
commitments investments derivatives
R Macao
— RITRAE — Other credit institutions - 1,781,110 -
— B RE#E —Public sector 479,850 6,862,028 -
UNEIRSE N —Corporations/Legal Entities 27,200,859 - -
— @A — Individuals 37,971,466 - -
5B Hong Kong
— RITAE — Other credit institutions - 1,586,319 3,866,786
— R REHE —Public sector - 843,714 -
REIE - EE —Corporations/Legal Entities 19,285,467 5,520,745 -
— @A —Individuals 1,099,134 - -
hE A Mainland China
— RITAE — Other credit institutions - 13,428,647 -
— B REHE —Public sector - 56,951 -
— DAt ¥ EE —Corporations/Legal Entities 55,942,417 19,047,622 -
— @A —Individuals 1,041,268 - -
%E Britain
—®IAE — Other credit institutions - - 828,339
— AR E & —Corporations/Legal Entities 282,291 - -
=S Japan
—RITRE — Other credit institutions - - 719,597
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(Amount in thousands of Macao Patacas, unless otherwise stated)

AEBERZRHMEMERHEGR)
UNAUDITED SUPPLEMENTARY
FINANCIAL INFORMATION (continued)

2. fEARREGE) 2.

21 REBEEFREFRGERE  HFHREZE - 2.1
EFREHRBLEITETAEREHRBA (R
BHR)EZBRREBRI0%H A LHE -
BEATHRED 2D -

Credit Risk (continued)

Loans and commitments, placements with
banks, securities investments and financial
derivatives (at notional amount) classified by
geographical regions over or equal to 10% of

the respective credit exposures.

2022
ERkK i EE
B BARE | MEIARE
R D Region Placements
with banks
Loans and | and securities Financial
commitments investments derivatives
R Macao
— RITRE —Other credit institutions - 1,772,148 -
—BF - RE#E —Public sector 479,747 9,962,776 -
— PRl E & —Corporations/Legal Entities 29,307,124 - -
— @A —Individuals 39,131,886 - -
E# Hong Kong
— RITAE — Other credit institutions - - 1,557,873
— ARl E & —Corporations/Legal Entities 17,634,356 - -
— @A —Individuals 901,189 - -
FE R Mainland China
— RITAE —Other credit institutions - 27,090,247 -
— B RE#RE —Public sector - 57,968 -
— REIGE E —Corporations/Legal Entities 61,041,322 17,914,417 -
— @A —Individuals 1,193,778 - -
® Britain
— |®ITAE — Other credit institutions - - 570,294
=S Japan
— RITAE — Other credit institutions - - 409,690

XERTEHGARLXFAN_-O=-Z=ZF%®
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION (continued)

2. fEHARRGE) 2. Credit Risk (continued)

22 EXEBEREFNRR 2.2 Debt Securities and Certificates of Deposit
REREEHIZCEBEIFLERE Gross debt securities and certifcates of deposit
AR BEREESTRAT before impairment allowances are analysed

by the five-category classifications and stage
determination as follows:

2023
B Br — B = B fr = @t
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
NARBEFTEEHE  Investment in securities at
Bt AHft2EKE  fair value through other
LESRE comprehensive income
E® Pass 25,243,109 619,720 - 25,862,829
2D Special Mention - - - -
R Substandard - - - -
A &t Doubtful - - - -
Bx Loss - - - -
25,243,109 619,720 - 25,862,829
Hep: Of which,
WEERE impairment allowances (17,137) (1,220) - (18,357)
DS 13 %5894 Investment in securities at
BHERE amortised cost
- Pass 11,074,224 1,577,530 - 12,651,754
x Special Mention - - - -
R Substandard - - 1,130,579 1,130,579
A &t Doubtful - - - -
Bx Loss - - 1,284,441 1,284,441
11,074,224 1,577,530 2,415,020 15,066,774
Hep: Of which,
WEERE impairment allowances (510) (53,939) (1,517,376) (1,571,825)

11,073,714 1,523,591 897,644 13,494,949
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AEBRZHAEMBERH(E)
UNAUDITED SUPPLEMENTARY
FINANCIAL INFORMATION (continued)

2. EHRE(E) 2. Credit Risk (continued)
22 EXEIBHERTFNEGE) 2.2 Debt Securities and Certificates of Deposit

(continued)

REUREZEEN 2 EHESRFRE

Gross debt securities and certifcates of deposit
BERDBERERSTWOT(E)

before impairment allowances are analysed
by the five-category classifications and stage
determination as follows (continued):

2022
P& Bt — BEE = P& Bt = @it
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
LARBETEREEE Investment in securities at
Bt AHft2EKE  fair value through other
ZESRE comprehensive income
TE Pass 17,477,236 642 267 - 18,119,503
2D Special Mention - - - -
R Substandard - - - -
o & Doubtful _ _ _ _
Bx Loss - - - -
17,477,236 642,267 -~ 18,119,503
He: Of which,
REER impairment allowances (22,366) (1,569) - (23,935)
DBBRRATEZ Investment in securities at
EERE amortised cost
TE Pass 17,037,757 2,817,125 - 19,854,882
x Special Mention - - - -
R Substandard - - 1,215,935 1,215,935
o] & Doubtful - - - -
Bx Loss - - - -
17,037,757 2,817,125 1,215,935 21,070,817
Hp Of which,
RELER impairment allowances (1,893) (62,761)  (294,818)  (359,472)
17,035,864 2,754,364 921,117 20,711,345
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AEBRZEEMBERH(E)

UNAUDITED SUPPLEMENTARY

FINANCIAL INFORMATION (continued)

41

A 2 [ Bz
FRETHBEANXRERTE X

MTERRBRERPIE R EIE R PR M 2 CF
KR ERESD) BRARTEIEZE
BIIE TR B B AN IR 1T B B E A F
T8 UBRKR00E BB F T KD
BRASEVES -

(BRI EERASN - BT AR T T T

(Amount in thousands of Macao Patacas, unless otherwise stated)

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is monthly measured and
submitted to AMCM quarterly. Only currency
that accounts for more than 5% of either
banking book assets or liabilities is required to
be reported.

The following table demonstrates, in
accordance the Guideline on Management of
Interest Rate Risk issued by AMCM, the net
impact to the economic value of the Bank with
an assumed parallel shift of 200 basis points
throughout different time spectrum multiplied
by different weighting factors for different
currencies.

2023 2022
% Currencies
B FITT MOP 230,423 311,273
AT HKD (322,400) (351,369)
ETT UsbD 1,521,569 1,208,155
AR CNY 57,337 195,021
KCEEEYEA Impact on economic value as %
= ical0h- of own funds 6.79% 5.30%
™ % B B 4. Market Risk
SN EE [ Bz 4.1 Foreign Currency Risk
(i) UTARRITREHERZINEF (i)  The following is an analysis of the Bank’s
RERBRERHI: total net long and short positions in
foreign currencies on the reporting date:
CEEHESAON
FEEREBIG(ESR)
Net Open Position including
option contracts Long or Shorts
2023 2022
B Currencies
78 7T Hong Kong dollar (HKD) (23,214,355) (21,694,270)
ETT United States dollar (USD) 32,354,385 33,025,377
HEmg Other currencies 278,157 315,923
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(Amount in thousands of Macao Patacas, unless otherwise stated)

AEBRZHAEMBERH(E)
UNAUDITED SUPPLEMENTARY
FINANCIAL INFORMATION (continued)

4. THERER (&) 4. Market Risk (continued)
41 HSMNERBE (&) 41 Foreign Currency Risk (continued)

(i) TH/RRNRTRNEERZFAIR
BONERE B IFRI0% ZFEEE
DT

(i) The following is an analysis of the Bank
for the net position of a particular foreign
currency consititutes not less than 10%
of the total net position in all foreign
currencies on the reporting date:

2023 2022
)i v Hong Kong dollars
BN HR & B Spot assets 14,528,588 11,451,701
ENER & E Spot liabilities (32,763,544) (33,844,357)
EHE A Forward purchases 99,625 966,983
= B & H Forward sales (5,079,024) (268,596)

o
l
Rl
N
2
mmp
|
o

Net long/(short) position in

HKD (23,214,355) (21,694,269)
Er US dollars
BNEf & = Spot assets 33,446,662 35,163,282
BB Spot liabilities (2,118,268) (834,338)
EHE A Forward purchases 2,125,943 407
EHED Forward sales (1,099,952) (1,303,974)
Enk,/(B)B/F% Netlong/(short) position in

UusDhD 32,354,385 33,025,377

4.2 WmiERAK 4.2 Market Risk

UTRABRTREERA 2SR B The following is an analysis of the Bank’s capital

164

BREBRDHT: requirement for market risk on the balance
sheet date:
2023 2022
BEARER Capital requirements
BEHFNMEFEAEHEBHN  Specific risk of debt securities
METENETE and debt derivatives
= Bex 733 -
&%« HEHHEBH  General market risk of debt
MTEIAERFERE securities, debt derivatives and
B 09 — AR T 3% L B interest rate exposures 513 -
A% 1 2 Bz Equity exposures 73,830 57,605
4 BE 2 Bz Foreign exchange exposures 42,909 46,809
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AEBRZEEMBERH(E)

UNAUDITED SUPPLEMENTARY

FINANCIAL INFORMATION (continued)
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(Amount in thousands of Macao Patacas, unless otherwise stated)

Operational Risk

Operational risk is the risk of loss caused by
inadequacy in internal control procedures,
information technology systems, personnel and
external events.

In order to effectively identify, evaluate, monitor,
control and mitigate such risks, the Bank has
set up in place an operational risk management
policies and procedures, and has established
a well developed operational risk management
system to ensure an appropriate and effective
process in place for managing operational
risk, such as implemented operational risk
management mechanisms by using operational
risk and control assessment, risk indicator
monitoring, and loss data collection tools.

The management has constantly made efforts
to improve its internal control procedures and
strengthen the employee training programs
to promote continuous improvement of risk
control mechanisms and compliance culture.
Furthermore, the Bank has also established
guidelines for operational procedures to
deal with sudden and unforeseeable events.
Resources have also been put aside to set up
a computer back-up system with an objective
of reducing the likelihood and impact of the
emergence of operational risk and its related
impacts to an acceptable level and complying
with the requirements of the regulatory authority.
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AEBRZHAEMBERH(E)
UNAUDITED SUPPLEMENTARY
FINANCIAL INFORMATION (continued)

6. REMEER 6.

(BREFRIGERRSN - SBEEAMHTA/BFTT L)
(Amount in thousands of Macao Patacas, unless otherwise stated)

Liquidity Risk

() RBRLFHUEERD

KON (i)

Average weekly liquidity (Position of
Macao office only):

2023 2022
FREFHEAERSHIR Minimum weekly amount of
TZHEEX cash in hand 2,621,262 2,834,449
BRETYHEBEZRE  Average weekly amount of
R & e cash in hand 2,980,350 3,444,191
B IR FEE Net liquidity position 359,088 609,742
i) mPpEsLREXRRAOK) (i)  Liquidity Ratio (Position of Macao office
only)
2023 2022
FH— @A REES  Average one-month
RS liquidity ratio 103.10% 93.47%
FH=@AREESE  Average three-month
RS liquidity ratio 67.86% 72.88%
(iiiy TFHEEEESE (iiiy  The average solvency assets
2023 2022
BEEE Solvency assets 62,140,258 69,094,309
EXEE Underlying liabilities 132,673,392 133,567,128
HEEEHEABE  Ratio of solvency assets to
b & underlying liabilities 46.84% 51.73%

7. TEITATIAR

7. Financial Derivatives

T ARRITEBRMPCMERERS The following is the credit risk weighted amount
011/2015-AMCM 5% 18 & %EEEJr?i/f%ﬂ of financial derivatives computation follows
MTETREZERRRMESSE: AMCM guidelines Notice No. 011/2015-AMCM:
2023 2022
MESR Interest rate contracts - -
HNERERER Foreign exchange and gold
contracts 31,626 17,846
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION (continued)

8. HEBHEEBBELRS%ZEE 8. List of Institutions with More Than 5%
Interests
THARBITZOZ=Z2FR=-0== The following is the list of institutions in which
iﬁiﬁ%ﬁi@*ﬁ%ﬁ’f@%%,§$5%2%$ ° the Bank has holdings in excess of 5% in
M ARRERNE R BN E43 o the share capital during 2023 and 2022. The

general information of relevant institutions is
disclosed in note 12.

$§E 174 — A 7 AR B Tt 2 Y R The Bank enters into banking transactions with
NEINEERFIETRS o below subsidiaries and associates in the normal
course of business on commercial terms.

= BEEEFAERG HBEEER®
Direct Indirect
Name Interest held Interest held
REKREERBRAR] BOoZzt+t Bpoz_t=
Companhia de Investimento Predial Triumph, Limitada 77% 23%
AL EXARAA B ZNTN B
Sociedade de Fomento Predial Tak Kei, Limitada 98% 2%
HE=REERA BOoZ=1TN =z
Companhia de Seguros Luen Fung Hang, S.A.R.L. 38% Nil
HEFASREROBRA BAZ=TAh =z
Companhia de Seguros Luen Fung Hang-VIDA, S.A. 29% Nil
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Honorary Chairman

Board of Directors
Chairman

Vice Chairman
Executive Directors

Directors

Company Secretary

Supervisory Commlttee
Chairman
Members

President Office
President

Vice Presidents

Auditor

Legal Adviser

Ho Hau Wah

Ho, Carlos

Li Guang

Zhou Peng

(Resigned on 1 October 2023)
Jiang Xin

(Appointed on 28 November 2023)
Ho Hao Veng

Chui Kai Cheong

Fu Hau Chak

Ip Sio Kai

Ho Kevin King Lun

Ho King Man Justin

Dang Pengjun

(Resigned on 26 January 2023)
Ho, Leonardo

Chan Kim Peng

Chen Tianhong

(Appointed on 26 January 2023)

So Kwok Wah

(Resigned on 31 March 2023)
Yang Zhi Hong

(Appointed on 31 March 2023)

long Weng lan
He Qiuping
Mok Chi Wai

Zhou Peng

(Resigned on 1 October 2023)
Jiang Xin

(Appointed on 28 November 2023)
Chui Kai Cheong

Chan Kim Peng

Wang Shoufei

(Resigned on 1 May 2023)
Shen, Jian Wei David

Lou Kit |

Gao Peng

Chio lo Va

So Kwok Wah

(Appointed on 1 February 2023)
Bao King To

(Appointed on 1 February 2023)

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Dr. Leonel Alves
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i 1 2832 2323

BE : 2857 0737

=Bl : www.taifungbank.com

B 51T

Macao Branches

BEHT
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TA-CE

B 1 2825 7177
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HEAD OFFICE/ ALAMEDA DR. CARLOS D'ASSUMPCAQ BRANCH
Add. Tai Fung Bank Headquarters
Building, 418, Alameda Dr.
Carlos d’Assumpcéo, Macau

Tel. . 2832 2323

Fax . 2857 0737

Website . www.taifungbank.com

THE CARAT BRANCH

Add. Alameda Dr. Carlos d’Assumpcéo
No0.36-50, The Carat R/C A-C,
Macau

Tel. . 2825 7177

POU CHOI BRANCH

Add. Rua da Bacia Sul nos. 165 e 179,
Macau

Tel. . 2855 9437, 2823 3308

HUNG KAI SI BRANCH

Add. . 120, Avenida de Horta e Costa,
Macau

Tel. . 2833 3979, 2821 0741

HAK SHA WAN BRANCH

Add. .21, Rua Um do Bairro lao Hon,
Macau

Tel. . 2857 1112, 2840 1276

HO LAN UN BRANCH

Add. . 43, Avenida do Conselheiro
Ferreira de Almeida, Macau

Tel. . 2853 2468

SUP YUET CHIO NG KAI BRANCH

Add. . 83, Rua de Cinco de Qutubro,
Macau

Tel. . 2892 0871, 2892 3691

HOTEL LISBOA BRANCH

Add. . Ala Nova do Hotel Lisboa R/C,
Macau

Tel. . 2856 5651, 2856 7675

TOIl SAN BRANCH

Add. . Rua Marginal Do Canal Das Hortas
61-69 Edf. Tai Fung San Chuen
R/C-A, Macau

Tel. . 2840 0248

169



MAZTITEHE)

HEAD OFFICE, BRANCHES AND SUB-BRANCH INFORMATION (continued)

B

R

Eo

=y -
BT ESTT

B 41

==

EE

i

BT EHT

HhHE
B
B2 E DT
it 4t
B
THEH
HhHE

B

HEDT
B 41

FIAD 1T
S i

Bk

RITAKRDIT

3 1

Bk

HEE DT

3 1

B

BT
3 A1

B

B PTR i H4-F o

2835 8272

RS EEHK68-CiHt
2834 6484, 2834 6706

RPTABA S K E A K43
2826 0453, 2826 2830

B PRI R #7238 5%
2830 2418, 2835 3406

RPN E55%
2893 8147, 2893 3843
B R REENBEN\EH1215

2843 9720

PR E & B 56045
2870 6283, 2870 6284

B PI R K B IK4215%
2833 5086, 2833 5088

P E IR EK42-DEE
2851 5922
SRR Y IR A929-03358 8 1 /B -

B TW - XE
2876 4135

R P95 5 3829657
2837 8229, 2857 2708

B PO AT 1) 4 48 55 7% 390-400%%
MHEES —HSTUV.8
2882 0223, 2882 0822

TOU SUEN KAl BRANCH
Add. . 4-F, Rua da Barca, Macau
Tel. . 28358272

KOU SI TAK BRANCH

Add. 68-C, Avenida de Horta e Costa,
Macau
Tel. . 2834 6484, 2834 6706

FAI CHI KEI BRANCH

Add. 43, Avenida do General Castelo
Branco, Macau
Tel. . 2826 0453, 2826 2830

BROADWAY BRANCH
Add. . 288, Rua do Campo, Macau
Tel. . 2830 2418, 2835 3406

HA WAN BRANCH
Add. .5, Rua de Joao Lecéros, Macau
Tel. . 2893 8147, 2893 3843

IAO HON BRANCH

Add. : 121, Rua Oito do Bairro lao Hon,
Macau
Tel. . 28439720

SAN HAU NGON BRANCH

Add. 604, Alameda Dr. Carlos
d’Assumpcao, Macau
Tel. . 28706283, 2870 6284

PRAIA GRANDE BRANCH

Add. 421, Avenida da Praia Grande,
Macau
Tel. . 2833 5086, 2833 5088

LEI TIM BRANCH

Add. 42-D, Estrada da Areia Preta,
Macau
Tel. . 28515922

ORIENT PEARL BRANCH

Add. Rua Central Da Areia Preta
N0.929-933, R/C W + X, Macau
Tel. . 2876 4135

AVENIDA ALMEIDA RIBEIRO BRANCH

Add. 296, Avenida de Almeida Ribeiro,
Macau
Tel. . 2837 8229, 2857 2708

NAM SAN BRANCH

Add. : 390-400, Estrada Governador
Albano de Olveira, Taipa, Macau
Tel. . 28820223, 2882 0822
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FLOWER CITY BRANCH

Add. Avenida de Guimaraes nos, 172 e
180, R/C, Taipa , Macau
Tel. . 2872 7626, 2872 7636

CHUN FOK BRANCH

Add. Rua do Regedor no.35, R/C, Taipa,
Macau
Tel. . 28825138, 2882 7038

SEAC PAI VAN BRANCH

Add. Lote CN4 da Habitac&o Publica de
Seac Pai Van, Habitac&o Social de
Seac Pai Van - Edificio Lok Kuan,
Bloco 5, 1 Andar D, Coloane,
Macau

Tel. . 2850 2008, 2850 2018

OLYMPIC BRANCH

Add. Avenida Oplimpica No.563-569.
Edf. Fa Seng Lei Mau, AT r/c
Taipa, Macau

Tel. : 28837030

UNIVERSITY OF I\/IACAU BRANCH

Add. University of Macau Avenida da
Universidade Taipa, S8 UMALL
G003

Tel. . 2832 3682, 2832 3683

SHANGHAI BRANCH

Add. Unit 401-404,406,408A,No.23
Zhongshan Dong Yi Road,
Huangpu District Shanghai
Tel. . 86-21-5321 8600

GUANGZHOU BRANCH

Add. 19/F, Office BuildingT2, Lumina,
No.181 Yanjiang West Road,
Yuexiu District, Guangzhou,
Guangdong Province

Tel. . 86-20-2226 6888

GUANGDONG-MACAO IN-DEPTH COOPERATION
ZONE IN HENGQIN SUB-BRANCH

Add. Unit01, 02, 19th Floor, No.58
Huajin Street,
Guangdong-l\/laoao In-Depth
Cooperation Zone in Henggin
Tel. . 86-756-389 6888
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